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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

NOTICE is hereby given that the Twentieth Annual General Meeting of the Members of M/$. Kalzen Agro lnfrabuild Limited 
(Formerly: Anubhav Infrastructure Umlted) having its Registered Office at "Chatterjee International Centre", 33A, Ctiowrlnghee 
Road, 6th Floor, Room No. 6A, Russel Street Kolkata- 700 011•, wlll be held at "Diamond Plaza, 5 Gopl Ghosh Lane, Kolkata-
700 012" on Saturday, September 20, 2024 at 10:30 a.m. (1ST) to transact the following business: 

OROINARI' BUSINESS: -

1, ADOPTION OF AUDmD FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit & Loss account of tht? Company for the 
year ended March 31, 202S as on !hat date and the Reports of the Directors and Audllors !hereon. 

2, APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTOR IN PLACE OF DIRECTOR RETIRING BY ROTATION 

To appoint a Director In place of Mr. Pawan Kumar Jhunjhunwala (Din: 10049668), who retires by rotation, and, being ellglble, 
offers himself for re-appointment. 

SPEOAl BUSINESS: -

3. Appointment of Mrs. Roshnl Gadla (DIN: 066S277:ll as an Additional Non-hecuttve Independent Director of the 
Company. 

To consider and if thought flt, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the prO\lfslons of Sections 149, lSO, 1S2 and other applicable pl'Ol/lslons, If any, of the Companies 
Act, 2013 ("the Act") and the rules made !here under (lndudinG any statutory modlflcatlon(s) or re-enactment thereof for the 
11me being In force) read with Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16 and 25 of Securities and E•change 
8oard of lndla (Ustlng Obligations and Dlsdosure requirements) Regulations, 201S, as amended ("Listing Regulations"), M,s. 
Roshnl Gadla (DIN: 066S2773), who hu been appointed as an Additional Non-EKecutive Independent Dlree1or on the Board of 
Directors of the Company ("the Board") on the recommendation and approval of the Nomination and Remune,ation 
Committee and the Board at their respective meeting and who has submitted a declaration that she meets the a1terla for 
Independence as provided In the Act and the Listing Regvlallons, and who Is not debarred from holding office of Directors 
pursuant to any SEBl's Order or any other authority, and who has been reglslered in the Independent Director's Data Bank 
maintained undet !he Act, be and Is hereby appointed as an Addltlonal Non,executlve Independent Director of the Company 
(not liable to retire by rotallon) to hold office for a tenn of five (S) consecutive years w.e.f. July 07, 2025 subject to the approval 
of the shareholders at the ensuinG General Meeting of tl'le Company." 

RESOLVED FUR'lllER THAT Mr. Anku, Hada, Managing Director & Mrs. Nikita Raterla, Company Secretary of the Company be 
and are hereby Jointly and/or severally authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matte,s, things and slsn and flle all such papers, 
documents, forms and writings as may be necessary and Incidental to the aforesaid resolution." 

4. Appointment of Mrs. Kalpana Tekrlwal (DIN: 11170688) a~ an Additional Non-Executive lnde)*ldetlt Director of ttie 
Compa,w. 

To consider and If thought flt, to pass with or without modlflcatlon(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolutton: 

·RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of SeCllons 149, 1SO, 152 and other applicable provisions, If any, of the Companies 
Act, 2013 ("the Act') and the rules made there under (including any statutory modlflcatlon(s) or re~nactment thereof for the 
time being In force) read with Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16 and 2S of Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Ustlng Obflgatlons and Disclosure requirements) Regulatlons, 2015, as amended ("Listing Rll81Jlatlons• Mrs. 
Kalpana Tekrlwal (DIN: 11170688), who has been appointed as an Additional Non,Executlve Independent Director on the Board 
of Directors of the Company !'the Board•) on the recommendation and approval of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee and the Board at their respective meeting and who has submitted a declaration that she meets the criteria for 
Independence as provided In the Act and the Listing Regulations, and who Is not debarred from holding office of Directors 
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pursuant to any SEBl's Order or any other authority, and who has been registered in the Independent Director's Data Bank 
maintained under the Act, be and is hereby appointed as an Additional Non•el!e<:utive Independent Director of the Company 
(not liable to retire by rotation) to hold office for a term of ftve (SJ consecutive years w.e.f. July 07, 2025 subject to the approval 
of the shareholders ;)t the ensuing General Meeting of the Company." 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Ankur Hada, Managing Director & Mrs. Nikita Rateria, Company Secretary oftheComp;1ny be 
and are hereby Jointly and/or severally authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters, things and sign and ftle all such papers, 
documents, fcrms and writings as may be nece~ary and incidental to the aroresald resolution: 

5. To appoint Sem,tirlal Altdltors of the Company 

To consider and, If thought flt, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

NRESOLVED TtfAT pursuant to Section 204 and other applicable provisions, If any, of the Companies Act, 2013, Rule 9 of the 
Companies !Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and Regulation Z4A of the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obllsatlons ;md Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 201s ("SUI listing Regulations"), other 
appllcable laws/statutory provlslcns, If any, as amended from time to time, M/s. Hemant Sharma & Asse<:lates, Practicing 
Company Secretaries (Membership No: A42264) be and are hereby appointed as Secretarial Auditors of the Company for term 
offlve consecutive years commencing from flnanclal year 2025-26 till flnanclal year 2029·30, at such fees, plus applicable taxes 
and other out-of-pocket expenses as may be mutually as,eed upon between the Board of Directors of the Company and the 
Secretarial Auditors." 

RESOLVED FURTHER n!AT Mr. Ankur Hada, Managing Director and Mrs. Nikita Raterla, Company Secretary of the Company 
be and are hereby severally authorized to do all such acts, deeds and actions as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give 
effect to this resolution and matters Incidental and anclllary thereto.' 

R~ered Offlu: 
Chatterjee International Centre, 
33A Olowringhee Road, 
6th Floor, Room No. 6A, 
Russel Street 
Kolle;)!;)- 700 071 

Dated: August 21, 2025 

Pleoe : Kolkata 
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By Order of the Board 
For Kaia:en A,aro lnfrabulld Umlted 

Nikita Rawrla 
(Company Secretary) 

Mem No. 3~115 



1. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") has vide its General Circular Nos. 14/2020 elated April a, 2020 and 17/2020 

dated Aprll 13, 2020, in relation to "Clarlflcation on passing of ordinary and special resolutions by companies under the 

Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder on account of the threat posed by "COVJD·19", General Circular Nos. 

20/2020 dated May 5, 2020, 10/2022 dated December 28, 2022 and subsequent circulars issved In this r~rd, the latest 

being 09/2023 dated September 25, 2023 In relation to •c1arlftcatlon on holdins of Annual General Meeting ("AGM") 

through Video Conferenci111 (VCJ or 01her Audio Visual Means (OAVM)", (collectlvely referred to as "MCA. circulars") 

perm~cl the holding of the AGM through VC/OAVM, without the physlcal presence of the Members at a oommon 

venue. In compliance with the MCA Orculars, the AGM of 1he Company is being held through vc /OAVM. The 
r~istered of flee of the Company shall be deemed to be the venue for the AGM. 

2. The Explanatory Statement set1lng out material f.icts concerning the business under Item Nos. 3 to S of the Notice Is 
annex~ hereto. [Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act')) 

Further, the rele11ant details with respect lo "Director seeking appointment and re-appoln1ment at this AGM" are also 

pro-.ided as Annexure A. [Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standard·2 on General Meetings 
issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India) 

3. A MEMBER ENTinEo TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (THE 'MEETING') IS ENTITU:O TO 

APPOINT A PROXY TO ATIEND AND VOTE ON A. POLL INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF ANO THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A 

MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. THE INSTRUMENT APPOINTING THE PROXY, IN ORDER TO BE EFFECTIVE, SHOULD BE 

DEPOSITED, DULY COMPLoTEO AND SIGNED, A.TTHE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY NOTLESS THAN FORTY-EIGHT 

HOURS BEFORE Tl-IE COMMENCEMENT OF THE MEETING. A PROXY FORM IS SENT HEREWITH. 

A PERSON CAN ACT AS A PROXY ON BEHALF OF NOT EXCEEDING FIFTY (50) ANO HOLDING IN AGGREGATE NOT MORE 

THAN TEN (10) PERCENT OF THE TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY CARRYING VOTING RIGH~. 

A MEMBER HOLDING MORE THAN TEN(lO) PERCENT OF THE TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY CAARYING VOTING 

RIGHTS MAY APPOINT A SINGLE PERSON AS PROXY AND SUCH PERSON SHALL NOT ACT AS A PROXY FOR ANY OTHER 
PERSON OR SHAREHOLDER. 

4. Proxies shall be made avallable for inspection during twenty-four hours before the time fixed for oommencement of the 

meetins and ending with conclusion of the meeting. 

s. The proxies form should be deposited/submitted In complete partlcular$ at the registered office of !he Company and In 

order to make It effective, proxy form must be received by the Company not later than 48 {Forty-Eight) hours before the 
time ftxed for holding the meeting. 

6. During the period beginning 24 hours before the time fixed for the oommencement of the meeting and ending with the 

conclusion of the meeting, a member would be entitled to Inspect the proxies lodged at any time during the business 

hours of the Company, provided not less than three days ad\lante notice In writin,g is glven to the Company. Accordlngtv, 
the proxy form and attendance slip are annexed to this Notice. 

7. Pursuant to the provisior,s of Section 91 of the Companies Act, 2013, 1he Register of Beneficial Owners, Register of 

Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company shall remain closed from Saturday, September 13, 2025 to Saturday, 
September 20, 202S, both days inclusive, for the purpose gt AGM. 
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8. Oillidend, If declareel, would be paid within thirty days from the date of declaration to Members whose names appear as 

beneflclal owners with the Depositories or In 1he Reglsler of Members. 

Members holdins shares In de mat form mav note that bank account par11culars registered against their respective demat 

aa:ounts will be used by lhe Company for payment of dhlldend. The Company or its Registrars and Transfer Agents, 

M/s. Maheshwarl Datamatics Private Umlted, cannot act on any request ,_Ive<! directly from the members holding 

shares in electronic form for any change of bank particulars or bank mandates. Such changes are to be adlllsed only to the 

Depository Parlldpants of the members. further, In case the shares are held in physical mode, members are requested to 
furnish Bank account pariiculars (lliz. Account No., Name and Branch of the Bank, IFSC Code and MICR Coae) to the RTA 

to ensure that there is no fraudulent encashment of lhe warrants. 

9. Corporate members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the Meeting are requested to send to 

the Company a certifled copy of the Board Resolution authorizing their representative to attend and vote on their behalf 
at the Meeting. 

10. rn order to enable us to register your attendance at the venue of 1he AGM, Members/ prolCies are requested to bring their 

attendance slrp duly fllled In for attending the Meeting along with the <»PV of AGM Notice. 

11. Relevant documents referred to In the accompanying Notice and the Statement are open for inspection by the members 

at the Registered Office of the Company on all working days, durins business hours up 10 the date of the Meeting. 

Membel's holdlns shares In physical form are also requested to notify change In address, if any, immediately to the 

Company's Registrar & Share Transfer Agent, M/s. Maheshwarl Oatamatics Private Limited, 23 R.N Mukherjee Road, 5th 

Floor, Kolkata - 700 001 by quotins their Fallo Number(s). 

Jn case shares are held In electronic form, this information should be passed on directly to their respective Depository 
Participant (OP). 

12, MembEfs hold ins shares In physical mode are also requested to update their email addresses by writing to ttie RTA of the 

Company quoting their folro number(s). 

13. Any member desirous of setting any Information on the accounts of the Company Is required to forward his/her queries 

at least 7 days prior to the meeting so that the required information can be made avallable at the meeting. 

14. The complete parilculars of the venue of the Meeting Including route map and prominent landmarl< for easy location is 

enclosed for the convenience of the Members. The same has been posted on the website of the Company 
•www.kabenlnfra.c,om", 

1.S. SEBI has made It mandatory for every participant In capital Market to furnish Income Tax Permanent Aa:ount Number 

(PAN). Members holding shares In electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit their PAN/Bank ACU1unt particulars 

to their Oeposltory Participants with whom they are maintaining their demat aa:ount:s. Members holding shares 1n 

physical form can submit their PAN/Bank Account Partl<:1.1lars detalls to the Company/RTA for registration of 
transmlssloll/transposition, deletion of name etc. 4 



16. Where there are Joint-holders of any share, any one of such persol'ls may vote at the AGM efther personalty or by p1oxy 
In respect of such shares as ff he were solely enlltled thereto and if more than one of such Joint-holders be present at the 
AGM either personally or by proxy then that one of the said persons so present whose name appears first In the order of 
names will be entitled to vote. 

17. Members may also note that the notice of this AGM wtll also be available en the Company's website 
•www.llall:l!nlnfra.com• for their download. 

18. All documents referred to In the notice and the explanatory statement and the statutory re£isters maintained under the 

Companies Act, 2013 are open for lnspectron by the members at the resrstered offloe of the Company on all t11e working 
days (that Is, l!llcept Saturdays, Sund;iys and Public Holidays) during normal business hours up to the date of the AGM. 
Members seeking to inspect such documents can send an em all to the Company Seaetary. The aforesaid documents will 
be also available for lnspectlon by members at the AGM. 

19. In compliance with the provisions of the Act and circulars/ notification Issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs ('MCA') 

from time to tlme, If any, the Notice of thls AGM along with other relevant documents are beins sent to those members 
whose names are recorded in the Reelster of Members/R~lster of Beneflclal owners as on Friday, August 1S, 202S 
through electronic mode and whose emall addresses are registered with the Company/ depositories. 

Therefore, those members, whose email address ls not resrstered with the Company or with their respective depository 
participant/s, and who wish to receive the notice of tl\ls AGM along with other relevant documents and all other 
communication sent by tile Company, from tlme to time, shall get their email address reglstered/updated by following 
the steps as glven below: 

a. For members holding shares in physical form, please send a scanned copy of a signed request Jetter mentlonlng your 

follo number, complete address, emall address to be re;!istered along with scanned self· attested copy of the PAN and any 
document Csuch as DrMng llcense, Passport, Bank Statement, MOHAR) supportin8 lhe registered address of the member, 
by email to the RTA's emall address at: rta@cbmsl.com. 

b. For the members holding shares In demat form, please update your emall address throush your respective depository 
partlclpant{s). 

20. Share Transfer permitted only in Oemat: In terms of the applicable provisions of Act read with rules made thereunder read 
with appllcable provisions of the SEBI Listing Resulalions, the transfer of sec~rilies of Company shall not be processed 
unless the securities are held In dematerialized form with their respective Depository Partlclpant. In view of the above and 

to avall the beneftts of dematerlallzatlon and ease portfolio management, members are requested to consider 
dematerlallzatlon of the shares held by them in physical form. 

21. Shareholders' Communication: Members are requested to send all communtcatlons relating to shares, change of address, 
bank details, email address et<:. to the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents at the following address: M/s. Maheshwart 
Datamatlcs Pvt. Ltd., 23 R,N Mukhe~ee Road, 5th Floor Kollcata -100 001. 
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22. E-votina: Voting through electronic means 

I. In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 ohhe Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 20 of the Companies (Management 

and Administration) Rules, 2014, and Regulation 44 of SE81 IListina Obligations & Dlsclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015 as amended from time to time, the Company is pleased to provide Members the faclllty to ex~cise their tfght to 

vote at the AGM of the Company by electronic means and the business may be transacted through E-votlng Serllfces 
provided by National Securities Depository Limited (NSDLJ. 

The faclllty for voting through ballot/polling papers shall also be made avallable at the venue of Annual General Meeting 

and the members who have not cast their votes by remote e-voting shall be able to vote at the meeting through 
ballot/polling paper. 

II. The E...-oting period commences on Wednesday, September 17, 2025 (9:00 am) and ends on Friday, September 19, 2025 

(5:00 pm). Curing this period shareholders of the Company, holding shares either In physical form or in dematerlallzed 

form, as on the cut-off date of September 13, 2~25 may cast their vote electronically. The E·votlng module shall be disabled 

by NSDL for voting thereafter. Once tJie vote on a resolutlon Is cast by the shareholder, the shareholder shall not be 
allowed to change It subsequenUy. 

Ill. The voting rights of shareholders shall be In proportion to their shares of the paid-up Equity Share Capital of the Company 

as on the cut-off date September 13, 20is. 

N. M/s. Hemani Shanna & Associates, Ptacticins Company Secretary, Kolkata {Practicing No. 17411), has been appointed as 

the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the E-votina process 1n a fair and tr.msparent manner. 

v. The faclllty for voting through ballot paper shall be made allllilable at the AGM and the members attending the meetlng 

who have not cast their vote by remote E·VOtlng shall be able to eKercise their right at the meeting through ballot paper. 

The members who have cast their vote by remote E·voting prfor to the AGM may also attend the AGM but shall not be 
entitled to cast their vote ag.ln. 

VI. The notice of Annual General Meeting will be sent to the members, whose names appear In the register of members/ 
depositories as at dosing hours of business, on Auaust 15, 2025. 

VII. The shareholders shall have one vote per equity share held by them as on the cut-<lff date of September 13, 2025. The 

facility of E-voting would be prollfded once for every folio/ client id, Irrespective of the number of joint holders. The voting 

rights of shareholders shall be 1n proportion to their shares of the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the 

cut-off date of September 13, 2025. 

Ill. Since the Company is tequired to provide members the faclllty to cast their vote by electronic means, shareholders of the 

Company, holding shares either In physlcal form or in demateriallzed form, as on the cut-off date of September 13, 2025 

and not casting their vote electronically, may only cast their vote at the Annual General Meetlng. 

I)(, Notice of the AGM along with attendance slip, proxy form along with the process, lnstructions and the manner of 

conducttns E-votlng Is being sent electronlcally to all the members whose e-mail IDs are registered with the Company/ 

Depository Participant(s). For members who request for a hard copy and for those who have not registered their email 
address, physlc:al copies of the same are be ins sent through the permitted mode. 
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X. Investors who became members of 1he Company subsequent to the dispatch of the Nottce / Emal! and hold the shares as 

on the cut-off elate 1.e. September 13, 2025 are reque.stecl to sen cl the written/ emall communication to the Company at 

"lnfg@kafze11lnfra.com" by mentionins their Folio No./ OP 10 and Cllent 10 to obtain the Login-ID and Password for E­
votlng. 

THE INSTIIUcnONS FOR MIMBERS FOR REMOTE £-VOTJNG ARE AS UNDER:-

The remote e"'llotlng period bli1n, on WedneMlay, Septemb« 17, 2025 at 9:00 A.M. ind end, on Friday, September 19, 
2025 it 5:00 P.M. The remote f>-votlng madull' shall be dtsabled by NSDf. for votln&thereafter. Thl' Membel'$, wflose names 
appear In tl1e Rqister of M,mb,rs / Beneflc!al Owners as on the record dau- (cut-off date) I.e. Friday, Set,tember 13, 2025 
may cast their ~ta electronlcalfv. 'The voting rl&flt of sheN1holden shall be In propol'tlon to thefr share In the palcJ.up equity 
share aipltal of thl' Company non the cut.off date, belnc Se,,tember 13, 202s. 

How do I vote electranlcally using NSDL &-Voting System? 

The way to vote elect1onically on NSDL e-Votlng system consists of "Two Steps¥ which are mentioned below: 

SWp 1: Access to NSDL e-Votlng system 

Al Lov.ln method for e-Votlng for lndMdual shareholders holding securltlH In demat mode 

In 1erms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Vo11ng facility provided by Listed Companies, lndMclual shareholders 
holding securities In demat mode are allowed to vote throust, their demat account maintained with Depositories and 
Depository Partlclpan1s. Shareholders are advised to up elate their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts ln order 
to access e-Voting fadllty. 

Login method for lndlvldual shareholders holdlns securities In demat mode ls given below: 

Type of shaN!flofders Login Method 
lndhlfdual Shareholders holding 1. EMisting IDeAS user can llfslt 1he e-Servlces website of NSDL Viz. 
securities In clemat mode with NSDL. https://eservlces.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a moblle. On 

the e•Services home page click on the "Benafldal OWnet" icon under •1.og1n• 
which is alll!ilable under 'IDeAS' Section , this wlll prompt you to enter your 
eMisting User 10 and Password. After successful authentication, you wlll be able 
to see e-Voting servlces under Value added services. Click on "Acaess to e­
Votln.g" under e-votlng services and you will be able 10 see e-Voting page. Olck 
on Company name or a-Voting service prO\llder I.e. NSDL and you wlll be re• 
directed to e-Votlng website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remo1e 
e-Votlng period. 

2. If you are not registered for IOeAS ~ervlces, option to re81ster Is av.illable at 
https://eservlces.nsdl.com. Select "Re&lstff Online for lo.AS Portal" or clldt 
at https://eserllfoes.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/ldeasOlrectReg.Jsp 

3. Visit the e-Votlng website of NSOL. Open web browser by typing the foliowlng 
URL: https:/ /www.evo1lng.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a 
mob lie. Once the home page of e-Votlng system Is launched, cllclc on the iccn 
"Login" which I, available under 'Shareholder/Member' Section. A new screen 
will open. You will have to enter your User ID (1.e. your siKteen-digit demat 
account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as 
shown on the screen. After successful au1hentlcation, you wlll be redlre<:ted to 
NSDL Oeposltory site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on Company 
name or e-Votfng service prO\llder I.e. NSDL and you wlll be redirected toe­
Votlng website of NSDL for casting your vote durfng the remote e-Votlng 
period. 
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4. Shareholders/Members c.,n also download NSOL Mobile App "NSDL Speede" 
facility by scanning the QR code mentioned below for seamless voting 
experience. 

NSt>L Mobtle App Is cvallable on 

• Google Play 

Individual Shareholders holdlng 1. ElCistlng users who have opted for Easl / Easiest, they can logln through their 
securities in demat mode with COSL user Id and passworel. Option will be made available to reach e·Votlng page 

without any further authentication. The URL for users to lo gin to Eas1 / Easiest 
are lmps://web.<>dsllndla.com/mvealli/home/logln or www.c:d$11ndla.com 
and dick on New System Myeasl. 

Individual Shareholders (holding 
secutilles In demat mode) logln 
through their depository pan!dpants 

2. After suocessful login of £asl/Easlest the us« WIii be.also able to see the E 
Voting Menu. The Menu wlll have llnks of e-Vollns service provider i.e. NSOL 
Oick on NSOL to cast your vote. 

3. If the user is not registered for Easl/Easlest, option to register Is available at 
httl)S:/ /web.cdslindia.com/myeasl/Reglstrallan/EaslReglstratlon 

4. Alternatively, the user can directly aca!s.s e-Vollng page by providing demat 
Account Number and PAN No. from a link in www.alsllnd1a.<:0m home page. 
The system wlll authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & 
Email ;is re<:0rded In the demat Account After successful authentication, user 
wlll be provided finks for the respe<:1lve ESP i.e. NSOL where the e-Votlng Is In 
progress. 

You can also loain usina the login aedenllals of your de mat account through your 
Depository Participant registered with NSOL/CDSL for e-Votlng laclllty. Upon 
logging in, you will be able to see e-Votlng option. CIiek on e-Votlng option, you will 
be redirected to NSOl/CDSL Depository site after suocessful authentication, 
wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on Company name or e-Votlng service 
provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Votlng website of NSDL for 
casting your vote durin.g the remote e-Votlng period 

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User 10 and Forget Password 
option available at abovementloned website. 

Helpdesk for lndMdual Shareholders holding l'KUrtlSes In demilt mode for any cechnlcal lssu~ Mated to lo&fn througfl 
Depository I.e. NSDL and CDSL 

t.cetn type Helpdesk detail& 
Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat Members facing any technical Issue In logln can contact NSOL 
mode with NSDL helpdesk by sending a reque.rt at e110tl111@nsd1.co.ln or call at 

toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30 
lndlvfdual Shareholders holding securities in demat Members facing any technlc.,I Issue In logln can·contact CDSL 
mode with CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 

h!:!R~nk,1~!rwr.dltll!liJl01U1,,am or contact at 022· 23058738 
or022·230S8S42-43 
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8) Latin Metflod fO!' e-Votln, sharfflolders otfler than Individual shareholden holding securities In de mat mode and 
shareholders hold Ing securities In ph~I mode. 

How to lag•ln to NSOL e-Vot!ne website? 

1. Visit the e-Votlng website of NSOL. Open web browser by typing the followlng URL: https:f/www.evotlng.nMll.com/ 
either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. 

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system Is launched, click on the icon "Lottn• which ls available under 
'Shareholder/Member' Section. 

3. A new screer1 will open. You wlll have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on 
the screen. 

Altematlvely, If you are registered for NSDl eservlces I.e. IDEAS, you can log-1n at https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your 
existing IDEAS login. Once you log-In to NSOL eservlces after using your lcs-tn credentials, click on e-Vollng and vou can 
proceed to Step 2 I.e. cast your vote electrontcally. 
4. Your User ID details are giYef'I below: 

Manner of holdtng she"'s I.e. Dem at (NSDL or CD5L} Your User ID ls: 
or Phv,lc.111 
al For Members who hold shares In demat account 8 Character OP 10 followed by 8 Digit Client 10. 
with N5DL 

For example if your DP ID ts IN3oo••• and Client ID Is 
12•••• .. then your user ID Is IN300 .. •12 .. •• .. 

b) For Members who hold shares In demat aoc»unt 16 Digit Beneffdarv ID 
with CDSl 

c) For Membe1s holding shares in Physical Form. 

For eJ(ample if your Beneficiary 10 Is 12•• .... •••••••• 
then your user 10 Is 12•••••••••••••• 

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered with 
the Company •. 

For e><ample if folio number is 001 ••• and EVEN Is 
1014S6 then user ID is 101456001 ••• 

s. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below: 

a. If you are already registered for ~Voting, then you can user your existing password to logtn ~nd cast your 
vote. 

b. If you are using N5DL e-Votlng system for the first time, you w111 need to retrieve the 'initial password' which 
was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your 'initial password', you need to enter the 'lnltlal password' 
and the system will force you to change your password. 

How to retrieve your 'lnltlal password'? 
(I) If your email ID Is registered In your de mat account or with the Company, your 'initial password' Is communicated 
to you on your ematl 10. Trace the email sent to you from NSOl from your mailbox. Open the email and open the 
attachment I.e. a .pdf ffle. Open the .pelf flle. The password to open the .pdf Ale Is your 8 digit client 10 for NSOL 
account, last 8 digits of dient ID for CD SL account or folio number for shares held In physical form. The .pelf flle contains 
your 'User ID' and your 'initial password'. 
(11) If your email 10 is not r~istered, please follow steps mentioned below In process fO!' those !hareholdel'$ whose 
eman Ids are not re.glstered. 
If you are unable to retrieve or have not received lhe "Initial password" or have forgotten your pa5sword: 
a) CIiek on "forgot User Dmlls/Penwcrd?"(lf you are holding shares tn your demat account with NSOl or COSL) 

option available on www.evotlng.nsdl.oom. 
9 2'1rH ANNUAL RfJPORTZ024-2a ~ 
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bl Physlc;JI User Reset Password?" (If you are holding shares ir1 physical mode) option available on 
www.evot1n1.nsdl.com. 
c) If VoU are stlfl unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you car1 send a request at evoting@nsdl.co.lr1 
mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your name and your registered address etc. 
d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on thee-Voting system of 
NSOL. 

6. After entering your password, tick on Agree to 'Terms and Conditions• by selecting on the check box. 
7. Now, you wlll have to cllck on "login" button. 
a. After you click on the "Login" button, Home page of e-votin2 will open. 

Step 2: can your vote elec:tronlc.iltv on NSDL e-Votln& system. 

How to cast your vote eleetronlcalty on N5DL e-Votlr1g system? 
1. After SUC(essful login at Step 1, VoU wlll be able to see all the companies "EVEN" In whl<:h you are holding shares 

and whose voting cycle. 
2. Select "EVEN" of Company for which you wlsh to cast your vote during the remote e-Votlng period now you are 

ready for e-Votlng as the Voting page opens. 
3. cast your vote by selecting approp(late options I.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares for whid'I 

you wish lo cast your vote and cllck on •submit" and also "Conftrm• when prompted. 
4. Upon confirmation, the messase "Vote cast successfully' will be displayed. 
s. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation page. 
6. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 

General Guidelines for sh~rehofders 

1. lnstltutlonal shareholders (I.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) 
of the rel4!Vant Board Resolution/ Authorlty letter etc. with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized 
slgnatory(les) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to sharmahemant619@gmail.com. Please mention 
the e-mail ID of Scrutinizer> with a copy marked to evotlng@nsdl.to.in. 

2. It Is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost tare to keep your 
password confldential. Login to the e-votlng website will be disabled upon flve unsuOO!ssful attempts to key In the 
correct password. In such an event, you \11111 need to go through the •forgot User 

Details/Password?" or "Physical User Re.set Password?" option available on www.evotlng.nsdl.com to reset the 
password. 

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-votlng user manual 
for Shareholders available at the download Section of www.evotlng.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 
1800 22 44 30 or send a request to Ms. Pallalli Mhatre, Manager, NSDL at evotlng@nsdl.co.in. 

Process for those shareholders whose em all Ids are not re8,151ered with the d'epo:sltorles/ Comp;nyfor procurlnc us« Id and 
password and n!gblratlon of e mell Id~ for e-11olln, for the resolutlons set out In 1hls notice: 

1. In case shares are held ln physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholde,, scanned copy of the share 
certlflcate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar 
Card) by emall to lnfo@kaizeninfra.com 

2. In case shares are held ln demat mode, please provide DPIC>-ato (16 digit DPIC> + CLIO or 16 digit beneftclarv ID), Name, 
dlent master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), AA DHAR (self.;itte1ted 
scanned copy of Aadhar card) to info@kalzenlnfra.com. lfyou are an Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode, 
you are requested to refer to the login method eHplalned at step 1 (A) I.e. login method for e-Votlng for lndMduaJ shareholders 
holding se(Uritles in demal mode. 

3. Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evotlng@nsdl.co.ln for procuring user Id and password for e­
vollng by pralliding above mentioned documents. 10 Zf1fH ANNUAi. BEPOlrr l()lll,,2025 
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4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 one-Voting facility provided by Usted Companies, Individual shareholders 
holding securities in demal mode are allowe<I to vote through their demat account maintained with Deposltcrles and 

Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and email ID correctly In their demat 
account in order to aa:e.ss e-Votlng faclllty. 

)Cl. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and E-votlng user manual 

for Shareholders available at the Downloads Section of www.evotlng.nsdl.com. 

lCIJ. If you are already registered with NSDL for E-votlng then you can use your existing user 10 and password/PIN for casting 
your vote. 

lCIII. You can also update your mobile number and e-mall Id In the user proflle detatls of the folio which mav be used for sending 
future communlcatlon(sJ. 

lCIV. The Scrutinizer shall within a pe!1od not exceeding one (1) working days from the conclusion of the E-vollng period unbloclc 

the votes In the presence of at least two (2) witnesses not In the employment of the Company and make a Scrutlnlzer's 
Report of the votes cast In favor or against, If any, forthwith to the Olalrman of the Company. 

XV. The Results shall be declared on or after the AGM of the Company. The Results declared along with the Scrutinizer's Report 
shall be placed on the Company's website "www.kalzenlnfra.com• and on the website of NSDL within two (2) days of 

passing of the resolutions at the AGM of the Company and communicated to the SSE Umlted and National Depository 
Services limited. 

23. lhe Notice of the 20th AGM and lnstructlon.s foor e-votlng. alone with the Attendance Slip and Proxy Form, Is being sent by 

electronic mode to all the members whose email address are registered with the Company/Depository Partlclpant(s), 
unless a member has requested a hard copy of the same. For membei's who have not registered their e-mail addresses, 
physical copies of the documents are being sent by the permitted mode. 

24. Members may also note that the Notice of the 20th AGM and the Annual Report 2024-202S wlll be avallable on the 

Company's website •www.kalzeninfra.com•. The physlcal copies of the dowments will also be available at the 

Company's registered office for inspe<:tion on all working days except Saturday between 10:00 am to 1:00 pm upto 
September 13, 2025. Members who require communication In physlcal form in addition to e-communlcatlon, or have any 

other queries, may write to us at •www.kalzenlnfra.com•. 

2S. Disclosure pursuant to Section 196(4) of the Companies Act, 2013, the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure 

Requirements), Regulations, 2015, and Secretarial Standards-2, with respect to Directors seeklna re­
appointment/appointment In the forthccmlng Annual General Meeting is annexed. The Directors have furnished 

consent/declaration for their appointment/re-appointment as required under the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules 
thereunder. 

26. Thefacllity for making/varying/cancelling nomination Is avallable Is available to lndlvlduals holding shares in the Company. 

Nominations can be made In Form-SH.13 and any variation /cancellation thereof can be made by giving notlce In Form­
SH.14, prescribed under the Companies (Share capita! & Debentures) Rules, 2014 for the purpose. The forms can be 

obtained from the Company/RTA of frcm the website of Ministry of Corporate Affairs at www.mca.gov.in. 

27. The Min ls try of Corporates Affairs, Government of India has Introduced a 'Green Initiative In the Corpor,1te Governance' 

by allowin.g paperless compliances by the companies for service of documents to their members through electronic mode, 
which wlll be In compliance with Section 20 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
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In vlew of the above, the Company has communicated through its Annual Report and also through separate lett~s 
requesting Members to register their Email Id with tl,e C.Ompany/RA, However, membe,s who are desirous of obtaining 
physical copies of Notices, Postal Ballots, Annual Reports and other documents mav forward their written request to the 
Company/RTA for1hesame. 

28. Members seeking any information or clarlflcallons on the Annual Report are requested 10 send in written queries to the 
Company at least one week before the date of the meeting. This would enable the Company to compile the Information 
and prolllde replies at the meeting. 

29. The sha,es of the Company are under compulsory demat 11st of SE81 w.e.f October 01, 2000. The trading In equity shares 
can be only in demat form. In case you do not hold shares in demat form, you may do so by opening account with a 
depository participant and complete dematerlallzatlon formalllles. 

MEMBERS HOLDING SHAAES lN PHYSICAL l'CRM ARE REQUESTED TO CONVERT THEIR HOLDING TO DEMATI:RIALISED 
f<lRM THROUGH DEPOSITORY PARl'ICPAHT. 

30. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained under Section 170 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, the Resister of Contracts or arrangements 1n which the Directors are interested under Section 189 
of the Companies Att, 2013 WIii be available for Inspection at the AGM. 

31. A route map ls attach~ at the end of this notice. 
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E'XPLAHATORV STATEMENT I Punuant to Section 102 oftbe Companies A¢ 20131 

The statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 set out all material facts relating to the Speclal Business 
mentioned in the accompanying Notice Is as follows: 

ltemNo.3 

Appointment of Mrs. Ro:shnl Gadla (DIN: 066$27731 as an Additional Dlre1;Wr (Non•EKIN:lltlve, Independent): 

Mrs. Roshni Gadla {DIN: 066S2773) was appointed as an Additional Independent Director of the Company by the Board of 
Directors with effect from July 07, 2025, In the capacity of Independent Director for a term of 5 years with effect from July 
07, 2025, subject to the ,1pproval of1he Members of the Company. In terms of Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013, the 
Board Governance, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board have reoommended the appointment of Mrs. 
Roshnl Gadia (DIN: 06652773) as ,1n Independent Director pursuant to the pr0\!1slons of Sectlol\S 149 and 152 of the 
Companies Act, 2013. As per Se<:tlon 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and whose appointment was subsequently ratified 
by the members by passing Spedal Resolution through Annual General Meeting dated September 20, 202S. 

The Company has also received a notice In writing from a member proposlns the candidature of Mrs. Roshni Gadia (DIN: 
06652773), to be appointed as Director of the Company. The Company has receilll!d a declaration from Mrs. Roshni Gadia 
that she Is meeting with the criteria of Independence as provided In Section 149(61 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
Rl!8Ulallon 16 of SE81 l1sllns Resulations. Further, the Company has also received a notice In writing under Section 160 of 
the Act from a member proposing his candidature f'Or the office of Director In the Company. Further, the Company has also 
received Mrs. Roshnl Gadla, consent to act as a Director In te1ms of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and a 
declaration that he Is not dlsquallfll!d from being appointed as a Director ln terms of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 
2013. 

In the opinion of the Board, Mrs. Roshnl Gadla fulftls the conditions specified In the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made 
thereunder and SEBI (Listing Obllgatlons and Disclosure Requirements) Resulatlons, 2015, for her appointm!!flt as an 
Independent Director of the Company and she Is Independent of the management. Col\51dertng Mrs. Roshni Gadia 
knowledge and eKpefience, the Board of Directors Is of the opinion that it would be In tl1e Interest of the Company to 
appoint him as an lndepend!!flt Director f'Or a penod offl11e years with effect from AGM. 

Copy of letter of appointment of Mrs. Roshnl Gadla, smlng out the terms and condltlons of appointment Is being made 
avallable for Inspection by ttie members through electronic mode. Additional information In respect of Mrs. Roshni Gadia, 
pursuant to Regulation 36 of SEBI (Usllns Obllgallons and Dlsdosure Requirements) Regula11ons, 201S and the Seaetarial 
Standards on General Meetings (SS-2), Is given at Annexure A to this Notice. 

The Board oonsidered the re-appointment of Mrs. Roshnl Gadia as Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company 
and Is of opinion that it would be of lmmeflse beneftt to the Company. Acalrdlngly, the Board of Directors recommends 
her appointment as a Non-Execvtlve Independent Director of the Company, who wlll not be llable to retire by rotation, f'Or 
a period of Five (5) consecutJve years effecting from this AGM. 

Details required under Resulatlon 36(3) of the SEBI (listing Obllgatlons and Olsdosure Requirements! Resulatlons, 201S 
and the Secretarial Standards are provided below: 

Brief re511m& and e1e11ert1se of Mrs. Roshnl Gadla: 

Mrs. Roshnl Gad la a quallfled Company Secretary from ICSt. She has a work e)q)erience in diversified areas Including Corporate 
Laws, Corporate Governance, Tax, !Tes and amongst other servl~s across a wide range of industri.es. 

Disclosure of relatlonshlp between Directors lnter-se, Manager and Key Managerial Personnel: Mrs. Roshnl Gadla Is not 
related to any Director, Manager or ~MP of the Company. 

Date of flrst appointment on the Board: July 07, 2025 
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Names of llsted entities (other than M/s. Katzen A3ro lnfrabulld Ltd.) In which Mrs. Roshnl Gadla ls holding Dlre<:torshlp/ 
Chairmanship and the Chairmanship/Membership of Board Committees: 

F CIN Compal\y Name Dllsf.llnatlon 

I, 1282.19W91.997P«ll33457 M/~ Jullon AP"' lnfn"""' Umltffl NorH:x<!cutive 
lnlle"IDdfflt Ofrtctcr 

Details of shareholdin8 of Mrs. Roshnl Gadla In M/s. Kalzen Agro lnfrabuild Ltd.: NII 

No. of Board Meetings attended during the year: NII 

Orlalnal Date of 
l\jlpolntment 

07 /07 /lll25 

Last drawn remuneration/ Details of remuneration sought to be paid: Mrs. Roshnl Gadla shall be entltled to sitting fee as 
may be decided by the Board from time to time for attending meetings of the Board of Directors and Commlttee(s) thereof. 

Extl!pt, Mrs. Roshni Gadia, beins an appointee, none of the Director and key Managerlal Personnel of the Company and 
their relatlves Is ooncerned or interested, flnanclal or otherwise In the resolution as set out In Item no. 3. 

The Board of Dlre<:1ors therefore, recommends the resolution for appointment of Mrs. Roshni Gadia as an Independent 
Director of the Company for approval of the members by passing the Ordinary Resolutlon. 

Appointment of Mrs. Kalpana Tekrl'wal (DIN: 11170688) as an Addition~! Dlr«tor (Non-Executlvt, Independent): 

Mrs. Kalpan;i Tekrlwal(DIN: 11170688) was appointed as an Addition al Independent Director of the Company by the Board 
of Directors with effect from July 07, 2025, In the capacity of Independent Director for a term of S years with effect from 
July 07, 2025, subject to the approval of the Members of the Company. In terms of Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013, 
the Board G011ernance, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board have recommended the appointment of 
Mrs. Kalpana Tekr1wal, as an Independent Director pursuant to the provisions of See11ons 149 and 152 of the Companies 
Act, 2013. As per Section 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and whose appointment was subsequently ratified by the 
members by passln.g Special Re$Olutlon 1hrough Annual General Meeting dated September 20, 2025. 

The Company has also r=lved a notloe In writing from a member proposing tt,e candidature of Mrs. Kalpana Tekrlwal to 
be appointed as an Independent Director of the Company. The Company has r~lved a declaration from Mrs. Kalpana 
Teknwal that she Is meeting wlth the ctlterla of independet1tl! as provlded In Settlon 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 
and Regulation 16 of SEBl llstlng Regulations. Furth!!!', the Company ha.s also received a notice Jn writing under Section 160 
of the Act from a member proposlns his candidature for the office of Director In the Company. Further, the Company has 
also received Mrs. Kalpana Tekriwal cxmsent to act as a Director In 1erms of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and a 
dedaratlon that she Is not disqualified from being appointed as a Director In terms of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 
2013. 

In the opinion of the Board, Mrs. Kalpana Tekrtwal fulflls the conditions specified in tlie Companies Act, 2013 and rules 
made there und!!I' and SEBI (Listing Obltgatlons and Dlsdosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, for her appointment as 
an Independent Director of the Company and she Is Independent of the management. Considering Mrs. Kalpana Tekriwal 
knowledge and experience, the Board of Directors is of the opinion that It would be In the Interest of the Company to 
appoint him as an Independent Director for a period of five years wltt, effect from AGM. 

Copy of letter of appointment of Mrs. Kalpana Tekrlwal, setting out the terms and oonditions of appointment ts being made 
avallable for lnspeC11on by the members throush electronic mode. Additional Information in respect of Mrs. Kalpana 
Tekrlwal, pursuant 10 Resulation 36 of SEBI (Ustlng Obllgatlons and Dlsclosure Requirements) R~ulatlons, 201S and the 
Secretarial Standards on Gef'leral Meetings (SS-2), Is given at "Annexure to thii. Notitl!". 
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The Board oonsldered 1he re..ippoln1ment of Mrs. Kalpana Tekrlwal, as Non-Executive Independent Director of the 
Company and Is of opinion 1hat It would be of Immense benefit to the Company. Aa:ordingly, the Board of Directors 
reoommends his appointment as a Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company, who will not be liable to retire by 
rotation, for a period of Five (S) ccnsecutive years effecting from this AGM. 

Details required under Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
ancl the Secretarlal Standards are provided below: 

8tle1' resume arwl e1q1ertbe of Mrs. Katpana Tekrtwal: 

Mrs. Kalpana Tekriwal is a qualified Company Secretary from ICSI. She has a work experience in diversified areas and complies 
with flnanclal and legal requirements, and maintain high standards of corporate governanre. 

Dlsdosure of relationship between Directors inter-se, Manager and Key Managerial Personnel: Mrs. Kalpana Tekriwal Is not 
related to anv Director, Manager or KMF> of the Company. 

Date offlrst appointment on the Board: July 07, 202S 

Names of Listed entitles (other than M/s. Kaizen Agro lnfrabuild ltd.) in which Mrs. Kalpana Tekriwal is holding Directorship/ 
Chairmanship and the Chairmanship/Membership of Board Committees: 

SI. No, CIN Company Name Designation 

1. l28219V/8l997PLC0834S7 M/s.Jullon "8n> lnfratach Umlled Non°h8Clltlve 
lndeoendent Dl,ector 

Detalfs of shareholding of Mrs. Kalpana Tekrlwal In M/s. Katzen Agro lnfrabullcl Ltcl.: NII 

No. of Board Meetings attended during 1he year: NII 

Original Daw Gf 
Apj)Olntment 

07/07/lO'iS 

Last drawn remuneration/ Oetalls of remuneration sought to be paid: Mrs. Kalpana Tekrlwal shall be entitled to sitting fee 
as may be decided by the Board from 11me 10 time for attending meetings of the Board of Olrectors and C.Ommlttee(s) 
thereof. 

Except, Mrs. Kalpana Tekriwal, being an appointee, none of the Director and Key Managerlal Personnel of the Company 
and their relatives Is concerned or ln1erested, flnanclal or otherwise In 1he resolution as set out In Item no. 4. 

The Board of Directors 1herefore, recommends the resolution for ,1ppolntment of Mrs. Kalpana Tekr1wal as an Independent 
Director of the Comp,1ny for approval of the members by passing the Ordinary Resolutlon. 

Item No.s 

To appoint Secretarfal Auditors of 1he Comp ant 

The Board at its meeting held an Marcli 29, 2025, based on recommendation of the Audit Committee, after ellclluatlng and 
considering various factors such as Industry experience, competency of the audit 1eam, efficiency In conduct of 
audit, Independence, etc., has approved the appointment of M/5. Hemant Sharma & Associates, Pr.ictlctng C.Ompany 
Se<:retarles (Membership No: A42264) as Secretarial Auditors of 1he C.Ompany for a term of five consecutive 
years commencing from FY 202S-26 tlll FY 2029-30, subject 10 approval of the Members. 
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The appointment of Secretarl.il Auditors !hall be In terms of the amended Regulatlon 24A of the SEBI Listing Regulations 
llfde SEBI Notlftcatlon dated De<:ember 12, 2024 and prol/lslons of Section 204 of the Act and Rule 9 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Manasertal Personnel) Rules, 2014. M/s. Hemani Sharma & Associates is a well-known 
flrm of Practicing Company SEQ-etarles. 

M/s. Hemant Sharma & Associates has conflnmed that the flrm ls not dlsquallfied and is eligible to be appointed as 
Secretarial Auditors In terms of Regulation 24A of1he SEBI Listing Regulations. The ser.ices to be rendered by M/s. Hemani 
Sharma & Associates as Secretarial Auditors Is w1th1n the purvlew of the said regulallon read with SEBI circular no. 
SEBI/ HO/C!'D/CFD-PoD-2/CIR/P/2024/1SS dated De<:ember 31, 2024. 

Resfs1ered Office: 
Oiatterjee lnternatlonal Centre, 
33A Chowrlnghee Road, 
6tl'I Floor, Room No. 6A, 
RU$$el Stteet 
Kolkata- 700071 

Dated:August 21, 202S 
Place: Kolkata 

%6 

By Ordar ohhe Board 
For Kallen Agro lnfrabulld limited 

Nikita Raterla 
(Company Secmary) 

Mem No. 36115 
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ANNE>IUR£ TO NOTICE 

Details of me Directors Sefflng Appointment/ Re-Appointment rn f'orthcomlnc Annual General Meeting. (In pursuan~ of 
Reculalfon 36 (3) of SEBI (lhtln, Obligations & Dis closure Requlremenu) ResulatloM, 2015. 

Name of the Mr. Pawan Kumar JhunJhunwala Mrs. Roshnl Gadfa Mrs. Kalpana Tekrfwal 
Director 

Date of Birth 15/08/1971 13/09/1991 06/07/1'!!93 
~wot 30/12/2022 07/07/2025 07/07/2025 

Q1.1aliflcatlon Hfgher Secondary & 8,eom OJ.ial~led Company Secretary Q.uallfted Company Secretary 

Expertise In Mr. Pawan Kumar Jhunjhunwala aged Mrs. Kall)ilna Tekrlwal, a quallfled Mrs. Kalpana Tekrfwal ls a qualified 
spedflc funeilonal about51 years G Gri,duateand Is having Companv Sec,etary from ICSI. She Company Seeretary from ICS1. She 
aren Business management. manacerlal and has • work experience in has a work ekper1ence In 

administrative eMperfence. He has a diversified areas including dtverslfled areas and complies wtth 
good sense of knowledge & Corporate Laws, C<Jrporate financial and 111881 requirements, 
understanding In the ~lopment of Governance., TeX, ITes and and maintain high S1andarcls of 
8uslne.1Sand operatlonal slrall!gy of the amongs, other services ac,oss a corporate g=mance. 
Coml)any. wide range of Industries. 

Ust of other Julien P4/0 lnfrotech Umtted Julien f>fto lnfretech Umtted 
Companies In NII Gadla Agl'itrade Prl~ llmttl!d 
which Dlrec1C1t$hlp 
he4d 

Chairman/ Juhen Agro lnfraffi:h Limited Jullen Agro lnfratech timtted 
Membe.-of th1e 
Committees of the 
Board of other 

NII Comp.iinles on 
which fie Is a 
dfN!Ctor 

No. of Equity 
Shares held In the NII NII NII 
Company 
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DIRECTORS REPORT 

Dear Shareholders. 

KAIZEN AGRO INFRABUILD UMITEO 

Your Directors are pleased in presenting their 2oth (Twentieth) Directors Report on the business and operations 

of your Company together w1th the Audited Financial Statements and the Auditors' Report of yo1.1r Company for 
the financial year ended March 31, 2025. 

The PDF version of the Report is also available on the website of the Company at "www.blzenlnfra.com". 

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL HIGHUGHTS 

(Am01Jnt fn lacs} 

Partlcul:ars Year Ended Year Ended 
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 

Revenue from Operations 1,967.64 3,250.89 
Other Income 97.69 17.74 
Total Income 2,065.33 3,268.63 
Profit/ (Loss) before Depreciation, Interest & Taxation 55.96 19.38 
Less: Interest 1.30 3.73 
Less: Depreciation & Amortization 2.07 1.57 
Proflt/(Loss) Before £xceptlonal and Extra ordinary items & 

52.59 14.08 Tax 

Leu: Provision for taxation 13.73 3.46 
Provision for taxation for earlfer year - -
Deferred TaK (0.07) 0.20 
Profit/ (Loss} after taxation 38.92 10.19 

~ The above-mentioned flgures in the Flnanclal Hlahflght is based on the Report of Balance Sheet. The 

Company has prepared the financial statement In accordance with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 

Rules. 201S prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY 

During the year under review the Company has recorded a turnover of Rs. 1,967.64/- {Amount In Lacs) in the 

financial year. The company has recorded a net profit of Rs. 38.92/· (Amount In Lacs) a$ compared to previous 
year of profit Rs.10.19/· (Amount In Lacs). 

The Company In spite of many challenges and competitive market conditions W3$ able to achieve satisfactory 

sales and Net Profit (After Tax) flgures. The management Is of the opinion that Tn the oomlng future as the overall 
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situation seems to be to be Improving and Directors are optimistic about Company's business and hopeful of 

better performance with increased revenue In next year. 

SHARE CAPITAL 

The Company has 514,148,880 Equity Share Capital for the Flnanclal Year ended March 31, 2025. The Company 

has not increased its Capita! throughout the year. 

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS 

There has been no change in the nature of the business of your Company during the flnanclal year ended March 
31, 2025. 

CHANGE IN niE REGlmRED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY 

There has been no change in the registered office of the Company durlng the flnanc1al year 2024·25. 

CAPITAL STRUCTURE 
During the year under consideration, the Company has not changed its capital structure and the authorized and 

paid-up share capltal as on March 31, 2025 stands as follows 

The Authorized Share Capital of the Companv during the financial year 2024-2 Is Rs. 51,50,00,000/· (Rupees 

Fifty-One Crore and Fifty lacs only) divided into SlS,000,00 (Flve Crore one lacs and fifty Thousand) Equity Shares 

of face value of Rs. 10/· {Rupees Ten only) each of Share capital of the Company. 

The Paid-up Share capital of the Company stands as Rs. 51,41,48,880/-{Fifty-one Crore forty-one lacs forty-eight 

thousand and eight hundred and eighty only) crores consisting of 51,414,888 equity shares of Face Value" 10/· 
{Rupees Ten only) 

DIVIDENDS 

The Company has not declared dividend during the financial year 2024-25. 

STATUTORY RESERVE FUND 
The closing balance of the retained earnings of your Company for FY 2024-25, after all appropriations and 

adjustments, was"' 6391.79 Lakhs. 

HOLDING/ SUBSIDIARY/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 

The Company has no holding, Subsidiary Company & Associate Company as on date. 
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DIRECTORS 
Your company's Board comprises of the following Directors:· 

D1recto1'5/S1gn:atory De~trs 

DIN/PAN Name I Besin date End date 

10163731 Mr. Ankur Hada 20/05/2023 -
101S9986 Mr. Pawan Kumar JhunJhunwala 22/05/2023 . 

02212440 Mrs. Mandeep Kaur Jaiswal 22/05/2023 . 

01684171 Mr. Bltu Pal 23/06/2022 14/08/2024 

02186565 Mr. Ajay Kumar Khandelwal 28/12/2022 14/08/2024 

10204543 Mr. Kanwar Nitin Singh 14/08/2024 07/07/2025 

10122918 Mr. Amit BaJaJ 14/08/2024 07/07/2025 

11170688 Mrs. Kalpana Tekrlwal 07/07/2025 . 

I 
06652773 Mr. Roshnl Gadla 07/07/2025 . 

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
During the Financial Year 2024-25, 10 (Ten) meetings of the Board of Directors were held. The Provisions of 

C.ompanies Act, 2013 and Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements (LOOR) were adhered to while 

considering the maximum time gap between any two meetings was less than one hundred and twenty days. 

Details of the Board meetings held during the financial year have been furnished In the Corporate Governance 

Report forming part of this Annual Report. 

The date on which the Board Meetings were held are given below: 

08.04.2024 29.04.2024 31.0S.2024 

31.07.2024 14.08.2024 04.09.2024 

11.11.2024 26.12.2024 14.02.2025 

29.03.2025 

MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 
During the year under review, a separate meeting of Independent Directors was held on March 29, 202S wherein 

the performance of the Non-Independent Director and the Board as a whole was reviewed. The Independent 

Director at their meeting also assessed the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of Information between the 

Company's management and the Board of Directors of the Company. 
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TRANSFER TO RESERVES 

The Company has reported a profit during the financial year ended March 31, 202S, amountin8 to Rs. 38.92 lacs/­

(after tax) and the same is bell\!: transferred to Reserve and Surplus. 

COMMlfflES OF THE BOARD: 
The Company has constituted/ re<onstltuted various Board level committees In accordance with the requirements 

of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listin8 Obligations & Dfsclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. Details of 

all the Committees along with their composition and meetings held during the year under review are provided in 

the Report on Corporate Governance forming part of this Annual Report. 

AUDIT COMMITTEE: 

The Audit Committee presently comprises of Mrs. Roshnl Gadfa Charnman, Mrs. Kalpana Tekrlwal and Mr. Pawan 

Kumar Jhunjhunwala as Members. The terms of referenre of the Audit Committee and the particulars of the 

meetings held and attendance thereat are In accordance with the requirements mandated under Section 177 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules made thereunder and Regulation 1S of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 has 

been furnished In the Corporate Governance Report forming a part of this Annual Report. There has been no 

instance where the Board has not accepted the recommendations of the Audit Committee. 

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITIEE: 

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee presently comprises of Mrs. Roshni Gadia Chairman, Mrs. Kalpana 

Tekriwal and Mrs. Mandeep Kaur Jaiswal as Members. The terms of reference of the Nomination & Remuneration 

Committee and the particulars of the meetings held and attendance thereat are in accordance with the 

requirements mandated under Section 178 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules made thereunder 

and Regulation 19 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 201S has been furnished In the Corporate Governance Report forming 

a part of this Annual Report. 

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE: 
The Stakeholders Relatlonshlp Committee presently comprises of Mrs. Roshni Gadia Chairman, Mrs. Kalpana 

Tekrrwal and Mr. Pawan Kumar JhunJhunwala as Members. The terms of reference of the Stakeholders Relationship 

Committee and the particulars of the meetings held and attendance thereat are in accordance with the 

requirements mandated under Section 178 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules made thereunder 

and Regulation 20 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 has been furnished in the Corporate Governance Report forming 

a part of this Annual Report. 

PARTICULARS OF THE EXTRA-ORDINARY GENERAL MEETING OF THE COMPANY HELD DURING THE YEAR 
No Extra Ordinary General Meeting held during the year under oonslderatlon. 

POSTAL BALLOT 
The Companv has not passed any resolution through Postal Ballot for the financial year 2024·2S. 
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Meetings of the members 

The Last Annual General Meeting of the Company for the financial year 2023-24 was held on September 30, 2024 

at "Diamond Plaza", 5, Gopi Bose Lane, Kolkata- 700012. 

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY 

There has been no change in the nature of business of the Company during the financial year ended March 31, 202S. 

The Company entered Into trading of agro products and focused mainly on agricultural products. 

MATERIAL OiANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFF£CUNG FINANCAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY. OCCURRING 

AFTER BAlANCE SHEET DATE 

There was no material changes and commitments In the business operations of the Company affecting the financial 

position of the Company which have occurred between the end ofthe financial year of the Company to which the 

tlnanclal statements relate and the date of this report. 

ANNUAL Rl:TURN 

The Annual Return pursuant to the provisions of Section 92 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12 of the 

Companies (Management & Administration) Rules, 2014 is being uploaded in the website of the Company 
www.kalzenlnfra.com 

EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO THE DATE OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

No significant events occurred after the date of flnanclal statements. 

LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS 

During the Flnanclal year the Company has made Loan, Guarantees, and Advances & Investment within the limits as 
prescribed under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH REIATED PARTIES: 

A Related Party Transaction Polley has been formulated by the Board of Directors for determining the materiality of 

transactrons with related parties and dealing with them. The said policy may be referred to at the C.Ompany's website 
at "www.kaizeninfra.com". 

The Audit Committee reviem all related party transactions. All contracts or arrangements with related parties, 

entered into or modified during the financial year, within the meaning of Section 188 (1} of Companies Act, 2013 

were In ordinary course of business and on arm's length basis and In compliance with the applicable provisions af 

the companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulation. 

There are no material contracts or arrangements entered into by the Company during the year with Related Parties. 

'There are no materially significant related party transactions entered Into by the Company with promoters, 

directors, key managerial personnel or other designated persons or related party as per deflnttron contained u/s 

2{76) of the Act, which may have a potential conflict with the Interest of the Company at large. Accordlngly, the 
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disclosure of Related Party Transactions as required under Section 134(3) (h) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 

2014 In Form AOC·2 has been enclosed asAnnexure-11 is attached herewith and forms part of this Director's Report. 

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY AND TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO: 

Particulars of Conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange and outgo as required under 

Section 134 (3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 are not 

appllcable to the Company. The disclosures ate annexed as Annexure-111 and forms part of this Annual Report. 

DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

During the period the Board of the company was reconstituted for the purpose of better 11rowth and expansion and 

diversification of the business of the Company. 

a) Appolntmem of Independent Director 

1. Mr. Kanwar Nltln Singh, (DIN: 10204543) has been appointed as an Additional Non-Executive Independent 
Director of the Company w.e.t August 14, 2024. 

2. Mr. Amit Bajaj, (DIN: 10122918) has been appointed as an Addltlonal Non-Executive Independent Director 
of the Company w.e.f August 14, 2024. 

3. Mrs. Kalpana Tekriwal (DIN: 11170688) has been appointed as an Addltlonal Non-Executive Independent 
Director of the Company w.e.f July 07, 202S. 

4. Mrs. Roshni Gadla (DIN: 066S2773) has been appointed as an Additional Non-Executive Independent 
Director of the Company w.e.f July 07, 2025. 

b) Cessation In Directorship during the Year 

Mr. Bitu Pal, {DIN: 01684171has reslgned asa Non-Executl11e independent Director of the Companyw.e.f August 14, 2024. 

Mr. Ajay Kumar Khandelwal, (DIN: 0218656S), has resigned as a Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company w.e.f 
August 14, 2024. 

Mr. Kanwar Nitin Singh, (DIN: 10204543} has resigned as a Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company w.e.f July 
07, 202S. 

Mr. Amit Bajaj, (DIN: 10122918) has resigned as a Non-£xecullve Independent Director of the Company w.e.f July 07, 202s. 

c) Statement on declara'don glvel'I by Independent Directors 

In terms of Section 149, 1S2 read with Schedule IV and other applTcable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

the Companies (Appointment and Qualltlcatlons of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modifications or 

te-enactment thereof for the time being in force), the Independent Directors are appointed for a term of five years 
and are not Hable to retire by rotation. 

As required under Section 149(7) of the Act, all the Independent Directors of the Company have given declarations 

that they meet the criteria of independence as laid down in section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16(1){b) and 

Regulation 25 of Listing Regulations. There has been no change rn the circumstances affecting their status as 
Independent Directors of the Company. 

The Independent Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the Company's Code of Conduct. 

23 ZUTH ANMJAlREPORT10l4-202S 



They have registered their names In the Independent Directors' Oatabank. 

In the opinion of the Board, they fulfil the conditions af Independence as specified In the Act and the SEBI listil18 
Regulations and are independent of the management. 

Further, the Board is also of the opinion that all the Independent Directors of the Company are persons of Integrity 

and possess relevant expertise and experience to act as Independent Directors of the Company. 

d) Familiarizatlon Ptogramme undertaken for Independent Directors 

The Independent Directors are famlflarl2ed with the company, their roles, rights, responsibilities In the Company, 

nature of the Industry In which the company operates, business model of the Company, etc. pursuant to Regulation 

2S (7) of the SEBI {Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 on appointment, the 

Independent Director is issued a letter of appointment setting out in detafl, the tenns of appointment, duties, 

responslbilities and expected time commitments. The Company Secretary briefs the Director about their legal and 

regulatory responsibilltles as a Director. The Directors also explained In detail the various compliances required from 

him to act as a Director under the various provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, SEBI (LODR) Regulatron, 2015, SEBI 

(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulatlon, 2011, the COde of Conduct of the Company and other relevant 

regulations. The details offilmllfarlzatlon Is available on company's website nwww.kaizeninfra.com•. 

e) Retirement by Rotation 

During the flnanclal year 2024-25, the company has three Non-E'xecutive Independent Directors, one Managing 

Director and one Whole- lime Director. According to Companies Act, 2013 Independent Director is not liable to 

retire by rotaUon and Mr. Pawan Kumar JhunJhonwala, Whole- lime Director Is Uable to retire by rotation and being 
eligible, offers himself for re•appolntment. 

The Board recommends his re•appolntment with a view to avall her valuable advises and wise counsel. 

A brief proflle of the Director seeking appointment/ re-appointment required under Regulation 36 (3) of the SEBI 

(Listing Obllgatlons & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 201S is given in the Notice of AGM forming part of the 

Annual Report. 

None af the Directors of the Company are dlsquallfled for being appointed as Directors, as specified in Section 164 

(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 14 (1) of the Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules, 

2014. 

As required under SEBI Ustlng Regulations, your Company has obtained a certificate from the Practicing company 

Secretary that none of the Directors of the Board of the Company have been debarred or dlsquallfied from being 

appointed or continuing as Directors of the Board of the company have been debarred or disqualified from being 

appointed or continuing as Directors by MCA/Statutory Authorities. The said Certiflcate is enclosed as Anne,rure -

V//and forms part of this Report. 
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f} Key Managerial Personnel: 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Ankvr Hada, Chief Executive Officer and 

Managing Director {CEO & MD), Mrs. Pooja Agarwal, Chief Financlal Officer, Mr. Pawan Kumar Jhunjhunwala Whole­

time Director and Mrs. Nikita Rateria, Companv Secretary, are the KMPs of the Company as on March 31, 202S and 

there are not appointment and Resignation of the Company for the financial year 2024-25. 

FORMAL ANNUAL EVALUATION: 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SE81 Listing Regulations, evaluation of each 

member of the Board is done on an annual basis. One of the vital function of the Board Is monitoring and reviewing 

the Board evaluation framework fonnulated by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee that lav down the 

evaluatlon criteria for the performance of all the lndl\Jidual Directors Board and its Committees was carried out. In 

accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 read wfth the rules made thereunder and SEBI (Listing 

Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulatlons, 201S. 

A structured questionnaire was prepared after taking into consideration inputs received from the Directors, coveting 

various aspects of the Board's functioning such as adequacy of the composition of the and its committees, Board 

culture, execution and performance of speclflc duties, obligatlons and governance. 

a} Ctiterla for evaluatlon of 1tu1 Board of Directors as a whole 

I. Frequency of meetings; 

II. Len_gth of meetings; 

Ill. Administration of meeting; 

111. Number of Committees and their roles; 

v. Flow of information to Board members and between Board members 

111. The quality and quantity of information; and 

vu. Disclosure of Information to the stakeholders. 

bl criteria for evaluation of lndlvldual Directors 

i. Commitment to fulfillment of Director's obligations and fiduciary responsibilities; 

ii. Attendance and contribution at Board/Committee meetings; 

iii. Abllity to contribute by Introducing best practices to address top management issues; 

111. Monitoring management perfonnance and development; 

v. Participation In long-term strategic plannlng 

111. Ability to contribute and monitor corporate governance practices; 

vii. Statutory compliance & Corporate governance practices; 

viii. Time spent by each of the members; 

IK. Core competencies; and 
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x. Guiding Strategy. 

The Directors express their satisfaction over the evaluation process and results thereof. 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT: 

A separate report on Management Discussion and Analysis Is annexed as part of Annual Report along with the 

Audrtors Certificate in compllance with SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 201S. 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED DISQ.OSURES: 

Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other detalls under Section 197(12) of the act read with role 5(1) of the 

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 as amended are annexed as 

Annexure-lV. However, as per the provisions of Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013, the reports and accounts 

are being sent to the Members and others entitled thereto, excludin8 the disclosure on particulars of employees 

which is available for Inspection by the Members at the Registered Office of the Company during business hours on 

workin8 days of the Company up to the date of the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 

Dlsclosures pertaining to Remuneration and Statement showing the names of top ten employees In terms of 

remuneration drawn, as required under Section 197(12) of the Act and Rule 5(2) & 5(3) of the Companies 

{Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (as amended) is not applicable to the 

Company. 

DIRECTORS RESPONS18IU1Y STATEMENT: 

Pursuant to clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 and Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2.013, the Board of 

Directors of the Company hereby state and confirm that : 

a) 

b) 

c) 

d) 

e) 

Accounting Standard: In the preparation of the annual accounts, the appllcable aocounting standards had 

been followed along with proper eMplanatlon relatin8 to material departures. 

Accounting Polle I es: The Directors had selected such accounting policies and applled them consistently and 

made Judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the 

state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the Company for 

that period. 

Proper Efficient and Care : The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of 

adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding 

the assets of the Company and for preventing and detectln8 fraud and other irregularltles; 

Going Concern Basis: The Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis. 

C.Ompliance with all laws: The Directors had devised proper system to ensure compliance with the provision 

of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 
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f) Internal Ftnanclal Controls: The Directors had laid dowo internal financial control to be followed by the 

Company and that such Internal flnancTal control are adequate and operating effectively. 

BOARD'S COMMENT ON THE AUDITOR'S REPORT: 

No qualificatton, adverse remarks or disclaimer made by the Statutory Auditors with regard to the financial 
statements for the financial year 2024-25. 

The Statutory Auditors of the Company have not reported any fraud as specified under Section 143(12) of the 
C.Ompanies Act, 2013. 

There have no instances of fraud reported by above mentioned Auditors under Section 143(12) of the Act and Rules 

framed thereunder either to the Company or to the Central Government during flnancial year 2024·25. 

RISK MANAGEMENT POUCY: 

The Board of Directors of the Company has formulated a Risk Management policy which alms at enhancing 

shareholders value and providing an optimum risk reward tradeoff. The risk management approach is based on a 

clear understanding of the variety of risks that the organization faces, disciplined risk monitoring and measurement 

and continuous risk assessment and mitigation measures. In the opinion of the Board, none of the risks faced by 

the Company threaten the existence of the Company. 

The Company has adequate internal control systems and procedures to combat risks. The risk management 

procedure is reviewed by the Audit Committee and Board of Directors on a quarter1y basis at the time of review of 

quarterly flnanclal results of the company. This policy is also avallable on the Company's website 

www.kaleznlnfra.com 

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEMS: 

1. The Company has appointed Internal Auditors to observe the Internal Controls who regularly monitors if the 

workflow of the organization is being done through the approved pollcles of the Company. In every half year 

ended during the approval of Financial Results, Internal Auditors present the Internal Audit Report. 

2. The Board of Directors of the Company has adopted various policies like Related Party Transaction Policy, 

Whistle Blower Policy and other procedures for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business. The 

Company system of Internal control has been designed to provide a reasonable assurance with regard to 

maintaining of proper accounting controls, monitoring of operations, safeguarding of Its asset, prevention and 

detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and timely 

preparation of financial infonnation. 

3. The Company is complying with all the appllcable Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS). The accounting records 

are maintained In accordance with generalty accepted accounting principles in India. This ensures that the 

flnanclal statement reflect the true and fair financial position of the Company. 
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WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY/ VlGIL MECHANISM: 

The Company has established an effective Whistle Blower Policy person to the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI listing 

Regulation, 2015. The said policy may be referred to at the Company's website at the following web link 

•www.kalzenlnfra.com•. 

The Whistle Blower Polley alms at conducting the affairs of the Company In a fare and transparent manner by 

adopting the highest standard of professionalism, honesty, integrity and ethical behavlor. All pennanent employees 

of the Company are covered under the Whistle Blower Policy. 

A mechanism has been established for employees to report concern about un-ethlcal behavior, actual or suspected 

fraud or violation of code of conduct an ethics. It also provide for educate safeguards against the victimization of 

employees who able the mechanism and allows direct acceS5 to the Chainnan of the Audit Committee in eMceptlonal 

cases. 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE: 

A report on Corporate Governanre pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 34 read with point C & E of Schedule V 

of SEBI (Listing Obllgatlons & Disclosure Requirements} Regulations, 2015, for the Financial Year ended March 31, 

2025, along with the Auditors Certificate on Its oompliance are annexed to this Annual Report. 

CEO & CFO CERTIFICATION : 

The CEO & CFO Certificate on the financial statements of the Company as required under Regulation 17(8} of SEBI 

(Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 forms part of this Annual Report. 

TRANSFER OF AMOUNTS TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND: 

Pursuant to applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act} read with the Investor Education and 

Protection Fund Authority {Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund} Rules, 2016, the Company did not have any 

funds lyln!! unpaid or unclaimed. Therefore, there was no funds which were required to be transferred to Investor 

Education and Provident fund (IEPF}. 

AUDITORS: 

a) Statutory Auditors: 

The Company's Auditors, M/s. MK Kothari &Asscciates, Chartered Accountants, (FRN: 323923E), who were 

appointed as a Statutory Auditor of the Company at 19th Annual General Meeting for a term of five years, 

tlll the conclusion of the ensuing 24th Annual General Meeting of the Company 
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Internal Auditors: 

The Chairman informed to the Board of Director that the Company has received the consent letter from M/s. 

Roshnl K Gupta & Associates, Practicing Chartered Accountants, PCA. 303741 to act as an Internal Auditor 

of the Company for the Financial Year 2024-25 with effect from July 31, 2024. 

secretarial Auditor. Secretarfal Compllance Report .ind other Certfflcates 

Company has received the resignation letter from M/s. Kalpana Tekrlwal & Associates dated July 22, 2024 

wherein they have Issued a request to be relieved of their duties to our business concern by stepping down 

from Secretarial Auditor position with effect from July 31, 2024. 

The Board has appointed M/s. PooJa Bansal, CP No.18524, Practicing Company secretaries, as the Secretarial 

Auditor of the Company for the Financial Year 2024-2S with effect from July 31, 2024. 

The Chalnnan Informed that the Board of Directors the Company has received the resignation letter from 

Mrs. Pooja Bansal dated March 24, 2025 wherein she has issued a request to be relieved of her duties to our 

business concern by stepping down from Secretarial Auditor position. The Board of Directors of the Company 

do and hereby accept resignation tendered by them from the position of Secretarlal Auditor of the Company 

with effect from March 29, 2025. 

Pursuant to Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has appointed M/s. Hemant Sharma, (CP 

No. 17411), Practicing Company Secretaries to conduct the secretarial audit of the Company for the flnanclal 

year 2024-25. The Company had provided all assistance and facilities to the Secretarial Auditor for 

conducting their audit. The report of the Secretarial Auditor for the flnanclal year 2024-25 is anneMed to this 

reportAnnexure-1 (MR-3). 

There are no qualifications or adverse remarks In their Report. 

Also, the Secretarial Compllance Report issued under Regulation 24A of SEBl llstlns Regulations is given in 

AnneK11re . VI and fonns part of this Report. 

As required under SEBI Listing Regulatlons, your Company has obtained a certificate from the Practicing 

Company secretary that none of the Directors of the Board of the Company have been debarred or 

dTsqualtt1ed from being appointed or contlnulns as Directors of the Board of the Company have been 

debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors by MCA/Statutory Authorities. The 

said Certificate Is enclosed as A1111t1111re - VII and forms part of this Report. 
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d) Reporting of frauds by Auditors 

During the year under review, the Statutory Auditors and Secretarlal Auditor have not reported any instances of 

frauds committed In the Company by its Officers or Employees to the Audit Committee under Section 143(12) of the 

Companies Act, 2013. 

COST AUDITOR 

The Company does not fall within the purview of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and hence, It Is not 

required to appoint a cost auditor for the flnanclal year 2024-2S. 

DISCLO.SURES AS MAINTENANCE Of COST RECORDS UND£R SUB-SECTION 111 Of SECTION 148 Of THE COMPANIES ACT. 2013 

The Company does not fall under the preview of Section 148 of the C.Ompanies Act, 2013, and hence It Is not required 

to maintain any cost records and acoordlnaly such accounts and records are not made and maintained by the 

Company. 

DEPOSITS 

Your C.Ompany has not accepted any Fixed Deposit under Chapter-V of the Companies Act, 2013 durlna the flnanclal 

year and as such, no amount on account of Principal or Interest on Deposits from Public was outstanding as on 

March 31, 2025. 

CODE OF CONDUCT 

The Board of Directors has approved a code of Conduct which is applicable to the Members of the Board and all 

employees In the course of day-to-day operations of the Company In accordance with the applicable Accounting 

Standards. The code laid down by the Board is known as "Code of Conduct". The code has been posted on the 

Company's website "www.kaizeninfra.com" 

PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING 

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for prevention of Insider Trading with a view to regul11te trading in 

Securities by the Directors and designated employees of the Company. The Code requires pre- clearance for dealing 

In the Company's shares and prohibits the purchase or sale of Company shares by the Directors and the designated 

employees while In possession of unpublished price sensitive information In relation to the Company and during the 

period when the Trading window is dosed. The Board Is responsible for implementation of the code. 

Your Company has adopted a code of conduct for prevention of •insider Trading" as mandated by the SEBI and same 

Is available on the website of the Company Hwww.kalzenlnfra.comH. The said policy has been revised effective from 

April 01, 2019 In line with SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018. 
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PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT 

The Company Is committed to a safe, inclusive workplace where everyone feels respected and empowered. In fine 

with the POSH Act, it has adopted an anti-sexual harassment policy and constituted an Internal Committee. No 

complaints, including those related to sexual harassment, were received durlng the year under review. 

DISCLOSURE UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLAC£ (PREVENTION. PROHIBITION & 
REDRESSAL) ACT. 2013 : 

The Company has formulated a policy for the prevention of sexual harusment within the Company. It ensures 

prevention and deterrence of acts of sexual harassment and communicates procedures for their resolution and 

settlement. Internal Complaint Committee have been constituted which is chaired by a female employee of the 

Company In accordance with the requirements under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 

Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 which ensures Implementation and compliance with the Law as well as the 

policy at every unit. There were no c:ases/ complalnts reported In this regard during the year 2024-2S. A copy of the 

Policy against sexual harassment is posted on the Company's Website •www.kaizeninfra.com•_ 

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY OF niE COMPANY: 

The Nomination & Remuneration Polley has been formulated pursuant to the provisions of Section 178 and other 

applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules thereto stating therein the Company's policy on 

Directors, payment of managerial remuneration, Directors quallflcatlons, positive attributes, and Independence of 

Directors by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee which was revised and reviewed by the Board of Directors. 

The said policy Ts furnlshed as Anne.icure•VAnd forms part of this report and also can be accessed at the Company's 

website at www.kalzenlnfra.com. 

HUMAN RESOURCES: 

The Company·believes In best HR practices by providing its employees a world class wor1<ing environment, giving 

them equal opportunities to rise and grow. We continue to implement the best of HR policies so as to ensure that 

talent retention Is ensured at all levels. Employee relations continued to be cordial and harmonious at all levels and 

in all divisions of the Company during the year. Presently your Company does not have any employee falllnl! within 

the scope of prescribed section of the Companies Act, 2013 read with companies applied rules. 

Your Company has complied with all applicable laws. The company has been complying with relevant laws and has 

been taking all necessary measures to protect the environment and maximize worker protection and safuly. 
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DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BV THE REGULATORS, COURTS AND TRIBUNALS 

IMPACTING 1l!E GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY'S OPERATION IN FUTURE: 

No significant and material order has been passed by the regulators, courts, Vibunals impacting the going concern 

status and Company's operation In future. 

COMPLIANCE WITH SEOlETARIAL STANDARDS ON BOARD ANO GENERAL MEETINGS : 

Durins the Financial Year, your Company has compiled with applicable Secretarial Standards Issued by the Institute 

of Company Secretaries of lndla. 

INDIAH ACCOUNTING STANDARDS: 

Pursuant to the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, your Company has to comply with Indian 

Accounting Standards (Ind-AS) from Aprll 01, 2017. Accordingly, the financial statements of the Company for the 

flnancial year 2024-2S have been prepared as per Ind-AS. 

COMPUANCE WlTH SECRl:TARIALSTANDARDS ON BOARD AND GENERAL MEETING: 

During the Financial Year, your Company has complied with appllcable Secretarial Standards Issued by the Institute 

of Company Secretaries of Ind la. 

DEMATERIALIZATION OF SHARES: 

100% of the Company's paid up Equity Share Capital is in dematerlallzed form as on March 31, 2025 and only 5 

shares Is being held In physlcal form. VourCompany has already sent three reminders to all concerned shareholders 

advising them to convert physical shares into demat form. The Company Registrar is M/s. Maheshwari Oatamatlcs 

Private Limited, 23 R. N Mukherjee Road, 5th Floor, Kolkata - 700 001. 

BOARDS AND COMMllTEES: 

The detalls of Board and Its Committees are given In the Corporate Governance Report. 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSl8IIJ1Y 

A$ per the provisions of Section 13S of the Companies Act, 2013, read with rules framed there under, every Company 
includlng Its holding or subsidiary and a foreign Company, which fulfills the criteria specified In sub-section (1) of 
section 135 of the Act shall comply with the provisions of Section 135 of the Act and Its rules. 

Since the Company is not falllng under any criteria specified in sub-section (1) of section 135 of the Act, your 
Company is not required to constitute a Corporate Social Responslbility ("CSR") Committee. 

MATERNITY BENEFIT PROVIDED BY THE COMPANV UNDER MATERNITV BENEFIT ACT, 1961 

tf female employees exist the Company declares that it has duly complled with the provisions of the Maternity 
Benefits Act, 1961. All eligible women employees have been extended the statutory benefits prescribed under the 
Act, including paid maternity leave, continuity of salary and service during the leave period, and post-maternity 
support such as nursing breaks and be flexible return-to-work options, as applicable. The Company remains 
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committed to fostering an Inclusive and supportive wotk environment that upholds the rights and welfare of its 
women employees in accordance with applicable laws. 

DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTACY CODE. 2016 

During the financial year under review, there were NO appllcatron/s made or proceeding were pending in the name 
ofthe Company under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. 

DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN VALUATION AMOUNT ON ONE TIME SEfflEMENT ANO VALUATION WHJLE 
AVAILING LOAN FROM BANKS AND FINANCIAL INSMUTIONS 

Ourln8 the Financial year under review, there were NO one time settlement of Loans taken from Banks and Flnanclal 
institutions. 

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS 

Your Company has complied with Secretarial Standard-1 (Board Meeting) and Secretarial S1andards·2 (General 
Meetings) (together referred to as the Secretarial Standards) w.e.f. 1st October, 2017 as approved by the Central 
Government and issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of lndla (ICSI) under the provrslons of section 
118(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

DATA PRIVACY. DATA PROTECTION, AND CYBERSECURITY 

The Company Is committed to upholding the highest standards of data privacy and protection. In light of the 

Increasing reliance on dlgltal infrastnJcture, the Companv has implemented comprehensive cybersecurity and data 

protection policies, aligned with industry best practices and the evolving regulatory framework, including provisions 

under the Information Technology Act, 2000, and applicable data protection regulations. 

Kev Initiatives undertaken during the year include: 
• Deployment of end-to-end encryption and multi-layered security protocols for data storage and transfer. 
• Regular third-party cybersecurity audits and vulnerability assessments. 
• Employee training programs on data protection and cybersecurlty awareness. 
• Strict access control mechanisms and Implementation of tole-based permissions. 
• Data breach response protocols In acxordanre with the CERT-In guidelines. 

The Company continues to invest in digital infrastructure to ensure robust protection of stakeholder Information 
and business continuity. 

LIQUIDITY 

Vour Company maintains sufficient cash to meet our strategic objectives. We clearly understand that the liquidity in 
the Balance Sheet is to ensure balance between earning adequate returns and the need to cover financial and 
business risks. Llqufdity also enables your Companv to position itself for quick responses to market dvnamics. 
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AUOrT' TRAll APPLICABILITY {AUDIT ANO AUOITORSI RULES 2014 · RUlE.11 OF THE COMPANIES ACT 20!3. 

The Company has used accountin8 software for maintaining Its books of account for the financial year ended March 
31, 2025 which has a f'eature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the 
year for all relevant transactions recorded In the software. 

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from April 01, 2023, reporting under 

Rule ll(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the ·statutory 

requirements fur record retention is applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2025. 

Appointment of designated person (Management and Administration) Rules 2014 • Rule 9 of the Companies Act 
2013. 

In accordance with Rule 9 of the Appointment of Designated Person (Management and Administration) Rules 2014, 
It is essential for the Company to designate a responslble lndlvldual for ensuring compliance with statutory 
obligations. 

The Company has proposed and appointed one of the Director as a Designated person in a Board meeting and the 
same has been reported In Annual Return of the Company. 

DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS FOR CERTAIN TYPES OF AGREEMENTS BINDING LISTED ENTRIES UNDER 

REGULATION 30A{2l OF USTING REGULATIONS: 

There are no agreements entered into by the shareholders, promoters, promoter group entities, related parties, 

directors, key managerial personnel, employees of the listed entity or of its holding, subsidiary or associate 

company, among themselves or with the listed entity or with a third party, solely or jointly, which, either directly 

or indirectly or potentially or whose purpose and effect is to, impact the management or control of the listed entity 

or impose any restriction or create any llablllty upon the listed entity as on the date of notification of clause SA to 

Para A of Part A of Schedule Ill of Listing Regulations. 

GENERAL DISCLOSURES 

Yours Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the followlng Items as there were no 

transactions on these items during the year under review: 

I. Your Company has not resorted to any buy back of Its Equity Shares during the year under review; and 

ii. Your Company does not have any subsidiaries; 

iii. Section 143 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013, any Instances of fraud committed against the Company by its 
officers or employees. 

iv. The Company has not Issued equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise 
v. There were no applications made or proceedings pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 

2016, underscoring our financial resilience. 
vi. There was no transfer en unpaid and unclalmed amount to Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF} 

during the year under review. 
vii. The requirements for maintaining cost records and undergoing cost audits, as prescribed under Section 

148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, were not appllcable to our business activities, allgnlng with our 
regulatory obligations. 

zt1TH ANM.IALREPORT:ZOU..:ZO:ZS 



~ 
Kellil4i!ft ··-,,.,. .......... , .. 0 t..,O•O''l'ag 

INVESTOR RELATIONS 

Your Company always endeavors to keep the time of response to shareholders' request/ grievance at the minimum. 

Priority Is accorded to address all the issues raised by the shareholders and provide them a satisfactory reply at the 

earliest possible time. The Stakeholders' Relationship Committee of the Board meets periodically and reviews the 

status of the Shareholders' Grievances. The shares of the Company continue to be traded in electronic forum and 

de-materialization exists with both the depositories viz., National Securities Depository Limited and Central 

Depository Services (India) Limited. 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 

Your Board sincerely places on record the support extended by the Trade, Shareholders, Company's Bankers, central 

and State Government Authorities, Stock Exchanges, CDSL, NSDL and all other Business Associates for the growth of 

the organization. The Board further expresses its appreciation for the services rendered by the Executives, officers, 

staffs and workers of the Company at all levels. 

We look forward to receiving the continued patronage from all quarters to become a better and stronger Company. 

Place: Kolkata 
Date : AU8USt 21, 2025 

Ankur Hada 
(Managing Director} 

Din: 10163731 
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By Order of the Board 
For Kt:1/zen Agro lnfra&ulld Limited 

Pawan Kumar Jhunjhunwala 
lWhole- Time Director} 

Din: 10049668 
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PQRM NO, HB·3 
SECRETARJAL AUDJT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31"' MARCH, 2025 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014) 

To, 
The Members 
Kaizen Agro lnfrabuild Limited 
(Formerly: Anubhav Infrastructure Limited) 
CIN:L47219\IVB2006PLC107433 
Chatterjee International Centre, 
33A, Chowrlnghee Road, 6th Floor, 
Room No. 6A, Russel Street, 
Kolkata - 700071, West Bengal 

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions 
and the adherence to good corporate practices by KAIZEN AGRO INFRABUlLD LIMITED 
(Formerly !mown as Anubhav Infrastructure Limited) (hereinafter called "the Company") for 
the financial year ended 31"' March, 2025. Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that 
provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances 
and expressing our opinion thereon. 

The Company's Management is responsible for preparation and maintenance of secretarial 
and other records and for devising proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions 
of applicable laws and Regulations. 

Based on our verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and 
other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, 
its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, 
we hereby report that In our opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the 
financial year ended on JlnMarch, 2025, has compiled with the statutory provisions except 
those listed hereunder and also that the Company have proper Board-processes and 
compliance-mechanism in place except to the extent, in the manner and subject to the 
reporting made hereinafter. 
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We have examined the books, papers, minute books, fonns and returns filed and other 
records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2025, to the 
extent applicable, according to the provisions of; 

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act), the rules made thereunder and circulars, notifications, 
clarifications, removal of difficulties orders or such other relevant statutory material issued 
by Ministry of Corporate Affairs from time to time; 

(II) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made thereunder; 

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 

(tv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder 
to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct investment and External 
Commercial Borrowings: Not applicable as there was no reportable event during the financial 
year under review. 

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act'), to the extent applicable: 

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011, as amended; Not applicable as there was no reportable 
event during the financial year under review. 

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 
Regulations, 2015; as amended: Company has complied with all the requirements. 

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2018; Not applicable as there was no reportable event 
during the financial year under review. 

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and 
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999, as replaced by the SEBI (Share 
Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014; Not applicable as there was no 
reportable event during the financial year under review. 

e) The Securtttes & Exchange Board of India (Issue and listing of Debt securities) 
Regulations, 2008: Not applicable as there was no reportable event during the 
financial year under review. 

f) The Securities & Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer 
Agents) Regulations, 1993: Not applicable as the Company is not registered as 
Registrar ro an Issue and Share Transfer A9ent event during the financial year under 
review. 
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g) The Securities & Exchange Board of India (Dellsting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 
2009: Not applicable as there was no reportable event durinB the financial year under 
review. 

h) The Securities & Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018, 
as amended: Not applicable as there was no report;able event during the financial year 
under review. 

Q Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible and 
Redeemable Preference Shares) Regulations, 2013 - Not applicable as there was no 
reportable event during the financial year under review. 

j) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 201S, as amended: Company has complied with all the 
requirements. 

We have also examined compliance / non-compliances with the applicable clauses of the 
following: 

{i) Secretarlal Standards (SS) Issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries oflndla; 

(ii) Provisions of Securities & Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as applicable on the Company being 
listed Bombay Stock Exchange. 

We further report that: 

a) The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of 
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the 
composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were 
carried out In compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

• Mr. Kanwar Nitin Singh, (DIN: 10Z04S43) has been resigned as a Non-Executive 
Independent Director of the Company w.e.f July 07, 2025. 

• Mr. Amit Bajaj, (DIN: 10122918) has been resigned as a Non-Executive Independent 
Director of the Company w.e.fJuly 07, 2025. 

• Mrs. Roshnl Gadla (DIN: 06652773) has been appointed as an Additional Non-Executive 
Independent Director of the Company w.e.f July 07, 2025. 

• Mrs. Kalpana Telcriwal (DIN: 11170688) has been appointed as an Additional 
Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company w.e.f July 07, 2025. 
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According to Section 203{1) read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 there are no such changes in the 
composition of Whole-time KMPs of the Company 

b) Ad~uate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and 
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days In advance, and a system exists for 
seeking and obtaining further Information and clarifications on the agenda it.ems before the 
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 
c) None of the Directors in any meeting dissented on any resolution and hence there was no 
instance of recording any dissenting member's view in the minutes. 

It is stated that the compliance of all the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
other laws is the responsibility of the management We have relied on the representation 
made by the Company and its officers for systems and mechanism set-up by the Company for 
compliances under applicable Laws. Our examination, on a test-check basis, was limited to 
procedures followed by the Company for ensuring the compliance with the said provisions. 
We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 
Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted its 
affairs. We further state that this is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the 
financial activities / statements of the Company. 

We further report that, the compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws such as 
direct and indirect tax laws and maintenance of financial records and books of accounts have 
not been reviewed in this audit since the same have been subject to review by the statutory 
financial auditors, tax auditors, and other designated professionals. 

We further report that during the year under review: 

• The Board of Directors in its meeting held on July 07, 2025 has re-appointed M/s. Roshnl 
K Gupta & Associates, (CP No. 26202} Practicing Company Secretaries, as an Internal 
Auditor of the Company for the Financial Year 2025-26. 

• The Board of Directors in its meeting held on March 29, 2025 has proposed to appoint 
M/s. Hemant Sharma & Associates, (CP No. 17411), Practicing Company Secretaries, as 
the Secretarial Auditor of the Company for the Financial Year 2024-25 and M/s. Pooja 
Bansal, has resigned from the post of Secretarial Auditor of the Company. 
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We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company 
commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure 
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed 
herewith as "Annexure•A" and forms an integral part of this report. 

Date: 21-08-2025 
Place: Kolkata 
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For Hemant Sharma & Associates 
Company Secretaries 

HemantSharma 
Proprietor 

Membership No.: A-42264 
COP No.: 17411 

Peer Review Certificate No.: 4030 of 2023 
UDlN: A042264G0010SS81S 
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ANNEXQBfi· AIQ SECRETARlAL AUDIT Rl!PORJ 
To, 
The Members. 
KA1ZEN AGRO INFRABUILD LIMl'fl!D 
(Formerly: Anubhav Infrastructure Limited) 
CIN:L47219\YB2006PLC107433 
Chatterjee International Centre, 
33A. Chowringhee Road. 6th Floor, 
Room No. 6A. Russel Street, 
Kolkata • 700071, West Bengal 

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

1. Maintenance of Secretarial records Is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 

2. \Ye have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was 
done on the test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected In Secretarial records. We believe 
that the processes and practices we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of 
accounts of the Company. 

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about compliance of Jaws, 
rules and regulations and happenings of events etc. 

5. The compliance of provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, 
standards Is the responsibility of the management Our examination was limited to 
the verification of procedures on test basis. 

6. The Secretarial Audit Report Is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor 
of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the 
Company. 

7. The audit was conducted based on the verification of the Company's books, papers, minutes 
books, forms and returns filed, documents and other records furnished by them or obtained from 
the Company electronically and also the Information provided by the company and its officers by 
audio and/or visual means. 

Date: Zl ·08·2025 
Place: Kolkata 

41 

For Hemant Sharma &Assoda~ 
Company Secretaries 

HemantSharma 
Proprietor 

Membership No.: A-42264 
COP No.: 17411 

Peer Review Certificate No.: 4030 of 2023 
UD/N:A042264G00105S815 



ANNEXURE•II 
FORM NO. AOC-2 

(Pursuant to aause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and 
Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into bv the Company with related 
parties ref-erred to in $Ub·Sectlon (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 lncludlng certain arm's length 
transaction under third proviso thereto. 

1. Detalls of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm's length basis. 

SI. No. Partlculars Details 

1. Name (s} of the related party & nature of relationship NIL 

2. Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction NIL 

3. Duration of the contracts/arranaements/transactlon NIL 

4. Salient terms of the contracts or arranaements or tran.sactlon lncludlng the NIL 

value, if any 

5. Jusl!flcation for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions' NIL 

6. Date of approval by the Board NIL 

7. Amount paid as advances, If any Nil 

I 
8. Date on which the special resolution was passed In General meeting as required NIL 

under first proviso to Section 188 

2. Oe1alls of contracts or arranaements or transactions at Arm's length basis. 

SI.No. Particulars Data!ls 

1. Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship Nil 

2. Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction NIL 

3. Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction Nil 

4. Sallent terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction including the Nil 

value, if any 

s. Date of approval by the Board 

6. Amount paid as advances, if any 

Place : Kolkata 

Date: August 21, 2025 

Ankur Hada 

(Man~lng Director] 
Din: 10163731 

42 

Nil 

NIL 

By Ol'der of Ula Board 
For Kalzen Agro ln/tal>uild limited 

Pawan Kumar Jhunjhunwala 

(Whole· Time Director} 

Din: 10049668 
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2. 

ANNEXURE - Ill 

Dlsdo9Ure of particulars under 134 {3} (m) of the Companies Act, 2013, 

Read with rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY 

Steps taken or impacts on oonservation of energy 

Steps taken by the company for utlllzlng alternate sources of energy. 

Capital Investment on energy oonservation equipment's 

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, ADAPTATION ANO INNOVATION 

Efforts made towards technology absorption 

Benefits derived like product Improvement, cost reduction, product 

development or import substitution. 

NIL 

NIL 

Nil 

NIL 

NIL 

In case of Imported technology (imported during last S years reckoned from the beginning of the 
flnanclal year), followfng information may be furnished: 

Technology imported NIL 

Year of import NIL 

Has technology been fully absorbed? NIL 

If not fully absorbed, areas where this has not taken place, reasons there for NIL 

and future plans of action 

Expenditures incurred on Research & Development NIL 

FOREIGN DCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO 

Foreign Exchange earned In terms of actual Inflows during the year 2022-2023 NIL 

Foreign Exchange outgo In terms of actual outflows during the year 2022-2023 NIL 

By Order of the Board 

For Kalzen A(lro tnfrabulld Umlttd 

Place: Kolkata 

Ankur Hada 

(Managing Director} 

Din: 10163731 

Pawan Kumar JhunJhunwala 

(Whole-Time Director] 

Din: 10049658 Date: August 21, 2025 
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~ 
Kei .... 111,N> 

Af)pg:y re: ry •NJ"n•au1.1,.t:) Lu,11T11.o 

PABIJCYI/IBS Af EMfl.QVEESANDJUIA~QiUl!ES 

(PIMS!!!lfT!~U[C'nON ll?,8l! 8!:•12:! y 12!: "'~ (X)Me,91111:U1!i!,1QU !1:!!11! Wffll !!!II ~Ill !If IllC~llr1llet1111~ W>PDINTMllfI,!l!IR 
RJ;MUNEfl/\11DN OF MAHAGEIUAL l'IIISO!Nll RULll, 2AW 

m Tho ,atlo of111e 1emooe<1ti0n of e.ldl Pi-to ttw: m<dian re,no-of the..,,~ .if the 0:11np.,nyfor 11\e lillandal .,..., t. the .,.,..,,up 
ina-eaie in ,em,,ne,1rtlon of "'1CI! dredor, Oilef Fi11mtlal Officer, C!ilef li<e<:uUYe Offh:er, C.mpony Se<rmryor Manaser, If •RY, In tho ftnandalv,,.ar; 

Your Oire(!«>' Rernon.,.tlon (ln,.,d1rc <emm""°" end vartalile llfilYl fl> tlMt modlon remoncnrtlon of the cmpl.,..., of yoor CcmPlffYfcr tho year 
l0:24-15-Nunller: 

The,., ... _ rn,,....ol(de<rf>I<!) In ,.....-1on of Manalllnll Dln!ffl>t, Dlrfflor, Chief Fln1nc1a1 Oflloer ..,d Comp;,ny Secretary were•• Ulldtr. 

-oftlMI 

ILN•. "- Dml,p,1111.n "'""~.-to1M Plle.n1QI In-In 
l!M!dliln~ """"""atfo.' 

ofl!le-'•-· 
1. Mr, Ankur Ride Mon11P1s-• & ao S:3 N~ 

2. t,ir, p,...,n K..,,.., Jhon1'unwala Whole- 'llffle Dlre<tor 4:3 Nil 

3. MD. Pao)a Apnral Chlef Rn1nr:lal OfllClf 2:3 NII 

4. Mm.Hlklla-1 eom.,.nv~retuy 6S'27 * 5. l>'lll. Mlndeep K<lur JalSw.11 ln"'1,andont Dlrodor NII Nil 

6. Mr.Amit Boja,J In llllpend.ent D!-. r NM NI 

7, Mr, tc.1""'111 Nltln SII\IIII lnillj,l!!dont Dlreao, NII Ml 

The -ls wltll N!lltrd II> Jndeiitndent OireclOIS .re not appl..,ble a,; ttley h,.,, not ,....;,red any fl>o:d ,alary """'fll 5lttlng tee, for mendlnJ tho lloard 
&CommlllHMNU,.... 

Mrl. Amit 8111'1) a. Mr. l<llnwlr Nhln~h hn """"OIi w.e.f. Jul:,f 07, 2025. 

The number of pellTlino nt om(lloye .. on Ill• n,11& of the Comp, ny Is 8. 

Th1re lstn fni::t'ffll: In pen:llfftlCa remunentlon of~ts. 

lnfonnat;cn 1)<1<$1ilnt to s.<tlon lS'l{12) al tho Comp,nlo, Ac!, 2013 rlld "'4th !Ma S(2) of tho Companies (Appolntmont and ft.effiwleratlon of M;,,1,gen,, 

Penc,,nel) !tules, 2014: llle Inform Ilion n,qulted undu this para "111 bi plOllhllld on req-. In term& of St!dlon ui; al the Aa, Ille -1\$ and 3"°unts;,, 
beiog S<lfft to Ille 51\a"""'ld•r> ,nd OChorl - thwato, ertludlna Ille said 1nr.nn.- wtilc:11 "'41 oe mad!! avalable far ""1>«!1on t,f tt,e !llareholder> I 
tlt!c,rcnlc rnodo, up II> the date of AGM, Member> un l~pe<I the ume by .. ndl~ •n ema~ to tho Compe,rySurotary In ldlrlnco at lnfol!'lol""11nfn.aim. 

lly0rdlrof1he-
For~A41ro ........i111 Llfflhl 

AnblrH1d1 hWltl1 Komar lhunJhunw~t;, 
Ploe, i:o11cata {Illa. lG/lffll1 Dlntr:flotj (Wl,o,11,,.111»1t-} 
o.to: Ai.Jaurt ll, l02S Din< l0l637ll Dln:1004-
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N'alllNAAtlN> 

IM"'••uo .. o UM,..•o 

ANN@JRE-V 

NOMINATION AND R!MUNERATlON PQUC:V 

1mroduct1an 

Pursusnt to Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Dlrt<tor! of every listed eompany ,1is11 constrnite the Nomlnat1on 
and Remuneration C:Ommittee, to gu1de the Board on vartous ls,ues on appointment, evaluate performanc:e, remuneration of 
Dlrect:ors, Key Managerial Personnel end Senior Management. 

AaPUcnbllttv 

This policy Is appl1cable to all Ol~tors, Key Manaae(,al Personne1 (KMP), and Senior Msnsgement team and other Employees of the 
C:.Om I"' "I'. 

Effecthle Data : 

The follow1ng policy has ~n formulate<! by the Nomlna1lon and Remunerstion Comm-and revised and rev~ed by die Board 
of Oin!ctors at Its meet1ng held on April 29, 2024. This policy shall be operational with Immediate effect. 

•l To g11ldetl1e Board In rela11on to the appointment and remov.al of Olreetors, Kl!yManageri.ll Parsonneland Senior Management. 

b) To evaluete the performanoe of the members of the Board and provide necessal'/ report to 1he Board for further evaluation of 
the Board. 

cJ To attract, retain and mot1vau? 1he Senior Mansgement lncludin,g Its Key Manasertal Per,onnel, evsluetion of their performance 
and pr011lde nece1sal'/ report to 1he Board for further evaluetion. 

dl To recommend to the Board on Remuneration payable 10 lhe Directors, Key Managerlsl Personnel and Senior Management. 

e) To devise a pol1cv on Board d1vers1t:y. 

f) The relationship of rem11ner.iuon with performs nee is clear and meets appropriate performs nee benchmar~ 

Bl To promab! and develop a hl&h performance workforce in line wtth the Ccmp;sny Stnrtegy. 

h) Te> lay down cr1tula snd terms and CQndll:1ons wll:h r~rd to ldentlfyi"8 persons who are qualltled to become Director 
(~<vi""' & Non- Execut!Ye/lndependent/NomineeJ and persons who may be appointed in Senior MaMgement, Key 
Mensgerlsl Personnel and detenmlne their remuneration. 

I) To develop a succession plan fur the Board and to reau1ar1y review the plan. 

Qcflnt11on,: 

l. •AJr' means the Ccmp;snles Act, W13 Qnd Rules framed 1hereunder, as amended from time to time. 

2, •11oerd" means Board of Olrect>Ors of 1he Ccmpany. 

3. "D!tactorr." mean Ol~orsofthe c:ompany. 

4, "Key Man,.1erW Pal'IClftnat• means 

a) Chief E>:e<uti.e Officer or the Manastna Dl~or or the Manager; 

bl Whole-t1me director; 
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c) Chief Financial Officer; 

d) Company Secretary; and 

e) S<Jth other officer as may be pre.scrtbed. 

5. •eommlnee• means NomlnaUon and Remuneration Committee of the Company as conS11Wted or reconstlW1ed bytl,e Board. 

6. •eomp.any" means •Anubhav Infrastructure llmltff•, 

7. "Manacertal Per,onner mtllns Managerial Personnel or Persons, applicable under section 196 and odler applicable provlslon.s 
of the Companies Act, 2013. 

8. "Independent D!remir" rneens• Dlr~or referred to in Section 149 l6)ofthe Companies Act, 20U, 

f. •s.nlar Mon.13amant• """"" personnel of the company who are member, of lts (ore msnagement team excluding 80.lrd of 
Directors. 

Ccnltflytlon of Nomlnptlon fnd R""'unoitatlon Commllttt: 

'1lle Nomination and RemuneraUon Com ml- will consist of three or more non-executtve Director 1, out of which at lean one•half 
shall be independent dlrectl>r(s),provlded that Chalrper,on of the Company lll$V be oppolnted os a member of ttil, Committee but 
sholl not choir such Committee. 

The Board shall recon!Uwte the Comm~ os and when required to comply wttt, the PfOYlslon.s of the Companies Act. 2013 and 
applicable itatutory requlrementt Including the UsUng ,lQeernent. 

At present, the Nomination and Remuneration Commlttee comprises of followlng Directors: 

I. Mrs. Roshni Gadia, Chairman (Non· ExeM!ve Independent Director), 

II, Mrs. Kalpana Tekr1wai Member (Non· Executive independent Director). 

Ill, Mrs. Mandeep Kaur Jalswal, Member (Non- Executive Independent Din1ctor). 

The meedng of Committee shall be held et such regular interv.ils as may be required to canry out the obJectlvu set out In die Polley. 

a. The Commlttl!eshall ldenttfy and escertaln the integrity, quallfka11on, eicpertlse and experience of1he person for appointment 
as Director, KMP or at Senior Management level end recommend ID the Board hls / her appointment. 

b. A person should po!Se$$ odequate qualific.rtlon, eMpertlse and experience for the position he / she Is con.Mered for 
appointment. The Commhtee has dlscreUon ID de<:lde wt.ether qualification, &Mpertlse and expertence possessed by a per,on 
is sufficient/ satisfactory for the co nee med posldon. 

c. Appointment of Independent Directors ls also subject to compliance of provisions of section 149 of1he Companies Act, 2013, 
read wlth Schedule IV and rules thereunder and 1he Ustlna Agreement. 

d. The Company should ensure that the per,on so appointed s, Dlrector/ Independent D1rector/ KMP/ Senior Management 
Personnel shall not be d1$quaMied under the Companies Act, 2013, Nies made Ulereunder, llstlfl8 ~reement or any oth!r 
enactment for the time being In for(e, 

Term / Tenure 

a. MIDPtrW P1rpann,!: 

The Com pony &11811 ~ppolnt or re;1ppolntany person as hs Managerlal ~rsonnel for a term not eicceeding fl\/& years at a time. 
No re-appointment shall be made earlier than one year before the e><plry ofu.rm. 

46 ZOTHANMJAL REPORT.zt1.Z4.11W 



b. lnd'l.Jl!1nd.ent Director : 

AA Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to fiwe consecutive years on the Board of the Companv and w111 be 
eligible for reappointment on passlngof a speclal re;olutlon bylhe Company and D1scl0$ure of such appointment In the Board's 
report, 

No Independent Director shall hold offloefor more than two consewtlwe term,, but such Independent Director shall be el!glble 
for appointment after e•plry of three years of cusln110 become an Independent Director. 

Provided that an Independent Director shall not, durlng the said period of three years, be appointed In or be assoclat:ed wlth 
the Company In anv other capacity, either dlrecdv or Indirectly. Atlhe lime of appolnlment of Independent Olreel'Or, 11 should 
be ensured thal number of Boards on which .such Independent Olreelor sel'Yel Is restrlcted 10 seven listed companies as an 
Independent Director and three listed companies as an Independent Director in case such per.on i> oervlng as a Whol..,.tlme 
Director of .o li9tt!d company. 

The ma•imum tenure of Independent Dlreclt>rs shall also be In accordanoe wlth the Companies A<;t, 2013 and clartflcalfons/ 
clrculars Issued bv the Mlnlmy of Corpe ml! Affairs, In this regard, from time to lime. 

Due to rNl'Ons for arr; dlsqualllkatlon mentioned In the Act or under anv other appllcable Act, rules and regulation, thereunder, the 
Committee may recommend, to the Boord wtth reasons recorded In writing, remowal of a Olrector, KMP or S<!nlor Management 
Personnel subject to Ille pnovlslons and compliance of the ~Id Act, rule, and regulst!ons. 

Retirement: 

The Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel shall retire a, per the applicable prcvi>lons of the Act and the preV11lllng pollcy 
of the company. The Board will have the discretion to retain the Director, KMP, Senior Management Personnel In the same position/ 
remuneratlon or otherwise even after atlalnlng the retirement ;a&e, for the beneflt of the Company. 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnef. lCMP and Senior Management: 

1. The Remuneration/ Compen.satlon / Profit linked incentive stt. to Manege1iel Personnel, KMP and S.,nlor Management wlll 
be determined by the Committee and recommended to the Board for approval. Tile Remuneration /Compensatlon / Proftt 
linked Incentive etc. to be paid for Managerial ~rsonnel shall be subJectto the prior/post approval oflhe shareholders of the 
Company and Central Government, wherever required. 

2. 1be temunenrtion end commwlon to be paid to Menagerie I Personnel shfll be as per the statutory provisions oflhe Companies 
A,;t, 2013, and the Nies made thereunder for the Ume belng ln f<lrce, 

3. lncremenls to the e•lstlng remuneration/ compensation structu1e may be recommended by the Committee to the Soard which 
should be wtthln the slabs approved by the Shareholders In the case of Whole-time Director. 

4. If, In any ftnanclal year, the Company has no profits or Its profits are Inadequate, the Comparr; shall pay remuneration to It$ 
Mana,etlsl Personnel In aixordance wttt, the provisions of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 and If It Is notable to comply 
with such provlslons. with the prior approwal of 1he Cen1ral Gove1nment. 

s. Where any insurance Is taken by the company on behalf of tts Managerial Personnel, KMP and Senlor Management for 
lndemnlfyfng them against any llablllty, !he premium paid on such Insurance shall nOI be treated as part of the remuneration 
payable 10 any such pe~onnel. 

Remuneration 11> No,,. E)NIMl..,. / lndapandant llTN1ctor, 

1. Bcrounm•n L Prpflt Yohcd eommJ11I•a: 

The remuneration/ commission shall be ftl(ed as per the slabs and condltlons mentioned in the Articles of l\$Soclatlon of the 
Company end the Act, · 
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2. sttth11 fo,s: 

The Ncn· Ex!euUYe / Independent Director may re<:elve remuneration by way cf hies for attending meetings of Board or 
Commltttt thereof. Pro.ldedtl!at the amount of such fees shall notexoeed Rs. One l.ac per m~tfng of1he Board er Com mitt~ 
or such amount as mey be prescribed by the Central Government from time 10 t1me. 

3. Yrnlt qf BffllYDCWIAO IPadb Linked CommtutDn: 

Remuneration /profit linked Ccmmission may be paid within the mone!Bry llmtt approved by shareholders, subject lo the Omit 
nct QJO:eeding 1%/ 3% of the net profit, of the Company respectively. 

Ngmlnat(cn 0..11 .. : 

The duties of the Ccmmlttee In rela1lcn to nom1n.itlon matters Include: 

1. Eruurlng that there Is an appropr1ate 1nducticn In place for new Directors and mem~rs of Senior Management end reviewing 
Its effectiveMS.S; 

z. Ensurtngtllat on appo1nlmentlc lhe Board, Nol)-ExeMlve Director! recerve a formal letter of appoiittrnent in acoordance w1tli 
lhe Guidelines provided under tile Act; 

:3. 1denl!fy1ng and reoommendlng Dlr<!<:tors who are 10 be pul fcrward for rettrement by rotation. 

4. De~lffllnlna tM appropriate s1ze, d1Vers1tv and ccmpo.sltlon of the Board; 

S. Develcping a suctesslon plan for the Board and Senior Manegement and rt111larly reviewing the plan; 

6, Making reeommenda1lons tc lhe Beard c:oncemlng any matters reladng to the ccntlnuatlcn in office of any Director et any 
time lncludlnglhe suspension or termination of seNlee cf an Executive Director as an employee of the O:>mpany subject to the 
prov1slon of the law and their ser\llce ccntract. 

7. Recommend eny ne<:es.s,ry ch!lnges to the Board; and 

8. Oeles.,llng any of Its powers to one or more cf IU members orttle Secretary of th& Committee; 

9. Ccnsideril\8 any ether matters, as may be requested by the lloard. 

R•mun•ntlon Djltlu: 

The dUUes of the Committee In relation to remuneration matters include: 

1. Tc consfder and detelffllne the Remuneration Polley, based cntt>e perfcrmance and also beating In mlndth,tlhe remunenrtfon 
Is reascnable and sufficient to attract retain and motivate member, of the Board and such ether factors as the Committee shall 
deem approprtate all ~lements of the remunemlon of the members of lhe Board. 

2. Tc approve ttMI remuneration of the Senior Management lncludlfli key managerll!I personnel of the Company malntalnlna a 
balance b-n fixed and Incentive PIIY r~lecllng short and long term performance cbJe<:t1ves appropriate to the working of 
the Company. 

3. To consider any ether matters as may be r~quened by the Beard. 

Proceedfnw, cf all meet1n,ss must be minuted and 9igned by the Chairperson of the said meellng or the Chal,person of tM nelrt 

suc.:eed1ng meeting. Minutes of the Ccmmtttee meeting will be clrculllted at the subsequent Board meeting for noting. 
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'lrm:o!lrncm to 111a ,.,11..,: 

The Board of Directors on 1ts own and/ or as p<!r the recommendations of Nomination and Remuneration Committee can amend tht. 
Polley, as and when deemed flt. 

In case of snv amendment(s), clarific,won(s), clrcular(sJ etc. Ii.sued by the relevant authorttles, not being conslslent whh th& provblons 
lilid down under lhls Polkv, then such amendment(s), clanf,catlon(sJ, clrc:ular(s) etc. shall prevail upon the provisions hereunder and 
this Pollcv shall stand amended accordlnatv from the efft!ctlve d* a said down under such •mendmeM(sJ, Clarification, clrcular(sJ 
etc. 

Dl,.IMur:,: 

The detaUs of thb Polley and lhe evaluation criteria as applicable shall be disclosed In the Annual Re~ort 83 pert of Board's Report 
1hereln or alternatively the same mav be put up on the Company's webstte and re~rence drawn thereto in the Annual Repott. 
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K'Glh!.N . ... 

Anneicure• VI 
Secretarial Compllance Report of 

KAIZEN AGRO INFRABUILD LIMITED 
(Formerly now as "Anubhav Infrastructure l.iml~d~I 

For the Financial Year ended March 31. 2025 

""""Aauu .. a l.lMl'l"lc:o 

I, Mr. Hemant Sharma, Proprietor of M/s. Hemant Sharma & Associates, Company Secretaries In Practice, have 
conducted the review of the compliance of the appllcable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 
corpor;ite practices by KAIZEN AGRO INFRABUILD LIMITED, having CIN: L47219WB2006PLC107433 (hereinafter 
referred as 'Ille listed entlty'} and having its Registered Office at Chatterjee International Centre, 33A 
Chowtinghee Road, 6th Floor, Room No. 6A, Russel Street, Kolkata • 700071, West Bengal. Secretarial Review 
was oonducted In a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate 
conducts/statutory compliances and eNpres.slna my opinion thereon. 

Based on my verification of the listed entity's books, papers, minutes books, forms and returns filed and other 
records maintained by the listed entity and also the Information provided by the Usted entity, !ts officers, agents 
and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Review, we hereby report that in our opinion, 
the listed entity has, during the review period coverin& the financial year ended on March 31, 2025 ('Review 
Period'}, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder In the manner and subject to the reporting 
made hereinafter: 

I have examined: 

(a) ;ill the documents and records made available to us and explanation provided by ICAIZEN AGRO INFRABUILD 
LIMITED ("the listed entity"}; 

(b) the fl lings/ submissions made by the Hsted entity to the stock exchanges; 

(c) website of the listed entity; 

{d) any other document/ filing, as may be relevant, which has been relied upon to make this Report 

for the year ended March 31, 2025 ("Review Period") in respect of compliance with the provisions of: 

(!) the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 {"SEBI Act"} and the Re8ulations. circulars, 
guldellnes issued thereunder; and 

(ii} the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ("SCRA"), rules made thereunder and the Regulations, 
circulars, guidelines issued thereunder by the securities and .Exchange Board of India ("SEBjH); 

T1,e specific Reiulatfons, wflose pr011lslon$ and tt,e clra.tlal'$/ auldelfnes Issued thereunder, llave been examined, 
lnclude:-

(a) Securities and Exchange Board of lndla (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements} Regulations,2015; 

(b) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capita! and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018; 

(c) securities and Exchange Soard of Ind la (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers} Regulations,2011; 

(d} Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of securities) Regulations, 2018; (Not applfceble durifli tJ!e 
review period) 
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(e) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021; 
(Not appllcable durfng the review period 

{f) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and listif18 of Debt Securities) Regulations, :l008; (Hot 
appllc.11bh1 during the review period) 

{g) Securities and Exchange Board of India {Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulatlons,2021; 
(Not applrcable during the review period) 

(h) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 

{i} Other regulations as appllcable 

and circulars/ guidelines Issued thereunder; 

and based on the above examination, J hereby report that, during the Review Period: 

(a) 1••1 The listed entity has complied with the provisions of the above Re&ulations and circulars/ guidelines 
Issued thereunder, except In respect of matters specttled below : 

Compliance Ollse,-. 
Requirement 

Regu. vat/OM/ 
Sr. (Regutatlonsf 

latfon/ De11iatlon Action Typeo, Detallsof Fine Remarkso, Man-age-
Re-clrtulors/ Taken ~ mentRe• No. r,uTde-1/nes a"""'' s 

by Action Violation Amount 
Practicing mam 

No. sponse 
lnctud/Tlfl "'mpony 

lspedf/c dau~ Set:retary 

NONE 

(bl The fisted entity has taken the following actions to comply with the observatrons made in previous reports: 

COmpllanc:e Obser• 
Requlremerrt Re,111• vatlons/ Man-

Sr. (RegulatloM/ latlon/ Devla1for Action 
Typeo Details of Fine Remarks of a.re• 

Re-Taken Amoun the ment No. clrculars/culde-llnes Clrcula $ 
bv 

Action Violation 
t Practicing Re- marb 

lncludingspeclffc No. 
clauH) Company sponse 

Secretary 

NONE 
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We hereby further report that, during the Review Period the compliance status of the llsted entity is appended 
as below: 

SI. 
No, Parttadars 

l. secretariat Standards: 

The compliances of the llsted entity are In accordance 
with the applfcable Secretarial Standards (SS) issued by 
the Institute of Company Secretaries India (ICSI}, as 
notlfled by the Central Government under section 
118(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 and mandatorily 
appllcable. 

2. Adoption and timely updatlon of tt,e Policies: 

All appllcable pollcles under seer llegulatlons are 
adopted with the approval of board of directors of the 
Usted entitles. 

All the policies are In confonnlty with SEBI Regulationsand 

3. Maintenance and dlscl0$Ul'es on Website: 

The Listed entity Is maintaining a functronal website 

Timely dissemination of the documents/ informalfon 
under a separate section on the website 

Web-links provided in annual corporate governance 
reports under Regulatlon 27(2) are accurate and specific ... 

" . • · - ai:.._ • • 

4. Olsqualffieation of Director: 

None of the Director(s} of the Company Is/ are 
disqualified under Section 164 of Companies Act, 2013as 
confirmed by the listed entity. 

Detall$ related to SubsldfarlH of llsted entitles have 
beeneumlned w.r.t.: 

5. Identification of mater1al subsidiary companies 

Disclosure requirement of material as well as 
other subsidiaries 
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Compllanc:e 
Status 

(Yes/No/ 
NA) 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

NA 

Observations 
/Remarbby 

PCS* 

None 

The Company has updated its 
potrcres and Code with the 

approval of Board of Director 
dated March 09, 2024 as per 

updated regulations/circulars/ 
guidelines Issued by SE'BI 

pursuant to name change of 

The Company has updated its 
new Website 

•www.kalzeninfra.com• 
pursuant to name change of 

the Company 

None 

None 



Preservation of Documents: 

The listed entity is preserving and maintaining records as 
6. 

prescribed under SEBI Regulations and disposal of Yes None 

records as per Policy of Preservation of Documents 
~n, I Arch'"-' ~ _l!(!:SCrlbl!d ynder SE!II LODR 

Performance Evaluation: 

The listed entity has conducted performance evaluation 
Yes None 7. 

of the Board, Independent Directors and the Committee sat 

the start of every flnancial year/during the flnancial year 
as nr,-•~ribecf :n 5c o1 Re" "l" I""' , 

Related Party Tramactlons: 

8. The Jlsted entity has obtained prior approval of Audit Yes None 

Committee for all related partytransactions. 

Olscl0$11re of event$ or lnfotmatlon: 

The listed entity has provided all the required 
9. dlsclosure(s) under Regulatron 30 along with Schedule Ill Yes None 

of SEBI LODR Regulations, 2015 within the time limits 
prescribed thereunder. 

Prohibition of IMlder Tradln.r: 

10. The listed entity Is In compliance with Regulation 3(5) & Yes None 

3(6} SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 

Actions taken by SEBI o, Stock E'xchange(s), If anv: 

No action(s) has been taken against the listed entity/ 

11. its promoters/ directors/ subsidiaries either by SESlor N.A. None 
by Stock Exchanges {Including under the Standard 

Operating Procedures issued by SEBI through various 
I• ... : ... .... -• ~ -- _, · --• -- <C DI - ' . · - .l -· . • J 

Resignation of statutory aud!ton from the listed entity 
or 11$ materfal subsidiaries: 

N.A. None 12. 
There was no Instance of resignation of Statutory Auditor 
during the review period. 

Additional non-4:ompllancu, If any: 

13. No additional non-complfance observed for any SEBI N.A. None 

regulation/circular/guidance note etc. 
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We further, report that the listed entity Is In compliance/ not In compliance with the disclosure requirements of 
Employee Benefit Scheme Documents in tenns of regulation 46(2)(za) of the LODR Regulations: Not Applicable 

Assumptions & limitation of scope and Review: 

1. Compliance of the applicable laws and ensuring the authenticity of documents and information furnished, 
are the responsibilities of the management of the listed entity. 

2. Our responsibility ls to certify based upon our examination of relevant documents and Information. This Is 
neither an audit nor an expression of opinion. 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial Records and Books of Acoounts of the 
listed entity. 

4. This Report is solely for the ll'ltended purpose of compliance in tenns of Regulation 24A(2) of the SEBI (Listins 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and is neither an assurance as to the future 
vlabllity of the listed entity nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted 
the affairsofthe listed entity. 

Dote: 29-05-2025 
4C30of2023 

Place: Kolkota 
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For Hemant Sharma & Assodata 
Company Secretaries 

Hemant Sharmc, 
Proprietor 

Membership No.: A-42264 
COP No.: 17411 

Peer Review Certificate No.: 

UDIN: A042264G00048l417 
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Anne,rure- VII 

aRTIFICA'Tt BY A COMPANYSECRl:TARYIN PRACTICE 

(Pursuant to Claw;e lOlll of Para c of SC:hedule v of 59curttfes and bchange Board of lndla 

(Listing Obligations & Dlsdosure Requirements) Regulations, 20151 

To, 
KAIZEN AGRO INFRABUIW LIMITED 
{Formerly: Anubhov Infrastructure Umited) 
CIN:IA7219WB2006PLC107433 
Chatterjee International Centre, 

33A Chowringhee Road, 6th Floor, 
Room No. 6A, Russer Street 
koJkata- 700071, West Bengal 

We have e~amlned the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of 

Kallen Agro Jnfrabuild Umlted having CIN: L47219W82006PLC107433 and Registered Office at Chatterjee 

International Centre, 33A Chowringhee Road, 6th Floor, Room No. GA, Russel Street, Kolkata • 700071, West 

Deneal (hereinafter referred to as 'the Company'), produced before me by the Company for the purpose of 

issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Clause 10(1) of Para C of schedule \/ of 

securities & exchange Board of Jndla (Listing Obligations and DISCiosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

In our opinion and to the best of our Information and according to the verlflcations (Including Directors 

Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.ln) as considered necessary and eNplanations 

furnished to us by the Company and Its officers, we hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Soard of the 

Company as stated below as on date August 21, 2025 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed 

or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate 

Affairs or any such other Statutory Authority. 

We also Certify that the composition of the Board of Directors has been re-constituted as on 

dated August 21, 2025 and none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as on date stated below have 

been debarred or disquallfled from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and 

Exchange Board of lndla, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory Authority. 
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K•hwft 1111e11e 

,,.,..,,.,...u11,,o 1..1M1'hro 

SI. Director Date of 
Date of 

No. Name of Director Identification Appointment In 
Cessation Number the Company 

1. Mr. Pawan Kumar Jhunjhunwala 10049668 30/12/2022 -

2. Mr. Ankur Hada 10163731 20/05/2023 . 
3. Mrs. Mandeep Kaur Jalswal 10077160 29/04/2023 -
4. Mr. Amit Bajaj 10122918 14/08/2024 07/07/202S 

5. Mr. Kanwar Nitin Singh 10204543 14/08/2024 07/07/201.S 

6. Mrs. Roshnl Gadia 06652773 07/07/202S -
7. Mrs. Kalpana Tekriwal 31170688 07/07/2025 -

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment/ continuity of 11:Very Director on the Board is the responsibility of the 

Management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This 

certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viabllfty of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness 

with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

Date: 21-08-2025 
Place: Kolkata 
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For Hemont Sharmo & Assodates 
Company Secretaries 

Hemont Shorma 
Proprietor 

Membership No.: A-42264 
COPNo.:17411 

Peer Review Certificate No.: 4030 of 2023 
UD1N:A042264G001055826 
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MAliAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

The purpose of this discussion to provide an understanding of ftnanclal statements and a composite summary of 
performance of our business. 

Management ,Qlscusslan and Analysis (MDA) lndudts.: 

• Indian Economy overview 

• Industry Ovel'lllew 

• Business Overview 

• Business Outlook 

• Significant developments subsequent to the last flnanclal year 
• Flnanclal And Operational Performance 

• Internal Control Systems and adequacy 

• Material Development in Human Resources 

• Opportunltles And Threats 

• Risks And Concerns 

• Discussion On Financial Performance with respect to Operational Performance 
• Cautionary Statement 

INDIAN ECONOMY OVERVIEW: 

Global economies which were impacted by uncertainties and volatility on account of Co¥1d-19 fallout.. prolonged 
gecpolltlcal conflicts and monetary tightening by central banks amidst inflationary trends are wltnesslng gradual 
resurgence, marked by wanlne fears of recession and rebounding srowm In major economles. Howe11er, tliere are some 
regional lncongruences, wlth some regions experiencing subdued economic actillity on account of geopolitical tensions. 
Globally, Inflation management continues to remain a key priority. Despite these challenges, lea.dins indicators su&11e.st 
an overall e,q>anslon In economic actMty drive;, by both manufacturing and servlce sectors. 

lndla remains a brlaht spot in the revival of the global eoonomy. The Indian economy continued to exhibit robust 
economic performance with broacJ.basecs growth across sectors. RBI also, In Its recent MPC meeting, noted the strong 
grOW1h momentum In the economy and projected real GOP growth for 2024·2S at 7 percent, driven by a pickup In rural 
demand and sustained momentum In the manufacturing sector. In Its April 2024 WEO, JMF re11lsed upwards its estimate 
of India's GOP growth for FY 2024-2S to 7.8 peroent and of estimated a growth rate 6.8 percent In 2024-25 based on Its 
assessment of strength In domestic demand and demographic advantage. In March 2024, India witnessed a surge across 
multiple economic Indicators, reflecting robust and resillent business activity. The month marked slgnltlcant mllestones, 
from record-breaking performances In the stock market to remarkable ad¥ancements in tax revenue collection. The 
buoyancy eKtended to the manufacturing and services sectors, as evidenced by the soaring HSBC India Manufacturing 
PMI and Services PMI. The gross GST ~llectlons for the month of Al)ril 2024 hit a record high of '2,10 lakh crore which ls 
a growth of 12.4 per cent year-on-year. In March 2024, the HSBC India Manufacturing PMI surged to an impressl11e 59.2, 
a notable inaease from the final ftgure of 56.9 recorded In the pre11iaus month. This marks the fastest growth In factory 
activity since February 2008. 

In March, India's services sector hlt a peak, with exports surglnQ to a flscal year high. The HSBC India Servlces PMI soared 
to 61.2, marking one of the sector's most signlflc:ant expansions in sales and business actMty In nearly 14 years. 

The lndeK of Industrial Productlon (IIP) for February 2024 brought forth encouraging Insights into lndla's industrlal 
landscape, 

High Inflation though, was a key challenge for the Go¥emment and this has resulted In RBI haldlng on to hiah policy rates 
and rise in lending rates. 

Overall, lndla continues to be the fastest11rowlng maJor economy with posltl¥e assessments of the growtli ovtlook for 
the current ftnanclal year, for lndla by International organizations and RBI. 
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INDUSTRY OVERVIEW: 

Indian Jlirlcultural Sector Ovel'lllew 

Agriculture and allied sectors continue to remain one of the most Important sectors of the Indian economy and is the 
main source of livelihood for 55% of India's population. 

India has the world's largest cattle herd, the largest area planted for wheat, rice, and cotton, and is the largest producer 
of mllk, pulses, and spices In the world. It Is the second-largest producel' of fruit, vegetables, tea, t.irmed fish, cotton, 
sugarcane, wheat, rice, cotton, and sugar. The agriculture sector In India holds the record for second-largest agrlcultural 
land In tile world generating employment for about half of the country's populatlon. Thus, farmers become an integral 
part of the sector to provide us with a means of sustenance. 

The agriculture and allied sectors have remained reslllent throughout the pandemic and geopolitical conflfcts and is 
estimated to have grown by 0. 7% in Flnanclal Year 2024-25, as per Second Advance Estimates by Central Statistical Office 
(CSO). 

Foodgralns production declineel in khar1f season due to deficient and unevenly dlstrlbuteel rainfall (both spatially and 
temporally) along with depleting reser110lr levels. As of March 28, 2024 reservoir levels were at 36 per cent of the full 
capacity, below the last vear's level of 43 percent. 

Foodgralns production for 2oi4-2S Is estimated at 3,093.5 lakh tonnes, 1,3 per cent lower than the final estimates of last 
year (as per Seoond Advance Estimates). Among maJor crops, the output of rice declined whlfe that of wheat rose. Pulses 
production dropped with a sharp decline recorded during the kharif season. 

Amona commerclal crops, the output of oilseeds, cotton and susarcane reglstered a sharp decline vls~·vis last year. As 
per the First Adll;lnce Estimates (FAE), the production of horticultural aops durfn8 2023·24 was laoed at 355.3 mllllon 
tonnes, marginally lower than the final estimates of 2022-23 and 1.2 per cent higher than the FAE of 2022-23. 

The high fr~uency Indicators exhibit a mixed plcture of rural activity as two-wtieeler sales, agrl~ulture credit and 
MNREGA demand indicate buoyancy while tractor sales and fertiliser sales suagest some softness in activity during H2. 
Prospects of rural activity, however, appear brlglit Clue to better prospects of agricultural output amidst the IMO's 
forecast of an above normal south-west monsoon In 2024 and accelerated plck up in Informal sector activity. 

The interim budget for FY24-25 has promi~ stepping up of value addition In agricultural sector and boosting farmer's 
Income and has made substantial budgetary allocations as below: 

• TIN! al/ocatlon for tlle Agriculture mfnl':lt7y has bff11 set at 'l,17 lo/tit cn,re t:1<hlbltfng 11tt flH:retl!U! from rtwlnd 
estimates af 'l,16 lfflth Mire In FY 2i1-24. 

• Outlay for agrkula.l~ and all'" acfMtlr!s t:nhan«d to '1..41 al/Hon In FY1.01S Budg,!t Estlmole$ (BE} from '1,41 
fr/I/Jon In 202i1-l4 Rl!'tl/$td E.stlmoffs (RE). 

• AJ/ocatiPtt towom mod/ffe!d hrterest ~INl!n/:Joft scheme /nt:reo.sed to '2Z6 b/1/lon for FYZOlS BE from '1BS bl/lion for 
FY20Z4RE. 
• AJ/ol:atk>tt for Rttiht¥1ya Krhhl Vlkas Yojna /rtC#'ff$fd to '15.S bill/on /ol' F'fZ01S BE from '61 b/1/lon for FY20Z4 RE. 
• AJl«ation af '600 bit/Ian for FYl01S BE towfJtds tlle Ptadhart Mafltrf KTson Sammon Nld/11 Yojna remains ot slmrlor 
~Is OS FY20.l4 RE, 
• Promt)tion of pl'Mltil a/Id pub/le lnv,stmellt In post•haNIISt activftle1, fncludlng Offft:fallan, modem sto11111e, 
i,Jfk/tmt siJpp/y chain$, prlmar, and set:fllldor, PfO(;ealng, as well as mo1*etfng ond IHttlldlng. In wklw of tfte H()wt 
rnen!Joned, agrlcultl/,e outpl,t Is~ to remain robust ond the sector ls Hlttly to cotttlfllH! on a growth path. 

In ~iew of the above mentioned, agrlculture output Is expected to remain robust and the sector rs llkely to continue on a 
growth path. 
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CONSTRUCTION 

The Construction Industry in Jndla plays a vital role in economic activity after agriculture and pl'OVldes employment to 
large amount of people. Broadly, construction can be classlfted Into two segments - Infrastructure and real estate. 

The Infrastructure ~gment involves construction projects In different sectors like roads, rails, ports, Irrigation, power, 
etc. Investment In the Infrastructure sector plays a crucial role In the growth of the economy of the country. The Industry 
is highly responsible for propellfng India's overall development and enjovs Intense focus from the Government for 
initiating policies that would ensure the country's time-bound creation of world-class Infrastructure. 

BUSINESS OVERVIEW & SEGMENTS: 

Your Company Is a diverslflecl, re.search and development focused agrl-busines.s Company. The Company me11se.s on 
improving the productivity of farmers by Innovating products and services that sustainably ina-ease crop and livestock 
yields. 

8U.5,jNESS OUTLOOK: 

Outlook remains stable for the current year. The Company has a Net Worth as on March 31, 2025 Is As. 11533.28 Lacs. 
We had entered Into a business of trading of agro products within the country and with major fOC1Js on exports. This 
assumes significance when we take Into account that the leading Infrastructure companies are passing on the projects 
awarded, to contractors down the line. Further, most of our dlents are prlllate sector entitles and we have not faced 
many thalle~es as far as billing and collections are concerned, We have not hacs any bacl debts so far and we do not 
have any outstanding debtor's position for more than slk months. 

SIGNIFICANT DEVELOPMENTS SUBSEQUENT TO ntE LAST FINANCIAL YE.AA: 

After the date of last flnanclal vear, 1.e. March 31, 2025, the Directors of our Company conflrm that, there Is a Si81liflcant 
material development In the business line of & Company which was already stated above. 

Key factors affecting the Resulh of 01*'8tlons: 

Our Company's future results of operations could be affectecs potenllally by the folloW1ng factors: 

• Political condition: In case of polltlcal instabllfty, government could mange the spending pattem on 
Infrastructure. This change In policy framework can affect our business. 

• Stringent condition of our contract: Most of our contracts are time bound as well as put a condition of meeting 
the minimum standard requirement of such construction. Contract may stipulate penalty condition for non­
closure of our project in time. This non completion of project in time could affect our flnancials. We are subject 
to blacklisting by the authority for non-full-flling our commitment. 

• Our ability to attract and retain Skilled and technical staff: Skilled and Technical Staffs are required by us mr all 
our projects. We take up various projects based on avallabllfty of right mlM of man power. Thus, our growth Is 
likely to be affected l)y our ability to attract and retain skllled and technical manpower. 

• Effect of Inflation: We are affected by Inflation as It has an Impact on the operating co.st, staff costs et(:. In line 
with changing inffatlon rates, we rework our margins so as to absorb the inflationary impact. 

OPPORTUNITIES. STRENGTHS, CONCERNS 

Opportunities and Stren,ths 

• lnetease merket share In eMl&lln.g business verticals : Several sectors In which your Company operates are largely 
unorganized, therefore, cost leadership ls a key enabler for your Company to increase the market !hare of Its products In 
those segments. The Company's abfllty to Increase sales will be strengthened by contlnued focus on offering a wide range 
of innovative products across all business verticals which will help In gainins marlcet share. Addltlonally, In the medium­
term, due to supply dlaln disruption and lack of liquidity leading to the clo.sure of smaller business units, larger players 
with strong balance sheets will sain market share. 
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• Pan-tndla pre5ence with extensive supply and dlfftlbutlon networfc to benefit the Company In me 10111-run : Your 
Company has a pan~ndia presence and operations spanning across S (five) buslne.ss verticals. The Company has set up 
processing facilities and supporting Infrastructure a~ well as R&D to develop a modern operating platform across key 
agrlculture venlcals. As a result of Its widespre.d network and slgnlftcant operational experience, the Company Is well 
placed to Identify key market trends and introduce a range of lnnovatlve and value-added products In the market to c.ter 
to the evoMng needs of the customers. The nationwide footprint also allows the C.Ompany to lever.ge !he competlttve 
advantages of each location to enhance competltlvt>ness and reduce geographic and pollllcal risks In businesses. 

• D!verslfled businesses with syne,if8$ In operations : ~mental .nd geographical diversification .cross business 
verticals provide a hedge against the risks associated with any particular Industry segment or geography while benefitin.g 
from the synergies of operating in diverse but related businesses. Synergies across diverse businesses provide the ability 
to drive growth, optlmlze capital efficiency and maintain competitive advantage. The Company also derives operational 
efficiencies by centralizing and sharina certain key functions across businesse.s such as finance, IE1r.1l, information 
1echnology, strategy, procurement and human resources. 

• Strong ReSllllrch & Dellelopment {R&O) Capabllltiea: The Company's emphasis on R&D has been crltlcal to its success 
and a differenl1atlng factor from compelltors. Dedicated R&O is undertaken in eKlstlng products prlm.rlly with a focus to 
Improve yields and process efficiencies. Investment Is also being made In developing Innovative technol09Jes to further 
grow our product portfolio across businesses. 

• Foc:11s on lnorpnlcillly srowln1 busln9$$ offerin,p : Your Company will evaluate inorganic growth opporiunltles, in 
keeping with the strategy to grow and develop market share or to add new product categories. Your Company may 
consldef opportunities for Inorganic growth, such as through mergers and acquisitions, if, amongst other things, they 
consolidate market posltlon In existing business verticals or achieve operating leverage in key markets by unlocking 
potential efficiency and synergy benefits. Your C.Ompanv can also look at opportunities that will strengthen and expand 
Its product portfollo and increase Its sales and dfstrlbutlon networlc. 

Tnreats, Risk & c:o-a 

• Unfavourabl~ local and stobal weather pattern$ ~" have an adverse effect on the busl'nelS: As an agri-based 
Company, the businesses are sensltlve 10 weather conditions, including extremes such as drought and n.tural disastefs. 
The availability of raw materials required for operations and the demand for products may be advel"$('1y affected by 
longer than usual periods of heavy ralnfalt In ~ain reslons or a drought In lndla. The oC<:Urrence of any unfavourable 
we.ther patterns may adversely affect business, results of operations and ftnancial condition. 

• Avallab!llty of raw materials and ammsements with suppliers for r.aw materials: Each of the businesses depends on 
the .vallablllty of reasonably priced, hlgh-quallty raw materials In th~ quantities required by operations. The price and 
avallablllty of such raw materlals depend on several factors beyond the Company's control, lndudlng overall eoonomic 
conditions, production levels, market demand and competition for such materials, production and transponatlon cost, 
duties and ta•es and trade restrictions. The Company typlcalty sources raw materials from thlrd-party suppllers or the 
open market which e•poses the Company to volatility In the prlces of r.rw materials and dependence on thlrd-panv for 
delivery of raw material. Also, any lnablllty to procure raw materials from alternate suppliers In a timely fashion, or on 
commer<:ialty acceptable terms, may adversely affect operations. 

• Jmptoptt nandllng, proc:esslffi or stora,ce of raw materials or products: The products that your Company 
manufactures or prooesses are subject to risks such as contamination, adulteration and product tampering during tlielr 
manuracturlng, 1ransport or storage. Inherent business ri5lts e•lst In form of product llablilty or recall dalms if products 
rail to meet the requlr~ quality standards or are alleged to result In harm to customers. Such risks may be controlled, 
but not eliminated, by adhere"<:e to good manufacturing practices and finished product testins. Aftliough the Company 
has product liability insurance oover for domestic and international markets for businesses, It cannot assure that this 
insurance cove<age is adequate or that any losses will be .dequately compensated by the Insurers In the event of a 
product llabllity claim. 
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• Seasonal variations In the businesses: Your Company's businesses are subject to seasonal variations that could result In 
fluctuations In performance. For example, In the animal feed business, the Company sells lower volumes of cattle feed 
during the monsoons due to the al/1!ilablllty of green fodder. In the poultry and processed foods business, the demand for 
poultry products is higher In the second half of the Financial Year since the consumption of poultry meat and eggs ls 
higher during winter months, while the sale of such products Is lower during certain religious festivals. As a result of such 
seasonal fluctuations, sales and results of operations may vary by fiscal quarter. The sales and results of operations of any 
given flsc::al quarter may not be relied upon as Indicators of the sales or results of operations of other fiscal quarters or 
future performance. In addition, financial performance Is also lmpac:ted by other risks such as Inability to manage 
diversliled operations, dependency of revenue from anlmal feed business and de~ndenc:y of the utllliation of services of 
third parties for our operations. 

•NJlBNAL CONJROL SVSTEM AND ADEQUACY: 

Internal Control Systems has been designed to provide reasonable assurance that assets are saf-eguarded, transactions 
are executed ln accordance's with management's authorization ancs properly reoorded and accounting records are 
adequate fur preparation of tlnancial statements and other ftnandal information. Internal check Is conducted on a 
periodical basis to ascertain the adequacy and effectiveness of Internal conttol systems. 

FINANCIAL AND Ol'ERATIOHAL PERFORMANCE 

TIie key hlghllght1S of Financials for the Financial Year ended March 31. 2025 area.s under: 

(Amount In Lacs) 
Pal11culars Year Ended Yeer£nded 

March :u, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Turnover 1,967.64 3,is().89 
Proftt/(Loss) before tax:atlon S2.S9 14.08 
Less: Tax Ellpense 13,66 3.66 
Proflt/{Loss) aftl!f tax 38.92 10.19 
Add: Balance B/F from the pre111ous year 244.92 2.34.73 
Balance Profft / (loss) C/F to the next year 283.84 l44.92 

MATERJA1 D£\1ELOPMfNT IN HUMAN RESOURCES: 

During the year, your Company has appointees Company Secretary and Compliance Officer to look over various 
compliances. The Company continues to lay emphasis on developing and facllltatlng optimum human performance 
management was the key word for the Company thi$ ye:ar. 

OPflORTUNmES AND THREATS: 

The performance of capita! market In India has a direct correlation with the prospect of economic growth and political 
stablllty. Though the growth proJeclions for FY. 2024-25, appear reasonable, there are certain downside risks such as 
pace and $hape of global recovery, effect of withdrawal of fiscal stimulus and hardening of commodlt:V prices. Our 
business performance may also be Impacted by lncteased a:,mpe1ltlon from local and global players operating in India, 
regulatory changes and attrition of employees. With growing presence of players offering advisory service coupled with 
provision of funds for !tie dlents' neecss, we would face competition of unequal propol11on. 

RISKS AND CONCERNS: 

This section contain$ forward - lookins statements that Involve risks and uncertalntles. Our actual results could differ 
materlally from those anticipated in these statements. As the Industrial and economic growth of the country Is showins 
steady Improvement. There Is no perc:elved risk and concern In this area of business and there Is an ample scope for 
growth In India itself. Forward looking statements are baseCS on certain assumptions and e)(pec:tations of the future 
events that are $UbJl!C! to risks and uncertainties. Attual future results and trend may differ materially from historical 
results, dependlns on variety of factors. Their risk and concerns faced by the Company are similar to those faced by any 
growing organ1~at1on In today dynamic Industrial and economic scenario. 
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l)lSCUSSION ON flNANCW. PERFORMANCE WITH RESPEq TO OPERATIONAJ.. PERFOAMAti(;E: 

The details of the financial performance are appearing In the financial statements separately. The hlghllghts of the 5ame 
are also mentioned in the Directors' Report. 

CAU'l'IONARY STATEMENT: 

Certain statements under "Management Discussion & Analysls" describing the Company's objectives, projections, 
estimates, e~atlons or predictions may be forward looking statement wlthln the meaning of applicable securities 
laws and regulatlons. Although the expectation5 are based on reasonable aS5umptfons, the actual results could materially 
differ from those expressed or Implied, since tlie Company's operations are Influenced by many eicternal and Internal 
factors beyond the control of the Company. The Company assumes no responsibility to publicly amend, modify or revise 
any forward-looklng statements, on the basis of any subsequent developments, Information or events. 

DISCI.AIMER 

The statements In the "Management Discussion and Analysis Report" describe t1,e Company's objectives, projections, 
expectation5, estimates or forecasts which may be •torward-lookfng statements• within the meaning of the applicable 
laws and regulations. Actual results mav differ $\lbStantially or materially from those e)(j)ressed or Implied therein due to 
risks and uncertalntles. Important factors that could Influence the Company's operations, inter olfa, include elobal and 
domestic demand and supply conditions affecting selling prices of ilnlshed goads, Input availability and prices, changes In 
govemment regulations, taK laws, economic, politlc:al development5 within the country and other factors such as 
litigations and indu5trlal relations. 

Place: Kollcata 
Date: August .21, 2025 
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(Managing D/rect()r} 
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

The report on Corporate Governance for the Financial year ended on Maren 31, 202S as per the applicable provisions of 
S£81 (Listing Obllsallons & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 201S are as under: 

COMPAHY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE 01 GOVERNANCE 

The Directors present the Company's Report on Corporate Governance as per SEBI (Listing Obliaations & Disclosure 
Requirements) Re,1ulatlons, 201s with Stoac Exchanses. 

Corporate Governance enoompasses a set of systems and practices to ensure that the Company's affairs are being managed 

In a manner which ensures accoun1abllity, transparency and faimess In all transactions In the widest senre. The objective Is 

to meet stakeholders' aspirations and societal expectations. Good governance practiCl:!s stem from the dynamic culture and 
positive mindset of 1he organization. The essence of Corporate Governance lies In promoting and maintaining Integrity, 

transparency and aocountablllty In 1he manasement's higher echelons. The demands of Corporate Governance require 
professionals to raise their competence and capability levels 10 meet the expec1at1ons in managing the entet"prlse and its 

resources effectively with the hlshest standards of ethics. It has thus beoome cruclal 10 foster and sus1a1n a culture that 
integrates all oomponents of good aovemanoe by carefully balancing the complex inter-relatlonshlp amona the Board of 
Directors. 

BESI' CORPORATE GOVE11NANC[ PRACTICES 

M/s. Kalzen A,Qro Jnfrabulld Limited (Formerly: Anubhav Infrastructure Limited) maintains !he highest standards of Corporate 

Governance. It Is the Company's constant endeavor to adopt the best Corporate Governanoe practfces keeping in view 1he 
international codes of Corporate Governance and practices of well-known global companies. Some of the best Implemented 
global governanct? norms include tht? following: 

• The Company has a designated Lead Independent Director with a defined role. 

• All securities related flllngs with Stock Exchanees and SEBI are reviewed every quarter by the Company's 
Stakeholders' Relatlonship Committee or Directors. 

• The Company has independent Board CommltteEs for matters rela1ed to Corporate Governance and stakeholders' 
interfact> and nomination of Board members. 

• The Company's Internal audit is also oonducted by Independent auditors 

• The Company also undergoes quarterly secretarial audl1 conducted by an Independent Company secretary who is in 

whole-time practice. The quarterly secretarial audit reports are place<! before the Board and the annual secretarial 
audit report placed before the Board, Is Included In the Annual Report. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

lloard Composition and categc;!(Y. of Dltecton: 

The Board of Dlrectors is the apex body constituted by shareholders for o~erseeing 1he Company's overall functioning. The 
Board provides strategic direction and leadership and oversees the management policies and their effectiveness looking at 

long-term Interests of shareholders and other s1akeholders. The Composition of the Board of Directors of the Company is in 

conformity with Regulation 17 of the SEBl's (Listing Obligations & Disclosure fle(luirement) Regulation, 2015 and Section 149 
of the Companies Act, 2013. As on March 31, 2025 the Board consisted wfth optimum combination of Executive, Nan­

Executive and Independent Directors, including presence of a woman Director. Mare than fifty percent of the Directors 
comprised of Non-Exl!Qltive Independent Directors. 
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The Composition of the Board of DI recto ts of the Company at the beslnnlng of the finandal year dated April 01, 2024: 

SI. No. Name of the Director Deslan1111on Category 
1. Mr. Ankur Hada Managing Olr«tor Executive Director 
2. Mr. Pawan Kumar Jhunjhunwala Whole-nme Director Executive Dlrectot 
3. Mr.8itu Pal Director Non- Executive Independent Director 
4. Mr. Ajay Kumar Khandelwal Dlrectot Non- Executive Independent Director 
.5. Mrs. Mandeep Kaur Jalswal Director Non- f'.l(ecutl~ Independent Director 

• Mr. Bitu Pal (DIN: 01684171) has reslsned as a Non-Executive Independent Dlrecto, of the Company w.e.f August 14, 
20?4. 

• Mr. Ajay Kumar l<handelwal (DIN: 021S6S6SJ, has resigned as a Non-Executive Independent Director of the Companyw.e.f 
August 14, 2024. 

• Mr. Kanwar NitinSingh (DIN: 10204S43J has been appointed as an Additional Non-Executive Independent Director of the 
Company w.e.f August 14, 2024. 

• Mr. Amit 8ajaj !DIN: 10122918), has been appointed as an Additional Non-Execulive Independent Director of the 
Company w.e.f August 14, 2024. 

The Composition of the Board of Directors of the Company at the end of the financial year dated March 31, 20is: 

SI. No. Name of th~ Director Deslfll!allon catesorv 
1. Mr. Ankur Hada Mana~ing Director Executive Director 
2. Mr. Pawan Kumar JhunJhunwala Whole Time Director Executl~ Director 
3. Mrs. Mandeep Kaur Jaiswal Director Non- Executive & Independent Director 
4. Mr. Kanwa, Nitin Singh Ditector Non- Executive & Independent Director 
s. Mt. Amit BaJaJ Dlr«tor Non- Executive & Independent Director 

• Mr. Kanwar NltlnSlngh (DIN: 10204543) has tesigned as a Non~xecutive Independent Director of the Companyw.e.f July 
07,2025 

• Mr. Amit Bajaj {DIN: 10122918), has resigned as a Non·Executfve Independent Director of the Company w.e.f July 07, 
2025 

• Mrs. Roshni Gadla (DIN: 06652773) has been appointed as an Additional Non•Executive Independent Director of the 
Company w.e.f July 07, 202S 

• Mrs. Kalpana Tekriwal (DIN: 1117068l!) has been appointed as an Additional Non-ExOOJtlve Independent Director of the 
Company w.e.f July 07, 202S. 
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The Composition of the Board of Directors of the Company ti!I date Is mentioned /l~ri b~low: 

SI. No. Name of 1M Director °"lgnalion Cate&ory ""· or No.of number of 
Dlnt<to11hlp Comm!UN $harm and 

In other P"-lc: I. ,ooslllon, (QJ\YIU'tMlf e 
PrtmeUmlltd htld In ollwlr In tt:rum1 ntl 

Q:lmp1nl• Public 
(lnaudl"' MJ., Umlled 

Kai""' A//10 Cclmp1nlN• 
lnfrab<illd 
Umlt<>d) 

1, Mr.AnkurHada Managing Director E-utlve Director 1 0 0 
2. Mr. Pawan Kumar Whole·Tlme Executive Director l 0 0 

Jhunjhunwala Director 
3. Mrs. Mandeep Kaur Jalswal Director Non-Executlve s 0 0 

Independent 

Director 
4. Mrs. Kslpana Tekl'IW111 Director No,.. Executive 2 1 0 

Independent 
Director 

s. Mrs. Roshnl Gadle Directer Non· Execut~ 3· 1 0 
Independent . 

Director 

•1n aoootdance with Regulation 26 of SES! Listing Regolations, Memberships (M)/ Chalrmanshlp.s (C)of only Audit Committees 
and Stakeholder$' Relatronshlp Committees In all public limited companies haw been considered. 

•• lnclvdes Individual as well as HUF shareholding 

Name of the other listed in which Director having ditectorshlp and their c:atesory of directorship: 

Mn. Mandeep ICltur JalJWal 

SI. No. CIN Company Name category of DIN!Ctorshlp 
1. L6S993lN81979PLCD32l74 MULTICON REALTY LIMITED Director 
2. LS1909\N82001PLC093941 ABHA PAOPERTY PROJECT llMITEO Director 
3. l01403\N82011PLC162131 KARNIMATA COLD STORAGE LIMITED Director 
4. L51S09lN82001PLC093941 ABHA PROPERTY PROJECT LIMITED Oireaor 

Mrs. Kalpana Telutwal 

SI.No. CIN Company Name Catqary of Directorship 
1. l2.8219\NB1997PlC0834S7 M/s. Julien Agro lnfratech limited Non-1:xecutlve Independent 

Dlreaor 

Mn. RO$hnf Gadla 

SI. No. CIN Coma any Name Category of Directorship 
1 l28219~B1997PLC0834S7 M/s. Jullen Agro lnfratech Umlted Non-Executive Independent 

Director 

The functioning of the Management is under the overall superintendence of the Board of C>lrectots which provides strategic 
direction to cater to the elCigencies of 1he Company's objectives and practices of governance by way of formulating or 
approving policies and procedures. 

The agenda of the meeting are circulated well in advance to the Board members by romprel'lenslve background Information 
to enable them to take Informed decisions. In addition to the Information required under the Ustlng Regulations, the Board Is 
also kept informed of major events/Items and appro\lllls are taken whetever nec:essary. 
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During the year, separate meeting of the Independent 011'€ctors was held on March 29, 202S without the attendance of non­
Independent directors and members of the management. All Independent Directors attended the said meeting. 

All Independent Directors have given declarations that they meet the criteria of Independence as laid down under Section 
149(7) of the companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (listing Obllgatlons & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

Attendance of Directors at Board Meeting. Last Annual General Meeting (AGM) & number of other Dlrectotship and 
Chairmanship/Memberships of Committees of each Director In various Companies as on March 31, 2025. 

BOAAD MEETINGS & PROCEDUIU: 

The functioning of the Management is under the overall superintendence of the Board of Directors which provides strategic 
direction to cater to the exigencies of the Company's obJettrve.s and practices of governance by way of l'ormulating or 
approving policies and procedures. 

The agenda of the meeting are circulated well in advance to the Board members by comprehensive background information 
to enable them to take Informed decisions. In addition to the Information required under the Usting RE!8Ulatlons, the Board Is 
also kept Informed of major events/items and approvals are tal«!n wherever neoe!.Sary. 

Ten Board Meetings were held during the period 01.04.2024 to 31.03.2025. The dates on which the Board meetings were held 
are as follows: 

08.04.2024 29.04.2024 31.05.2024 

31.07.2024 14.08.2024 04.09.2024 

11.11.2024 26.12.2024 14.02.2025 

29.03.2025 

The mawlmum time gap between any two meetings was le!.S than 120 days as stfpulated under Regulation 17 of the listing 
Regulations. 

INFORMATION PLACE BEFORE THE BOARD: 

The Company has ,omplled with Part-A of Schedule II of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, WlS read wlth Regulation 17 of the said 
regulations with regard to information ~ins placed before the Board of Directors. 

CODE OF CONDUCT FOR BOARD MEMBERS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT 

The Board of Directors has laid down the code of conduct for all the Board Members and members of the Senior Management 
of the Company. Addition ally, all Independent Directors of the Company shall be bound by duties of Independent Directors as 
set out In the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Schedules and Rules thereunder. 

All the Board members and Senior Management personnel have affirmed compliance with the code of conduct. The Code of 
Conduct is avallable on the website of the Company www.kal~enlnfra.com. 
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$/. NQ. Name of 1he DI_, Board AWlnded last No. of D1rect0tihip In other No.of 
MH11nll AGMheldon Ult4id Campanles Membmhip 
Attended 30.09.20.24 In Commlttn, 

Chalm,on Dlractor of lllNn:~rs In 
ath er ll ltl!d 

1. Mr. Bltu Pal soutof 10 No 
comaanlH 

. . 
2. Mr. Ajay Kumar Khandelwal s outof10 No . . . 
3. Mr. Ankur Hada 10 out of 10 Yes . . 
4, Mr. Pawan Kumar 10outof 10 Yes . . . 

Jhunjhunwala 
s. Mrs. M~nd~p Kaur Jaiswal 10 out of 10 Yes . 4 . 
6. Mr, Amit Bajaj SoutoflO Yes . 6 . 
,. Mr, Kanwar Nitin Slnsh 5 out of 10 Yes .s . 
8. Mrs. Roshnl Gad la 0 No . 1 1 

9. Mrs, Kalpana Tektlwal 0 No . 1 . 

• None of me Whole-time Directors are acting as Independent Directors In mote than three listed companies. Besides. 
Independent Directors have been famllfarlzed with their roles, rishts and responsibilities through programmes 
undertaken In mis regard. 

• None of the Directors hold directorship in more than 20 companies including 10 public companies and private 
companies whidi are subsidiary or holding of public companies or Is a member of more than 10 Board-level Committees 
or Chairman of more than 5 ,uch Committees as specified in SESI (Listing Obligations & Disdosure Requirements) 
regulations, 2015, across all the companies In which he-she Is a director. 

• None of the non-whole-time Directors is actlng as Independent Director Is more than seven llsted companies. 
• None of the executive Director and non-executive Director holds any ,hare of the Company. The Company has not 

issued any convertible Instruments: 

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 
The Company has compiled with the deflnltion of Independence as per Section 149 read with the provisions of Schedule IV 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and applicable regulations of the SEBI (Ustlng Obligations & Disclosure 
Requirement.) Regulations, 2015. They also obtained declarations from all me Independent Directors pursuant to Section 
149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013. Whene-.er new Non-Executive and Independent Directors are Included in the Board 
they are Introduced to our Company's culture through appropriate orientation session and they are also Introduced to our 
organization structure, our business, Board procedures, Board Pollcles, risks and management strategy. The Company has 
adopted a Famillarllatlon programme for Independent Directors which is uploaded on the Company's website" 
www.kalzeninfra.com•. In the opinion of the Board, all the Independent Directors fulflll the conditions speclfles In SEBI 
ILODR) Regulations, 2015 as amended and are Independent of the Management. Cenlfi.:.ate from Company Secretary in 
practice certifying that none of the Directors on the Board have been debarred or dlsqualiffed from being appointed or 
continuing as Director of the Company by SEBI/ Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any other ,tatutorv authority Is annexed to 
this repon 

CODE OF CONDUCT 

The Company has In place a comprehensive Code of Conduct (the Code) applicable to all me employees and Non-executive 
Directors lnduding Independent Olre.:iors. The Code Is applicable to Non-executive Directors Including Independent 
Directors to such extent as may be appllcable to them depending on their roles and responsibilities. The Code gives guidance 
and support n~ed for ethical conduct of business and compliance of law. The Code reflects the values of the Company 
111z, • customer Value, Ownership Mind-set, Respect, Jnt1!1Jrlty, One Team and Excellence. 
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A copy of the Code has been put on the Company's website •www.kaizeninfra.com•. The Code has been circulated to 
Oir~ors and Management Personnel, and Its compliance Is affirmed by them annually. 

BOARD PIIOCEDURE 

A tentative annual calendar of Board and committee Meeting Is agreed upon at the begtnnlnB of the year. Additional 
Meetings are held, whenever necessary. 

The agenda and notes on agenda are circulated to the Board Members In advance for t.acllltatlng meaninBful and focused 
discussion at the Board Meeting. The Board Members, In consultation with lhe Chairman may bring up any matter for 
consideration of the Board. 

The Board periodically reviews compliance report of all laws applicable to lhe Company. Steps are taken by the Company 
to rectify or comply the Instances of non-<.0mpllance, if any noticed. 

ROLE OF THE COMPANY SECRETARY Ir( OVERAU. GOVERNANCE PROCESS 
The Company Secretary play, a key role In ensuring that the Board (Including committees thereof) procedures are followed 
and regularly reviewed. The Company Secretary ensures that all relevant information, details and documents are made 
a113flable to the Directors and senior management for effective decislon-<naklng at the Meetings. The Company Secretary is 
primarily responsible to as.slst and advise the Board in the conduct of affairs of the C<>mpany, to ensure compliance with 
applicable statutory requirements and Secretarial Standards, to provide guidance to Directors and to facilitate convening of 
Meeting,. She Interfaces between the management and resulatory authoritie, for governance matter,;. 

COMMITTEES AND ITS TERMS OF REFERENCE 
The Board Committees have been conS11tuted 10 review/deal with speclftc areas and actlYltles, the relevant Committee Is 
meant for. The Board Committees are set up under the formal approval of the Board to carry out clearly deflned roles 
Including roles mandated under SEBI (listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 which are to 
performed by members of the Committees as part of good governance practice. The minutes of the meetings of all the 
Committees are placed before the Board for review. 

The terms of reference of Board Committees are determined by the Board from time to time. Presently the Company has 
three committees i.e. Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Slakeholders Relationship 
Committee. All the decisions pertalnlngto the constitution of the Committees, appointment of members, and llH!ng of terms 
of reference fur committee members are taken by the Board of Directors. Details on the role and composition of these 
committees, including the number of Meetings held during the financial year and the related attendance, are provided 
below: 

AUDrr COMMIT'IE£ 
The composition, powers, role and terms of reference of the Audit Committee are in accordance with the requirements 
Mandated Under Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules made thereunder and Regulation 18 & 21 
read with Part C of Schedule II of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosurt' Requirements) Regulations, 201S. Tht' major task 
performed by the Audit Committee may be grouped under tht' following head: 

STATUTORY AUDlt. INTERNAL AUDrr. REPORTING AND OtHER ASPECTS 

a.) The Audit Committee of the Company Is entrusted with the responsibility to supervise the Company's Internal 
<»ntrols and flnandal Reporting process The Committee acts as a llnk between the Management, Auditors 
and the Board of Directors of the Company and has full access to the financial Information. 

b.J Oversight of the Company's flnancial Reporting process and the disclosure of Its ftnancial Information to 
ensure that lht' flnancial statement is correct, sufftdent and credible and ensuring tlmelv submission to 
mtutorv authorities. 

c.) Reviewing the Management Di5¢US,ion & Analysis of financial and operational performance. 

d,J Revlewthe adequacy and effectiveness of the Company's system and internal control. 
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e.) To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mectianlsm. 

RoJes of tht Audit Committee 
../ Review and re<»mmend to the Board the appointment/re-appointment of the Statutory Auditors and Internal 

Auditors considering their Independence and effectl~eness and their replacement and remO\lal . 

../ To recommend to the 8oard the remuneration of the Statutory Aud Ito ts and Internal auditors . 

./ Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as 
post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of ooncem . 

./ Discussion with Internal auditors of any significant flndlngs and follow up there on . 

./ Develop an annual plan for Committee . 

./ Review of financial reportln8 processes, 

./ Review of risk management, Internal control and governance ptocesses . 

./ Discussions on quarterly, half yearly and annual financial statements, 

..r 11,teraction with statutory, Internal auditors, 

..r Recommendation fer appointment, remuneration and tErms of appointment of auditors and 

./ Risk management framework concerning the critical operations of the Company 

P-rs of the Audit Committee 
To Investigate any activity within Its terms of reference. 
To seek information from any employee 

To obtain outside legal or other professional adllice 

To secure attendance of outsiders with rele\lllnt expertise, If it considers necessary 

• Carrying out any other function as Is mentioned In the terms of reference of the Audit Committee. 
• Matter included In the Dlre<:tor's Responslblllty Statement; 
• Changes, if any, In the accountlng policies; 
• Major accountina estimates and slgntftcant adjustments In financial statement; 
• Compliance wltli !ISiing and other legal requirements concemlng financial statements; 
• Disclosures in financial statement Including related party transactions; 
• Qualiflcatlon In draft audit report; 
• Sautlny of Inter-corporate Joans & investments; 
• Management's Discussions and Analysis of Company's operations; 
• Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it Is necessary; 
• Perlodical Internal Audit Reports and the report of Fraud Risk Management Committee; 
• Findings of any special investigations carried out either by the Internal Auditors or by the external JnveSl18ating 

aaencles; 
• Letters of Statutory Auditors to management on lntemal control weakl'less, if any; 
• Major non,routine transactions recorded in the flnancial statements involving exercise of Judgment by the 

manasement; 
• Recommend to the Board the appointment, re-llppolntment and, if required the repla~ment or removal of the 

statutory 

• auditors and cost auditors considering their Independence and effectiveness, and recommend the audit fees; and 

Subject to review by the Board of Directors, re11lew on quarterly basis, Related Party Transactions entffl!d into by the 
Company pursuant to ead'I omnibus approval given. 

M.,,Uns Petalls 

During the year the Committee had 6 Meetings I.e. on May 30, 2024; July 31, 2024; August 14, 2024, September 04, 2024; 
November 11, W24and February 14, 2025. 

• The Chairman of the Audit Committee Is an Independent Director and the Secretary of the Company acts as the 
Secretary to the Committee. Executives from different departments and Representative of Statutory Auditors/ Internal 
Auditors are Invited to attend the Audit Committee Meeting where their reports are discussed. 
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• The Managing Directors, Chief Flnanclal Officer and the Auditors of the Company also attended 1he Meetings of 1he 
Comm11tees. 

• All the Members of the Committee are flnancially literate and have ftnanclal manasement eHpertlse. 
• The maximum gap between any two Meetings of the Audit Committee held during the year was not more than one 

hundred and twenty days complying with the Companies Act, 2013 and provisions of SEBI (LODR) Rl!8ulatlons, 201S. 

Composition 

The Composition of the Committee at the beginning offtnanclal year 2024-25 and number of meetinss helcl are mentioned 
herewith:-

Sf.No N1mo of tho 01 ...... , Nature of Dlrutorsh~ Dulptto,, In No. of No.ofMeetlnp 
Ccmm1- MNtt,., held A-..!od 

1, Mr. Bitu Pal Non-El<ecutive • Independent 
Chairperson 6 3 Director 

2. Mr. AJay Kumar Khandelwal Non-£xecutlve • Independent 
Director Member 6 3 

3. Mr. Pawan Kumar 
Executive Director JhvnJhunwala Member 6 6 

• Mr. Bltu Pal {DIN: 01684171) has resigned as a Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company w.e.f AuflUst 14, 
2024. 

• Mr. Ajay Kumar Khandelwal (DIN: 0218&565), ha~ resigned as a No~Fxecutlve Independent Director of1he Company 
w.e.f August 14, 2024. 

• Mr. Kanwar Nltln Singh (DIN: 10204543) has been appointed as an Additional Non-Executive Independent Director of 
1he Company w.e.f August 14, 2024. 

• Mr. Amit Bajaj {DIN: 10122918), has been appointed as an Addltlonal Non-Executive Independent Director of the 
Company w.e.f August 14, 2024 

Out? to the <:hang~ In 1he above-mentioned directors, tht? composition of the Committee at the end of the flnandal year 
March 31, 202S: 

Sf.No Nlm1oftfleOI.,..,,., Nllllra orD!r-r,hlp 0.lrnltlon In No.of No.orMoet1..., 
c.>mmlltM Meelfnphold AUffldld 

1. Mr. Kanwar Nltln Singh Non-Executive • lnde~ndent 
Chalrpet'S()n 6 3 Director 

2. Mr. Amil Sajaj Non-Executive • Independent 
Director Member 6 3 

3. Mr. Pawan Kumar 
Executive Director Member G 6 Jhunjhunwala 

• Mr. Kanwar Nltln Singh (DIN: 10204543) has resigned as a Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company 
w.e.f July 07, 202S 

• Mr. Amit Bajal(DIN: 10122918), has resigned as a Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company w.e.f July 
07, 202S 

• Mrs. Roshni Gadla (DIN: 06652773) has been appolnte<l as an Additional Non-Executive Independent Olree1or of 
the Company w.e.f July 07, 2025 

• Mrs. l<alpana Tekrlwal (DIN: 11170688) has been appointed as an Additional Non-Executive Independent Director 
of 1he Company w.e.f July 07, 202S. 

Due to the changes In the above-mentioned directors, the Composition of the Audit Committee tlll date Is mentioned below: 
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SI.No ~-oftheOlre- N1111re of D~tctcnhlp °"'""'-In rw.a, Ho. ol l\lutlngs 
Comm- M-nph1ld Allffldld 

l. Mr. Roshnl Gadia Non-EKecutlvt? • Independent 
Director Chalrpl!rson 6 0 

2. Mr. l(alpana Tekrlwal Non·Executive • Independent 
Member 6 0 Director 

3. 
Mr. Pawan Kumar 

Exerutive Director Member 6 6 Jhunihunwala 

Internal Audit I CGnttal: 

M/s. Roshnl K Gupta & Associates, (CP No. 26202), Practicing Company Secretaries as an Internal Auditor of the Company 
with effect from July 07, 202S to carry out the internal audit functions and activities of !he Company for !he Financial year 
2025-Z6. 

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMl1TEE 

The Board of Directors of the Company has constitut~ a Nomination & Remuneration Committee, as per the provisions of 
Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of SEBI (Lfstfng Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements), Regulation 201S, with the object of Remuneration & Nomlnatlon committee Is to recommend/ review the 
remuneration of Managlng Directors/ Whole-time Directors. The remuneration policy of the Company ls directed towards 
rewarding performance and attracting new 1alents / retalnlng them. Whlle declding the remuneration, !he Committee 
conslders the flnancial position of the Company, trend In the Industry, Appointee's qualification, eXpl!rlence, past 
performance, pas! remuneration etc. 

The Tarms of Reference of the Commltlee are as follows 

• Formulation of the criteria for determlnlng qualificatlons, positive attributes and independence of a director and 

recommend to the Board a policy, relatlng to the remuneration of the Directors, key managerial personnel and 
other employees; 

• F<>rmulatlon of criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board; 

• Devising a pollcy on Board diversity; 

• Identifying persons who are qualified to be(ome Directors and who may be appointed ln senior management in 
accordance with the aiterla laid down, and r~mmend to the Board their appointment and removal. The 
remuneration policy as adopted by the Company envisages payment of remuneration according to quallflcatlon, 
experience and performance at different levels of the organization. The workers at the factory as well as those 
render'ing cleric.al, administrative and 

• Professional services .ire suitably remunerated accor<flng to the industry. 

• To i;;arry out any other function as rs mandated by the Board from time 10 lime and/ or enforced by any statutory 
notlflcation, amendment or modlfttatlon, as may be applicable: 

• Perform such other functions as may be necessary or approprlate for the performance of its dulles. 

Mell11ng Details 

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee consists of two Independent Dlrectors at present, all members of the 
Nomination & Remuneration Committee art? Financially I Iterate and they havt? acoounting or related financial management 
expertise. 

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee met 4 times during the flnanclal year encll?d March 31, 2025. The attendance 
re<:ord of the members at the meeting was as follows: 

During the year 2024-25, the Committee had 4(Four) Meetings I.e. on Aptil 29, 2024; July 31, 2024; August 14, 2024 & 
March 29, 202s. 
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C4mposltl11Q 

The Composition of the Committee at 1he besinnlng of financial year 2024-25 and number of mee1lngs held are mentioned 
herewith:· 

SI.Na Hlm1oftlleD1N- Naturt of Df111C1Drshlp DNTsl\ltlonln NI). of No. orMo111np 
Comm!- M•d,..IM!ld A1hnded 

1, Mr. Bltu Pal Non-Executive • Independent 
Director Chairper5on 4 3 

2. Mr.Ajay Kumar Khandelwal Non-EKecullve • Independent 
Member 4 3 Director 

3. Mrs. Mandeep Kaur Jafswal Non-Executive • Independent 
Member 4 4 Director 

• Mr. Bltu Pal (DIN: 01684171) has resigned as a Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company w.e.f August 14, 
2024. 

• Mr. Ajay Kumar Knandelwal (DIN: 021S6S6S), has re5lgned as a Non-C:Xecutlve Independent Oirec1or of the Company 
w.e.f August 14, 2024. 

• Mr. Kanwar Nitln Singh (DIN: 10204543) has been appointed as an Additional Non-Executive Independent Director of 
the Company w.e.f August 14, 2024. 

• Mr. Amit BaJaj (DIN: 10122918), has been appointed as an Additional Non-Executive Independent Director of the 
Company w.e.f August 14, 2024 

Oue 10 the changes In the above-mentioned directors, the composition of the Committee at the end of the financial year 
March 31, 202S: 

SI.No Name aftht DlnK!Or Natur~of Dlrectanl\lp D111flnatlonln No.of No.ofM .. H,.a 
C'ommltt:M M""d"I• held Altlnded 

1. Mr. Kanwar Nitfn Singh Non-Executive • Independent 
Di,ector Chairperson 4 1 

2. Mr. Amit Bajaj Non•Executlve - Independent 
Member 4 1 Director 

3. Mrs. Mandeep Kaur Jalswal Non-Executive • Independent 
Director Member 4 4 

• Mr. Kanwar Nitin Singh (DIN: 10204543) has resigned as a Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company 
w.e.f July 07, 202S 

• Mr. Amit Bajaj (DIN: 10122918), has resigned as a Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company w.e.f July 
07, 2025 

• Mrs. Roshnl Gadla (DIN: 066S2773) has b~n appointed as an Additional Non-Executive Independent Director of 
the Company w.e.f July 07, 202S 

• Mrs. Kalpana Tekrtwal (DIN: 11170688) has been appointed as an Additional Non-EKecutlve Independent Director 
of the Company w.e.f July 07, 202S. 

Due 10 the cnanges In the above-mentioned directors, the Composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
are mentioned below:-

SI.No Name of tho D1recto r N3ture of Df-p Desli!n«tlon In No.of Na. ofMNtlngs 
O.mmtttet Mllt"'«shekl Atu:ndod 

1. Mrs. Roshnl Gadla Non-Executive • Independent 
Chairperson 4 0 Director 

2. Mrs. Kalpana Tekrlwal Non·Executive • Independent 
Director Member 4 0 
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3. j Mr. Mandeep Kaur Jalswal Non-EKecutlvl? • Independent 
Director 

PERFORMANCE EVAlUATION OF DIRECl'ORS 

Member 4 4 

In compliance with the provisions of the Listing Regulations, 2015 the Nomination and Remuneration Committee on the 

basis of the Board Evaluation Policy and framework adopted by the Board contemplated by the evaluation process of the 

Independent Directors Evaluation criteria formulated for the lnd1?pendent Directors are broadly ba~ on: 
• Leadership & stewardShfp abilltles 
• Contributing to dearly defined corporate objectives and plans 
• Performance of duties and level of insight; 
• Professional conduct and independence; and 
• Qualiffcation, eKperlence and past track records. 

REMUNERATION POLICY 

The success of the organization In achieving good performance and good governing practices depends on Its ability to attract 

and retain Individuals with requisite knowledge and excellence as executive and non~xecutive Directors. 

The Nomination & Remuneration policy of the Company Is attached as Ann~..:u,1-Vto the Board's Report. The Policy is 
available on the website of the Company at www.kalzenlnfra.com. 

DETAILS OF REMUNERATION TO ALL D1REQOR5 

• The Remuneration Polley of the Company for managerial personnel is prlmarlly based on the performance of the 

Company and track record, potential and performance of Individual managerial personnel. The Remuneration 

Committee recommends to the Board the compensation package of the Executive Directors of the Company. 

• Since the appointment of the .Exe<:utlve Director ls by virtue of their employment with the <:ompany, their service 
contract, notlce period and severance fees, If any, is governed by the remuneration policy of the Company, 
None of the Independent Directors are holding shares of the Company. 

CRITEIIIA OF SEU:CTION OF NON·El<ECUTIVE DIRECTORS 

The Non-Executive Directors shall be of hrgtl intesrlty with relevant expertise and experience so as to have a diverse 

Board with Directors having expertise In the fields of manufacturing, marketing. flnance, taxation, law, governanoe and ge 
neral management. 

In case of appointment of Independent Directors, the NRC Committee shall satisfy itself with regard to the 

Independent nature of the Directors vis-~-llts the Company so as to enable the Board to discharge Its function and duties 
effectively. 

The NRC Committee shall ensure that the candidate identlfled for app.olntment as a Director is not dlsqualified for 
appointment under Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

STAICEHOlDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE 

The composition, powers, role and terms of referenoe of the Committee ate in accordance with the requirements mandated 

under Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 2015 read with Part D of Schedule II of SEBI (LODA) 
Regulations, 2015. 

The Committee looks Into Share transfer, reviews shareholders' /Investors' complaints and re.solution thereof. 

The Committee looks Into Share transfer, reviews shareholden'/lnvestors' complaints and resolution thereof. 

The Committee performs following Functtons: 

1. Transfer/Transmission of shares 

2. Rell1ew of Share demateriallzatlon and re-matertalizatlon. 
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.3. Monitoring the expeditious Redressal of Investor Grievances 

4. Monitoring the performance of C<1mpany's Registrar & Transfer Agent. 
S. All <1ther matters related to the shares 

Meeting Data!ls 

Durins the year the Committee had 4 Meetings I.e. on April 29, 2024; August 14, 2024; November 11, 2024 and February 
14, 2025. 

Composition 

The Composition of the C.ommittee at the beainnlng of financial year 2024-2S and number of meetings held are detalls 
below: -

SI. No llfflle of tho Dlrec10r Nabl,. aro~~O<'Jhlp Pulsnallan In Na.al Ho.ofl\lee~np 
Commlltn ,.. •• n,p hold Attondod 

1. 
Mr. Bitu Pal Non-Executive • lndel)endent 

Chairperson 4 2 Director 
2. 

Mr. AJay Kumar Khandelwal No~Executlve - Independent 
Member 4 2 Director 

3. Mr. P;;wan Kumar 
EKecutlve Director Member 4 4 JhunJhunwala 

• Mr. Bitu Pal (DIN: 01684171) has reslgned as a Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company w.e.f August 14, 
2024. 

• Mr. Ajay Kumar Khandelwal {DIN: OZ18656S), has reslgned as a Non-Executive Independent Director <1f the Company 
w.e. f August 14, 2024. 

• Mr. Kanwar Nftln Singh (OIN: 10204S43) h;;s been appointed as an Additional Non-executive Independent Director of 
!he Company w.e.f August 14, 2024. 

• Mr. Amit BajaJ (DIN: 10122918), has been appointed as an Additional Non-Executive Independent Director of !he 
C.ompanyw.t?.f August 14, 2024. 

Due to the changes In !he above-mentioned directors, the composition of the Committee In are mentioned herewith 
;-

51,No Nlm .. lthe Ofnoct<W Nature of Dlrtctonlllp Dosls,,<n!on In No.af No.ofMlatlnp 
C.mml- Mn1fn.p~d AUtt1dod 

l. 
Mr. Amit 8ajej Non-Executfve • Independent 

Chairper5on 4 2 Director 
2. 

Mr. Kanwar Nltin Singh Non-Executive • Independent 
Member 4 2 Director 

3. Mr. Pawan Kumar 
EMecutive Director Member 4 4 Jhunjhunwara 

• Mr. Kanwar Nitin Singh (DIN: 10204S43J has rt?Slgned as a Non-EKecutlve Independent Director of the Company 
w.e.f July 07, 2025 

• Mr. Amit Bajaj (DIN: 10122918), has resigned as a No~Executlve Independent Director of the Company w.e.f July 
07,202S 

• Mrs. Ro5hnl Gadia (DIN: 06652773) has been appointed as an Additional Non-EMecutive Independent Director of 
the Company w.e.f July 07, 202S 

• Mrs. kalpana Tekriwal (DIN: 11170688) has been appointed as an Additional Non-Executive Independent Director 
of the Company w.e.f July 07, 2025. 
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Oue to the changes in the above-mentioned directors, the Composition of the Stakeholders Relatlonshlp till date Is 
mentioned here below: 

51.1'0 Nim• oHlte Dlrut..- Hatwe of DINctorshl~ Oedgnatlon In No.of No. of Meet! ... 
Ccmm~e MHtlnp held Attondo(I 

1. 
Mrs. Roshni Gadla Non-Executive - Independent 

Chairperson 4 0 Director 
2. 

Mrs. Kalpana Tekrlwal Non-Executive • Independent 
Member 4 0 Oirector 

3. Mr. Pawan Kumar 
Executive Director Member 4 4 JhunJhunwala 

• The Company Secretary of tne Company Is the Secretary to the Committee. 

Detail of CQmplaints: 

• No. of shareholdeis' complaints pending as on 1st April, 2024: NII 

• No. of shareholders' oomplaints received during the Year: Nil 

• No. of shareholders' complaints redressed during the Vear: Nil 

• No. of shareholders' complaints pending as on March 31, 202S: NII 

• Thi!! Company has generally attended to the lnllfflOrs' grievances. Shareholders' request for transfer/ transmission of 

equity shares were effected within lS days from the date of receipt. There were no valfd transfers pending for 
registration as of March 31, 202S. 

• The Company obtains half yearly certlflcate from a Company Secretary In Pr.ictice oonflrmlng the Issue of certificates 

for transf-er, sub-<lMslon, oonsolidallon etc., and submlts a oopy thereof to the Stock Exchanges in terms of Regulation 

40 (9J ofSEBI fLODR) Regulations, 2015. Further, the Compliance Certificate under Regulation 7 (3) of the SEBI (LODRJ 

Regulations, 201s confirming that all activities In relation to both physical and electronic share transfer faclfll:v are 

maintained by Registrar and Share Transfer Agent registered with the Board Is also submitted to the Stock Exchange on 
a half year basis. 

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS MEETING 

During the flnanclal year ended March 31, 2025, one separate Meeting of the Independent Directors was held on March 29, 

2025 which was attended by Mr. Amit Baja}, Mrs. Mandeep Kaur /arswal, & Mr. Kanwar Nitin Singh, to discuss, lnter-alla: 

l. Review the performance of non-independent Directors and the Board as a whole; 

2. Review the perfcrmance of the Chairperson of the Company, taking Into account the views of executive Oirectors 
and non-executive Directors; 

3. Assess the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of Information between the Company management and the 
Board that Is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties. 

All the Independent Directors of the Company attended the Meeting. 

The evaluation of pe.rformance was done in ,coordance with the "Guidance Note on Board Evaluation• Issued by the SEBI 
vide ltsclrcular dated January OS, 2017. 

Procedure it Committee Meetings: 

The Company's guidelln~ relating to Board Meetings are applicable to Committee Meetings as far as practicable. Each 
Committee has the authority to eng.ge outside ekperts, advisors and counsels to the extent It considers appropriate to 
assist In Its function. Minutes of proceedings of Committee Meetings are circulated to the Directors and placed before 8oard 
Meetln~ for noting. 
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.Recording Minutes of ,,..,<ttdlngs 3~ Board .~rtd Committee Meetings: 

The Company Secretary records minutes of proceedings of each Board and Committee Meeting. Draft minutes are circulated 
to Board/ Board Committee members for their comments. The minutes are entered in the Minutes Book within 30 days 
from the conclusion of the Meetlng. 

Comp Ila nee: 

The Company Seaetarv, while prEparing the agenda, notes on agenda and minutes of the Meetlng{s), is re.sponslble for and 
Is required to ensure adherence to all appllcable laws and regulations, Including the Companies Act, 1956/ Companies Act, 
2013 read with Rules Issued thereunder, as applic-able and the Secretarial Standards recommended by the Institute of 
Company Seaetarles of India. 

WHlmE' BLOWER POLICY 

The Company has Implemented Whistle Blower Polley by way of forming llfgll Mechanism headed by the Chairman of the 
Audit Committee as required under Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 and Regulation 27 of SEBI (LODRl Regulations, 2015 which prollfdes a channel to the employees and Directors to rEport 
to the management, concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the codes of conduct or 
pollcy. The said policy may be ref'erre<t to, at the Company's Website www.kalzenlnfra.com 

8SE CORPORATE COMPUANCE & ~nNG CENTRE (THE LISTING CENTRE): 
SSE Listing Centre Is a web-based application designed for corporates. AH periodical compliance flllngs like shareholding 
pattern, corporate governance report, among omers are also flied electron lea Uy on the Listing Centre. 

ANNUAL REPORT: 

The Annual Report oontainlng, Inter alla, Audited Flnanclal Statement, Oirectors' Report, Auditors' Report and other 
important Information Is circulated to members and others entitled 1hereto. The Management's Oiswsslon and Analysis 
{MD&A) Report forms part of the Annual Report. 

RELATED PARlY TRANSACTJONS 
There were no materially significant transactions wl1h related partles during the financial year which were in c:onfflct with 
the Interest of me Company, The Board has approved a policy fur related parry transactions which has ~en uploaded on 
the Company's website •www.kaizenlnfra.com• 

SEBI CCMP1AINT$ REDRESSAL SYSTEM jSCCRESl 

SE81 has initiated SCORES for processing the investor complaints In a centrallzed web-based redress system and onllne 
redress al of all the shareholders complaints. The Company Is In oompliance with the SCORES and redressed the 
shareholders complaints well within the stipulated time. 

DISCLOSURES 

Tne Company has always e'"ured fair code of conduct and maintained transparency. There were no Instances of non, 
compliance by the Company, penalties, strictures Imposed on the Company by Stoel( Exchange or SEBI or any statutory 
authority, on any matter related to c:ap11a1 markets, durins the last three years. 

Compliances, Rules & regulations as laid down by various statutory au1horitie.s has always been observed by the Company 
since suet, change over bo1h in letter as well as In spirit. 

The Board has obtained certlflcates/dlsdosures from key management personnel conflrmlng they do not have any 
materlal flnancial and commercial Interest In transactions with the C.ompany at large. 

• Details of Non-compllance by the Companies, penaltle$ and strictures Imposed on the Company by Stock 
Exchange or Securities & Exchange Board of India or any statutory authority, on any mauer related to capital 
markets, duringthe last three years: Yes, The Company has delayed In declaring the Audited Financial Statement 
for the Financial year ended Mardi 31, 2025, fur which the Company has paid fine of Rs. S,900/· (Including GSTI 
levied by the Sto<:lc Exchange. 
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• Public, Rights and Other Issue: The Company has not Issued any shares In the flnanclal year 2024-2S. 

• Management & Discussion Analysis: This.forms part of Directors' Report. 

• Compllance Reports: The Board has noted and reviewed the compliance Reports from all functions pertaining to 

the respective laws applicable to them, which were placed before the Board at Its meetings evety quarter during 
the year under re-.iew. 

• Code of Conduct: The Company has update and 1,M down a Code of Conduct for the members of the board as 

well as for all employees of the Company. The Code has also been posted on the Company's website 
•www.kalieninfra.com•. 

• The Company has no subsidiary Company. 

• During the year ended March 31, 202S no complalnts related to sexual harassment Is received at work place. 

• The Company has compiled with secretarial Standards Iii:. SS-1 and SS-2 with respect to General and Board 
Meetings Issued by the lnS11tute of Company Secretaries of Ind la. 

• The Company has compiled with all the mandatoty requirements specified In Regulation 17 to 27 regarding Board 

of Directors, audit Committee, Nomination & Remuneration Committee, Stakeholders Relationship Committee 
etc., and clauses (b) to (I) of sub-1egulation (2) of Resulatlon 46 of the listing Regulations. 

• Certificate from Practicing Company ~cretary: A oertificate from M/s. Hemant Sharma & Associates, Practicing 

Company Secretaries that none of the Directors on 1he Board of the Company have been debarred or 

disqualifled from being appointed or continuing as directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board 

of Ind la/ Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority Is forming pan or Annual Repon. 

The Board has reviewed the compllance reports pertaining to tt'le laws applicable to the Company at its meeting on 
quarterly basrs. 

LISTING FEES TO ntE STOCK EXCHANGE 
The Company has paid listing fees up 10 March 31, 2025 to SSE Platform, where the Company's shares are listed. None of 
the securities of the Company have been suspended for trading at any point of time during the year. 

CEO & CFO CER'TTFICATION 

Mr. Ankur Hada, CEO & Mrs. Pooja A3arwal, CFO have provided Compliance Certificate to the Board In accordance with 
Regulation 17 (8) read with Part 8 of Schedule II of SEBI (LODR) Rl!1!ulations, 201S for the financial year ended March 31, 
202S. 

Commodity Price Risk. FOttlgn EICdlange Risk alld Hedging activities: Not Applicable. 

Commodity PrlC'8 Risk, foreign exchange risk and hedging actMtles 

The Company does not have any material foreign exchange exposure and therefore no hedging activities were carried out. 
Further, the Company doe.s not have material exposure to any Commodity and therefore, no hedging actMties were 
carried out and accordingly there is no disclosure to be made In 1erms of SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFO/ CMDl/ 
OR/P/2018/0000000141 dated November 1S, 2018. 

Cenlflc~ from Practicing Company Secretary an non-diSqu.allflcatlan of Directors: 
The Certificate as required under Part< of Schedule V of SEBI (listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations. 2015, rec~lved from M/s. Hemant Sharma & Associates practldng Company Secretary (COP No.: 17411), 
certifying that, none of the Directors on the Board of the Company, have been debarred or disqualified from being 
appointed or continuing as Director of the Company by SEBI/ Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any other statutory 
authority, Is enclosed with this Report. 

n 20THANNUALREPORT aoz4-zo:zs 



NAME'. DESIGNATION ANO ADDRES.S OF COMPLIANCE OFFICER 

Ms. Nikita Rater!;) 

(Company Secretary and Compliance Offi<l!r) 
"Chatterjee International Centre•, 
33A, Chowrlnghee Road, 6th Floor, 
Room No. 6A, Russel Street 
Kolkata· 700 071 

E-mail: - lnfo@kaizenlnfra.com 
Mote: 

The Company has designated an £·mail ID exclusively fur registering complaints by Investors and Investors ..in reacti the 
Company at info@kalzenlnfra.com 

GENERAL SHAREHOLDING IN10RMA110N 

Annual General Meeting 20.09.2025 
Flnark:lal year 31.03.2025 
Book Closure Date 13.09.2025 to 20.09. 202S 
lleflstered Office "OiatterJee International Centre•, 33A, Chowrlnghee Road, 

6th Floor, Room No. 6A, Russel Street Kolkata- 700 071 
Equity Sharas listed on asE 12.12,2014 
Scrip ID/Code OF &Sf/CSE 538833 
ISIN Number INE891N01017 
Stock Eia:hanres where securities ant listed. Bombay Stock Exchange Umlted (BSE) 

Phiroze JeeJeebhoy Towers, 
Oalal Street. Mumbai - 400 001 

COMPANY'S CORPORATE WEBSITE 

The Companys website ls a comprehensive reference on Corporate Information, ProJects and Financials, Board of 
Directors, Shareholding Pattern and Col'J)Orate Governance. The Section on 'Investor Information' serves to inform the 
shareholders, by giving complete financial details, Shareholding pattems, corporate benefits, information relating to 
Registrar & Transfer agents and the Compliance Offl<l!r etc. The website of the Company Is •www.kaizenlnf1a.com•. 

SPECIAL RESOLUTION 

At the fortha:imlng Annual General Meeting, there Is one resolution proposed to be approved by Shareholders for 
Appointment of Secre1arial Auditor of the company. 

GREEN INITIATIVE IN THE CORPORATI: GOVERNANCE 

As part of the green Initiative prooe!.S, the Company has taken an initiative of sending documents like notice of calling 
Annual General Meeting, Corporate Governance, Directors Report, Audited Financial Statements, Auditors Report etc., by 
e-mail. Physical copies are sent only to those shareholders whose email addresses are not r~stered with the Company. 
Shareholders are requested to register their E-mail Id with Registrar and Share Transfer Agent/conoerned depository. 

flNANCIAL CAl!NDAR {TENTATIVE AND SUBJECT TO CHANGE 
The Financial Year of the Company ls April 01, 2024 to March 31, 202S. 

Particulars Tentative Period Aprll 01, 2024 to March 31, 

Financial reporting for the quarter ending June 30, 2024 
2025 

Financial report1ng for the quarter ending September 30, 2024 Within 4S days of the end of Quarter. 
Financial reporting for the quarter ending December 31, 2024 
Financial reporting for the quarter ending Mareh 31, 202S Within 60 days of end of Quarter 
Annual General Meeting for the year ending 31st March, 2025 Last week of September 2025 
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POSTAL BALLOT 

llte Company has not pas~d any resolution through Postal Ballot for the flnandal year 2024·2S. 

SHARE TRANlFER SVSTEM 

Share Transfer/ De•materllsation / Re-materllsaiton are handled by professionally managed Registrar an~ Transfer Agents, 
appointed by the Company 1n terms of SE Bi's direction for appointment of Common Agency for phvsical as well as demat 
shares. Share 11ansfers In physical form are registered and returned within a period of 13-15 days from the date of receipt, 
In case documents are complete in all respects. The Share Transfer & Shareholders'/ Investor$' Grievance Committee 
meets at least every fortnight. A Certificate Is beins obtained from Company Secretary in Practice of half yearly O!rtlficate 
of Complfanc~ wfth the Share Transfer formafltles and files a Certificate with BSE Umited. llte share transfer process is 
reviewed by the said Committee. 

~rtificate of compliance under R~latlon 40(10) of the listing Regulations are fifed with Stock Exchanges on half yearly 
basts. 

DiMATERIUSA110N OF SHARES: 
Number of Shares in:· 
Physical Form: S 

Electronic From in NSOL: 2,83,11,014 
Electronic From In CDSL: 2,31,03,869 

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY / VIGIL MECHANISM 

The Company has implemented Whistle Blower Policy by way of forming vigil Mechanism headed by the ctiairman of the 
Audit Committee as required under section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 as per the provisions of 1he Companies Act, 
2023 and Regulation 27 of SEBI (LOOR.} Regulatrons, 2015 which provides a channel to the employees and Directors to 

report to the management, concems about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of 1he codes of 
conduct or policy, The said policy may be ref-erred to, at 1he Company's Website "www.kaizenJnfra.com". 

RECONCILATION OF SHARE CAPITAL AUDIT 

As stipulated by SEBI, a quallfled Prac:tldng Company Secretary carries out the Reconcillatlon of Share Capita! Audit to 
reconcile the total admitted capital with National Securities Oepo.sltorv Limited (NSDLJ and Central Securities Oeposltorv 

Limited (CDSL) and the total Issued and paid-up capital. This audit Is carried out every quarter and the Report thereon is 
submitted to 1he Stock Exchanges and Is placed before the Board of Directors of the Company. The audit, lnter-alia, 
confirms that the 1otal Issued and pald~p cap Ital of the Company is In agreement with the aggresate of the total number 
of shares In dematerialized form held with NSDL & CDSL and total number of shares In physical form. 

AUDITORS CERTIFICAnON ON CORPORATE GOVERNANC:.: 

llte Company has obtained a O!rtlficate from the Auditors of the Company regardlns compliance with the provisions 
relating to Corporate Governance preSCfibed by listing Regulations, which Is attached herewith. 

COMPWIHCE REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

The quarterly compllance Report on Corporate Governance is submitted to the Stock Excnange within 21 days from 11'le 
dose of each quarter as per 1he format specified In SE81 (lODR) R~latlons, 201S. 
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DISCLOSURE OF ACCOUNTING TREATMENT 

In the preparation of the financial statement, the company has followed the Accounting Standards referred to In Section 
133 of the Companies act 2013. The significant accounting policies which are consistently applied are set out in the notes 
to the financlar statements. 

The Company has no subsidiary and hence there is no need to frame any policy for determining "materlal Subsidiary•. 

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION 

The quar1erly financial results as well as the official press releases are generally communicated to the stocle eKchanges 
Immediately and usually publfshed In the resp~l..e newspapers and are also hosted on the website of the Company, I.e. 
"www.lcalieninfra.com". Durln8 the year under re..iew, the Company has not made any presentation to Institutional 
investors or analysts. 

INVESTORS' CORRESPONDENCE 

The Shareholders can contact the Company f-or Seaetar1al matters al "Chatterjee International Centre", 33A, 
Chowrlnghee Road, 6th Floor, Room No. 6A, Russel Street Kolkata- 700 071. 

CORPORATE IDEN'ffl't NUMBER {aNI 

CIN of the Company as allotted by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Govemment of Ind fa is L47219WS2006PLC107433. 

DISClOSURE WITH RESPECT TO DEMAT SUSPENSE ACCOUNT/ UNCLAIMED SUSPENSE ACCOUNT 

As on March 31, 2025 there are no shares lying In the demat suspense account or unclaimed suspense account. 

INFORMATION FLOW TO THE BOARD MEMBERS 

Information Is provided to the Board Members on a continuous basis for their information, re..lew, Inputs and apptolllll 
from time to time. The quar1erly Financial Statements are first presented to the Audit Committee and RISk Management 
Committee for Its review appro\131 and subsequent recommendation to the Board of Directors f-or their approlllll. All the 
relevant Information to Directors is submitted along with the aaenda papers well in advance of the Board and Committee 
Meetings. 

COMPLIANCE Wmt MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS 

Durlngttte financial year Z024-2S, the Company has complied with Corporate Gove,nance requirements specified In the 
Listing Regulations. 

ADOPTION. COMPUA.NC'E AND NON-ADOPTION OF .NON-MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS 

• The Board': 

The Company does not maintain a separate office for non-executive chairman. 
The independent directors are having requisite qualification and experience to act as a director on the Board. 

• Snal'fflalder Rl,gflts: 

The Company's quarterly and half yearly results are published In the newspaper and also uploaded on its website 
"www.kaizenlnfra.com". However, the Company furnishes the quarlerly and half-yearly results on receipt of a 
request from the Shareholders. These were not sent Individually to the shareholders. 

• Audit Qualtflcatloru: 

There are no qualificatlons in the Independent Auditors Report on the financial statements for the flnantlal year 
2024-2S. 
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• Reporting of Internal Auditors: 
The Internal Auditors report directly to the Audit Committee. 

• Separate post of Chairman and Chief Eiecutlve Officer: 
The C.Ompany has no separate post of Chairman and Managing Director. 

DECWATION REGARDING COMPLIANCE BY BOARD MEMBERS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL WITH THE 
COMPANY'S COD£ Of CONDUCT 

This is to confirm that the Company has adopted a code of conduct for Its employees including the Managing Director, 
Whole-time/ ExeQltlve Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Dlrectots. The code Is available on the 
Company's Website. 

I conflrm that the Company has In respect or the yea, ended Mardi 31, 2025, received from the Senior Manaaement 
Team of the Company and the Members of the Board a declarallon of Compliance with the code or conduct as applicable 
to them. 

For the purpose of this declaration, senior Management Teams means the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Flnancial Officer, 
Head -Commercial, Head-HR & Legal, unit heads, Departmental Heads and the Company Secretary. 

Place: Kolkar.i 
Date: August 21, 202S 
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(Mana&fng Director} 
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CHIEF EXECUTIIIE OFFICER & CHIEF FINANCIAL OfFlCER CERTIFICATION 
(Pursuant to Regulation 17(8) read wit/\ Schedule II of the listing Regulatlons) 

To, 

LA> 
~ "··--. ... . ,.,_.,."'11 .. 1> 1 ... o .. 1T,cQ 

The Board of Directors 
M/s. Kal1:4n ,Atro lnf'Tabulld limited 
(formerly: • Anubhav Infrastructure Umited") 
CIN:L47219W82006PlC107433 
Chatterjee International Centre, 
33A, Chowrlnghee Road, 6th Floor, 
Room No. 6A, Russel Street 
Kolkata- 700 071 

Pursuant to Regulation 17(8) of SEBI (Usting Obligations & Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015, We Mr. Ankur 
Hada ,Chief EMecutive Officer and Mrs. PooJ• Ae;irwal, Chief Financial Officer together certify to the Board that: 

a) We have re-.iewed the financrar statements and the cash flow statement for the financial year ended March 31, 202S 
and based on our knowledge and belief, We state that : 

1) These statements do not contain any materraltv untrue statement or omit any material fact or ccntaln any 
statements that might be misleading; 

11) These statements together present a ttue and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in compliance with the 
ei<lsting accounting standards, applicable raws and re,gulatlons; 

b) We fur1her state that to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered Into by the Company during 
tile year ended March 31, 202S are fraudulent. illegal or violate the Company's code of conduct; 

c) We accept responsibility for establlshfng and marntainins Internal controls and for evaluatins the effe<:tivene.ss of the 
same over the flnanclal reportins of the Company and have dlsdosed to the Auditors and the Audit Committee, 
deflciencies In the deslsn or operation of internal controls, If any, of which are aware and the steps we have taken or 
propose to take to rectify these deflcleneles. 

d) We have Indicated wherever applicable, to the Auditors and the Audit Committee, that : 

i) there have been no signlftcant changes In internal rontrol over flnancial reporting system during the year under 
reference. 

ii) there have been no stsnlflcant changes in acxountlns policies during the year except for the changes disclosed 
In the notes to the financial statements; if any: and 

iii) there have been no instances of slgnlflcant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvemMt therein, 
lf any, of the management or any emploYee having a significant role in the Company's Internal control system 
over flnanctar reporting. 

Nace : Kolkata 
Date : August 21, 202S 

Mr. Ankur Hada 
(Ollef Executive Officer) 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE 
For the Financial Year ended 31st March. 2025 

To, 
The Members of 

l<AIZEN AGRO INFlfASU/LD UM/TED 
(Formerly: "Anubhav tr,Jrostructure limired"} 
CIN:L472191N82006PI.C107433 
Chatterjee International Centre, 
33A, Chowrlnghee Road, 6th Floor, 
Room No. 6A.. Russel Street 

Kolkata - 700071, West. Bengal 

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governanoe by ICAJZEN AGRO INF.RABUIIJ) UMITED 
(Hthe Company") for the financial year ended on March 31, 2025 (·Period under Review") as stipulated In the 
applfcabte Regulations of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulatlons, 2015, as amended, 
pursuant to the listing Agreement of the Company with the Stock Exchanges. 

The complrance of conditions of Corporate Governance Is the responsibility of the Management. Our examination 
was limited to a review of procedures and implementations thereof adopted by the Company for ensuring the 
complfanre of the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated In the said Clauses and/or RegulatlOns. It is 
neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company. We have examined the 
books of account and other relevant records and documents maintained by the Company for the purpose of 
providing reasonable assurance on the compliance with Corporate Governance requirements by the Company. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the 
Company has compiled with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stli,ulated In the applicable regulatlons of 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended during the Period under 
Review. 

We further state that such compllance is neither an assuranoe as to the future vlabllity of the Company nor the 
efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

Date: 1.8·08-2025 
Place: Kolkota 
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To The Membarsof Mis KAIZfN AGRO INFRABUILD LIMITED 

Report on tM audit of financial statemerrts 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanyfns financfal statements of Mis KAIZEN AGIIO INFRABUILD LIMITI:1) which co~rtse, 
the Balance S~t as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit .rnd Loss (lncludfr!i Other Comprehensive Income), 
the Statement of Changes In Equity and cash Flow, for the year ended, and nott"S to the financial statements, 
fncludina a summary of slgntffcant account1ne policies and other explanatory fnformatfon (he<"efnafter referre<i to 
as the 'financial statements"). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 9l'<l!n to u,, the aforesaid 
financial statEments ~ the lnfQrmation requ!red by the Act In the manner 11:() required and give a true and fair 
\llew in C1lnformlty with the accO\lntins principles iffier ally a<:CSl)te<I in India, of the state of affairs of the Company 
as at Mardi 31, 2025, and Profit, total <Xlmprehenslve Income, changes In e<iuity and Its <:ash flows for the year 
ended on that date. 

llufs for Opinion 

We conducted our audit In accordance With the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified uncle< sect.ton 143(10} of the 
Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described In the Audftor's 
Responlibilftfes for the Audit of the Financial Statements sect.Ion of our report. We are in~pendent of the Cc mp any 
In accordance with the Code of Etllfcs issued by tile Institute of Chartered Accountants of India tosether With the 
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the prOYfslons of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and the Rules there under, and we ha~ fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities fn accordance with 
these requirements and the Co<!e of Ethics. We believe that the audit l"llldence we have obtained ls suffltlent and 
appropriate to provide a basts for our opinion on the financial statements. 

Information 01her than tha Ffnanclllt Stat.imtnts and Auditor's Report Thet'.on 

The Company's Board of Dfrei:tcrs Is re,ponsfble for the preparatfon of the other Information. The other information 
comprises the Information Included In the Board's Report including Anne,cure to Board's R'!lort, but doe not fnclude 
the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial ruitem$nts does not Ct1V11r the other lnfonnatfon and v,oe do not express any form of 
assurance a,ncluslon thereon. 
In a,nnectlon with our audit of the ffnancial statements, our responsibility Is to read the other 1nformatfon and, In 
doing so, <Xlnsfdef whether the othef' Information Is materially fnconststent With the financial statements or our 
knov.iedae obtafned during the courre of our audit or ot.herwfse appears to be materially miss.ta tell. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there Is a material mfmatement of this otl\er 
information; we are requfreel to report that fact. Wf: ha'<l! notMna to report rn this regard. 

Responsib!Ntles of Manasement ~ Those Cllule<l with Gowrna.nce for 1tla Flnenclal stai.ments 

The Company's Board of Of rectors are responsible for the matters stated In section I 3'1f5) of the Ccmpanies Act, 
2013 (•the Act") with respect to the preparation of thHe financial statements that !lfVe a true and fair view of th& 
financial p0$tt10n, financial performance of Ole Company In accordance wfth the accountlnt princfples senerally 
a=pted In India, Including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, This responsibility also 
fnclude$ maintenane\! of aelequate accountina records fn accordance With I.hf: pnr,,lsfons of the Act for safeauardlng 
of the assets of the Company and for preventfna and detectln& frauds and other lrregularttles; selection and 
appUcatlon of appropriate actountfng polfcles; makfng Judsments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
and design, implementation and maintenance of a<!equate lntemal ffnanclal controts, that were operating 
offecti~y for ensurlna the accuracy and completeness of the aooiuntlng records, rell"llant to the preparation and 
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J)(t"Sentat1on of the financial statement that give a true and fair Vfew and are fr~ from material misstatement, 
whethlll" rue to fraud or EfTOI'. 

In preparing the financial statements, management Is re'ijlonslble for aSieSSing the Company's ablllty to continue as 
a going con<:em, dlsclo:slng, as applicable, matWrs related to going concem and using the aolng Cj)ntem basis of 
accountfn11 unles.s management elthe<' Intends to liquidate t~ Company or to cease operations, or has no realfstlc: 
alternative but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also respoMlble for IM!l'SEefng th& company's financial reporting procei,,s, 

Audttor'a Rft90!1slbllttfes for the Audit of ti- Financial Statements 

Our obJ~tllleS are to obtain reasonable awuranee abcul whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraoo or error, and to l$SUe an auditor's report that lndooes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance Is a hi!lh ~l of assurance, but Is not a auaranttt that an audit a,~cted fn accordance 
With SAs w11l always detect a material mwt.atement whefl fl elrists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or em:,r and 
are considered material if, lndMdually or In the aggregate, they could reasonably be el<pected to influence the 
economic decisions of usen taken on the basis of U\ese financial statement,. 

A, As part of an audit In accordance with SAs, we exercise profe:efonal Jl.l<l11ment and maintain professional 
scepticism thro1111hout the audit. We also: 

Identify and assess the risks of materfal misstatement of the ffnancial statements, wtiether due to fraud or 
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that Is 
sufficient and appropriate to pl'O'lfde a basis for our opinion. The risk of not deteetlni a materfal 
misstatement rerultln1 from fraud 11 hfaher than for on& resultlni from error, as fraud may Involve collusion, 
fOl'llery, Intentional omissions, mlsreprt"Sentatfons, or the override of fntemal control. 

Obtilin an understandiOi of Internal control rele..ant to the audit In order to deslan audit procedures that 
are appropriate In the circumstances. Under section 1-43(3)(1) of the C<lmpanles Act, 2013, we are also 
responsfblt' for txprenlna our opinion on 'Wht'ther the company has adequate internal flnantlal C<Jntrols w1th 
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

EYaluate thtt appropnateness of aooountfne polfcfes USt'd and the reasonablt'ness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by management. 

Conclude on the approprlatenffl of management's use of the going concem basis of accounting and, based 
en die audft eYidence obtalne<I, whethef' a material uncertainty exists related to events or ccndlttons that 
may <:&st slanlffcant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concem. If we conclude that a 
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attffltlon !n our auditor's report to the related 
disclosures In t~ financial statements or, If such dfsdosures are lnadeQuate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based o~ t~e audit eVfdence obtained up to the date of our auditor's "i)Ort. However, future 
events or condltrons may cause the Compal'l'f to cease to continue as a 1,ofng concern. 

• fyaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statemel'lts, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements rer:,resent the un<1erly!n3 transactions and events In a 
manner that ach!t"Ves fair pr-ntatfon. 

s. We communicate with those char~ with aavemance reaardina. among other matters, the planned sccpe 
end timing of the auclit and significant audit flndt~, Including any slgnffleant deffclencl~ In internal control 
that we klentify durtng our aooit. . 

C. Wt' also provide those chafl!E(I with llCMrnance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements re,iardfng fndel)ffldence, and to communicate with them all relatfonshfps and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our fridependenct', and v.nere app!fcable, r4!<ated 
sefe1uards. 
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Report on Other Leaal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. k. required oy the Companies (Auclitor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order'), ISS!Jed by the Central 
Government of India ln tEnns of sub·sectfon (11) of sect.ion 143 of the Companies ~. 2013, The order is 
appl1cable to the <:<lmpany for the year under audit as given fn the ·Annexure· A", a statement on the matters 
specified In paragr~ph 3 and 4 of the crdef'. 

2. As required by Sectron 143(3} of the~. we r~orl that: 

•· We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations wtilch tc the best of oor knowledge and 
belief were necem,y for the purposes of our au<!lt. 

b. In our opinion, propel' books cf acc011nt as required O'f law have been kGl)t by the Company so far as ft appears 
from our examination cf those books. 

c. The Balance 51>e$t, the StatErnent of Profit and Loss and cash flow statEment dealt with by this Report are 
in agrttment with the books of account. 

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply w1th the Aocountin1 Standards specified mder 
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule- 7 of the Companies (kcounts) Rules, 2014 • 

.. On the bnls of the wr1tten representations received from the dfr«tors as on 31st Mardi, 2025 taken on 
record by the Board of Dire<:tors, none of the directors ls clisqualtfled as on 31st March, 202S from being 
appointed as a director fn terms of Sectibn 164 (2) of the~-

c. With ~ct to the adequacy of the lntemal ffnanc:lal controls over ffnancfal reporti"K of the C.Ompany and 
the OPMllfng effectlvene,s of such controls, ref et> to our separate Report fn "Annexure II" 

e, With r~ect to the other matters to be 1nc!ude<I in the Auditor's Report In accord a ore with the requil'ffl!ent.s 
of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: 

h. Wtth respect to the other matt= to be Included In the Auditor's Report In accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditon) Rules, 2014, In our opinion and to the best of our Information and according 
to the explanat!O(fs jlven to us: 

i, Tht' Company does not have any pending litigations which would Impact its financial position; 

u. The Company clid not have any lOr>i·term contracts including der1Vative contr.acts for which there were any 
mater1al fon!:Seeable lOloSes; 

Iii. Thett were no amounts v.illch were required to be transfeued to the Investor E<!ucat1on and ProW<:tlon Fund 
by the Company. 

Iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best or its knowledge and bt'llef, no funds (which are 
matenal either Individually or In the age.regate) nave bt'en advan«d or loaned er Invested (either from 
bom)wed funds or share premium or any othel- SOUR:~ er kind of funds) by the Company to or ln any other 
pet'l<)n or entity, fncludfni1 fore13n entity (Intermediaries"), with the understandi"I!, whether recorded In 
Wl'lt1n1 or otherwfre, tl\at tnt' lntennedfaty shall, v.flether, directly or 1nd1rectly lend Of" lll\'1!St ln other 
persons or entitles lclenttfled In any manner wtlatsoe""' by er on bt'half of the Company (Ultimate 
8enefle1aries"} or provtd& any auar.sntee, ~curity or the like on behalf of the Ultimate llenef1C1ar1es; 

(b) Tht' Management has repre:senwd, that, to the ~t of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material 
either lndMdually or 1n the enregate) have bffn received by the Company from any person or entity, 
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Including foreign fflt1ty (F\mdina Partf6"), With the understandina, whether r«orded in writing or otherwise, 
that the Company shall, whether, directly or incllrectly, lend or invest fn other l)efsons or entities identlffe<I 
1n any manner whatiOev« by or on behalf of the Fundlna Party (Ultimate 8eneflc1arfes") or provfcle any 
auarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

<•) B~d on the audit procMures that have been a,nsftlefed reasonable and appropnate In lhe ci~umstante$, 
nothins has come to our notice that has caused us to belfe-,e that tile repnffi!ntat!cns under sub·dause (1) 
and (11) of Rule 11(e), as l)l"OV!ded under (a) and (b) abow, contain any material misstatement. 

, .. The company ha$ not declared or paid any cllvfdend durlnii the year. A$ such, provision~ of section 123 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable. 

,1. Based on our examlnatfcn vmlth Included test checks, the Company has used a«ountlng software for 
ma!nta!nlne its books of account for the financial year ende<I March 31, 2025 Ylh1ch has a feature of recording 
audit tr&1l (ecllt 103) tacll1ty and the same Is under the proc4ss of imp!ement;ltfon. 

For MK Kothari Q Auocfate& 
Charter.d Accountant$ 
Firm Retfstr.atfon No. )2l929E 

MK Kothari 
Partner 
.M.embelltllp Ho. 059513 

UD!K: 2505951311M!ISl8126 

Place: Kolketa 
D.1U4: 2$ .. May 2025 
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Annexur• 'A' to the Independent Auditor's Report 

(Referred to In p1raa,oph 1 under 'Report on Othet' l.eial and Regulatory Requlfflments' section of our report 
of even date to the Membara of Mis KAIZEN AGRO INFRABUILD LIMITED on ffnandal statements for the yur · 
ended 31 .Much, 2025) 

1. a. Alxordfns to the lnf'ormatlon and explanation given to us, the Comp.any does not have any tang!blto and 
Intangible MS:ets. As such, the provisions of thls clause are not applicable. 

2. a. Actordln; to the Information and e)(,Qlanatfons g111en to us, p~lcal VEfificatfon of the irlVl!ntory has bee<i 
conduct~ at reasonable lnteNals by the management and In our opinion, the coveraae and procedure of 
such vet1flcatfon is appropriate; and no discrepancies of 10% 0< more In the aaareiiate tor each class of 
1nventorywere noticed. 

b. Accordfng to the information and explanatlOllS given to us and on the basfs of our examination of the 
records of the Company, the Company has not been sanctioned '111:l!'kina capital limits In ei<Cffl or five crore 
rupees, In ai9reaate, from banks on the basis of security of current assets. 

3. Accordlna the Information and explanations given to us, and on the basis of our examination of the r4<:ords 
of the company, the company has not made any Investments, provided llUlll'llntee or security er e,-anted any 
advances In the nature of loans, ,ecured or uns«ured, to companies, ftrms, lfm1ted llab1ll!:y partnenhlps or 
any other parties during the year. The company has granted loans during the year, details of the loan Is 
stated In sub-clause (al below; 

•· At<:ordina to the Information an(I explanations given to us and bas.ed on the audit procedures conducted by 
us, we are of the opinion that tile terms and conditions of the loans if',en are, prfma facle, not pre-Judfc:ial 
to the lnte"'*t of the company. 

b. Accordfna to the Information and e)(planations atven to us and on the oasis of our examination of the records 
of the Comp.any, In the case of loans iMn, there Is no stipufatfon of repayment of principal and payment of 
Interest as the loans are rt!f)ayable on demand. So, we are unable to comrnent on the r~lartty of 
repayment. 

c. Actordfnli to the Information and e)(pl.anations gtven to us and on the l>Mis of our e1<amfnation of the records 
of the Company, there is no o'A!nlue amount for more than ninety days in resp,!ct of loans af',en. 

d. Acccrdlns to the Information and explanations given to us and on the ba111 of our examination of the re<:ords 
of the Company, the company has granted any loans and advances In tile nature of loans that are repayable 
on demand· 

All Parties Promotef'S Re<ated 
(fndlldtne 
Directors) 

Parties 

Aggret,ate amount or loan/advance In the 5424.78 . 
nature cf loallS • payable on demand (A) (lacs) 

Percentase of Loan/ Advances fn nature of 
loans to the total Loans 

100% . 

-4. A<x:ordinli to the Information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of th<t records, 
the Company has not iM!fl any loans, er provided any auarantee or security as specified under Section 185 
of the Companies Act, Z013 and the Company has not made any lnvestmenb, provided any 11uarantee or 
security as ,peclfle<I under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
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,. The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the publfc nor accepted any amounts which are d~ 
to~ deposits wfthin the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the rules made chefe under, 
to the extent applicable. Accordfnaly, the proVision.s of the clause l (v) of the Order are not applicable to 
the Company. 

6. As lnfomied to us, to maintenance of Cost Records has not been si:,ecffted by the Central Govemment un<fer 
sub·seccion (1) of section 148 of the A<;t, in respect of tile actMtfes carried on by company. Ac:a>rdfllillY, 
clause J(\li) of the Ordei' is not appUcable. 

7. a. Ac:tordfna to the Information and e)(l)lanatfons liW"n to us and on the ~s of our t'Xam1natlon of the 
r«0rds of the Company, amounts deducted/ acmed In the books of account in respect of undisputed 
statutorydlle$ lncludfn11 Goods and Services Tax('CST'), Provident fund, Employees' State Insurance, lncome­
ta,c, Duty of Customs, Cess and other mate<lal statutcry dues have generally been regularly deposited with 
the appropriate authorities. There are no undl~uted amounts payable In respect of GST, Provident tvnd, 
Employees' State lnsurana,, Income-tax, Duty of Cvstoms, Cess and other material statutory dues were in 
arrears as at 31 .March 2025 for a P«fod of more than six months from the date Chey bf!came payable. 

b. Ac<:ordina to the Information and explanations gfven to us, there are no dues of GST, Provident fund, 
Employ~s· State Insurance, lncom&-tax, Sales tax, Service tax, Duty of Customs, Value added tax, Cess or 
ocher statutory dues which have not been depo$1te<I by the Company on account of disputes. 

As per lhe inklrmaUon and e)(l)lanatfons aiven to us, the dues outstandlna of lncom9 Tax on account of any 
dispute is as follows: 

' Nature of Nature of Dues Disputed Amt Amount paid Financial Forum where Statute lncludina under protest Yffr to which u.. dispute fs 
A<:crued (JNR) It relates pefldfl\lj 
Interest (INR) 

' tncomeTaK Income Tax 
Assesment 

on 49,20,489 2013-14 CIT Appeal 

lna,meTax Income TaK 
Assessment 

on 16,61.~70 2017·18 err Ai,peal 

8. There are no such tran~lons which are not 1"8((Jrded In the bOOl<s of aci:ount 'M'lich have been S<Jrrendered 
or dfsctosed In income during the year In the tax assessment under the IIICQme Tax Act, 1961. 

9. a. Acx:ordlng to the information and eiqilanatfons 1iven to us and on the basis of our examination of the 
records of the Company, the company does not ha~ any loans or borrowfniS from aovel'nment, financial 
inst1Mfons or banks. Ac((lrdlnaly, clause 3(1K)(a) of the Order is not apptfcable. 

b. Acainuna to the Information and explanations stven to us and on the basts of our elWTiinatfon of the 
record, of the Company, the Company has not been de<:lared a wflfu\ defaulter by any bank or financial 
Institution or government or govemment authority. 

c. Ac<4rdina to the Information and explanations lifVen to us by the management, the Company has not 
obtained any term loans. Accordingly, clause 3(1x)(c) of the Order is not apptlcable. 

d. According to the information and explanation, ifven to us and on an overall examination of the balance 
sheet of the Company, we rei,ort that no funds have ~n raised on short•tefm basis by the Company. 
AccQr<lfnaly, clause 3(1K)(d} of the Order is not appUcabt~. 

1. AccQrdfna to the Information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the 
lfnancial ,tatements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds from any 
entity or pe~on on ac<ount of or to meet the oblfgatfons of its sub$1dfar1e, as defined uncler the 
Compaple, Act, 2013. A«ording(y, clause 3(D<)(e) of the Ot'der ls not af)j)licable. 
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U. Acoordin1 to the fnfcrmatfon and eoxplanatlons given to us and procedureos performed by us,~ reoport 
that tM Company has not raiseod loans during the year on the ple<!ee of s«urfttes held In its S11bsldlarfes 
as defined under the Companies Act, 2013. Acxordfnely, clause 3(iK>(f) of the Ordo!r is not appllcable. 

to. a. According to the information and e)(J)lanatlons given to us and procedures performeod by us, the Company 
has not rai~ any moneys byway of fnlttal public offer or further pul)(lc offer (Including debt instruments). 
Acoordfn&ly, clause l(x)(a) of tM Order Is not applicableo. 

b. According to the Information and t'Xplanatfons gtvfn to us and on the basis of cur examination of the 
records of the Company, the Company h.:ls not made any preferential allotment or prfvate placement of 
shares er fully or partly conveftfble debentures during the year. Accordfngly, clause 3(X)(b) cf the Order is 
not applicable. 

IL a. Ba St'<! on the examination of the books and r«ords of the corr.>any and accordlll!l to the lnforrnatfon Md 
e,q,lanatfons given to us, consfdet'fng the princfples of materiality outlined In tile Standards of AudftlllJI, we 
n!!'Ort that no fraud by the company or on the Company has been noticed or reported durfng the course of 
the aud1t. 

I>, According to the Information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-,ectlon (12) of $1!Clion 
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by the auditors In form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of 
the Companies (Audft and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with Cffltral Gowmment. 

c. According to the Information and explanations 111ven to us, no whisde blower complaints were r«l!flled 
c!Urina the year. AcCOrdinjly, clause 3{X1)(t} is not applicable. 

ll. The Company Is not a Mid ht Co~ny and hence reporttn1 undet' clause 3 (ldfl of the Order Is not applic:able 
to the Company. 

u. In our opinion and ac:cord1n3 to the Information and exptanations RIYen to us, all transactions with the 
reolated parties are In a,mplfance witll Section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013, ....tlEl"e applicable, and 
the detaHs have been dlsdos.e<! In the standalone financial statements as required by the applicable lndfan 
Acoount1n1 Standards. 

14. a. According to the information given to us, the company has an internal audit system that commensurate 
with the sl~ and nature of the organization. 
b. The reports cf the Internal auditors for the period undet' audit have been considered by us. 

I~. In ovr opinion and according to the Information and e~i,lanatlons given to us, ~ring the year the Company 
has not entNed Into any non-cash transactions with fts Of rectors or persons conne<:ted to its directors and 
hence pro\lfsfons of section 192 of the Coo'lpanfes Act, 2013 are not appllcable to the Company. 

ti. Th& Company Is not a NeFC and hence registration under sect.fen 45.1.4 of the Reserve Bank of lndta Act, f 934 
f1> not required. Hence, reporting under paraaraph l!Xllll of the Order is not aj)jllfcable. 

17. Acccrdln1 to the Information and explanatfons pro\llded to us, the Company has not Incurred cash losses In 
the CU/n!nt year and In tlle immediately precedi1111 ffnanc1at year. Accordfngly, the re<iuireoment to report on 
dause 3 (XVII) of the Order ts not applicable. 

1& During the year under audit, the previous mtutory auditors of the Company resianed from their pOSitlon. 
The reasons for their rE'llgnatton ha~ been duty communia.ted to the Company and flied by them Wfth the 
fle91strar of Companie$ In Form A.OT-3 as re"-'1red under the Companie, Act, 2013. We ha~ obtained and 
GOnlicle!-ed a detailed communtcauon from the outgo1og auditors regarding any matters cf concern er 
disagreements befgre accEptfn~ our appointment. We GOnfirm that there are no cutrtand1n1 i:ssues er 
materfal d1saareements that Impact our audit, The Company compiled with all appl!cable leg.al and 
regulatory n!qufrements 1n r~at;cn to the resf11nation of the previous auditors and the appointment of the 
new audltoo. The new auditors were appointed on to fill the casual vacancy caused due to the reslanatlon 
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l~. According to the Information and (')(planatfons given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, all,l'fns and 
expe<:ted dat~ of r4!.ilization of financial ~ts and payment of ffnancfal Uablllttes, other information 
accompanyfna the financial statements, our knowle<lae of the Board of Directors and manaaement plans and 
base<l on our examination of the evlden~ supportina the aSS1Jmptlons, notMna has come to our attention, 
which ca1Ms us to belle~ that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the 
Company rs not capable of meeting fts llabllttfes existing at !he date of balance sh~t as and wtlen they fall 
due within a perlo~ of one year from the balance s~t \late. We, however, state that this rs not an as!jjrance 
as to the futlJre viability of I.he Company. We furtlle< state that our reporting ls base<! on the facts up to the 
date of the audit report and we neither~ any auaranttt nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due 
within a period of one year from the balance shN't date, W1ll get discharged by the Company as and w!len 
they fall due. 

20. Accor41n!! to tile information and e1<planatfons given to ui, the company Is not re(lulred to undefteke any 
corporate social responsibility actMtles as per section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013. Aa:ordlngly, dause 
)(XX) of the order Is not applfc.able. 

21. The rei,ortln1 under claue 3(,oo) of the order ts not applicable In respect of audit of standalone financial 
statfments. Accordlnaly, no comment In r~pect of th~ said clause has been Included In the report. 

For MI< Kothari a At.ocfate, 
Chart«lld Accountana 
Firm Reaistratfon No. l23'2.9E 

ltt KXothuf 
Partner 
.Member.ship No. 059513 

UDJK: 25059'1311MIISIS126 

Plac~: Kofkat.a 
Datt: 28"' IM.y 2025 
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"AnneMure B" to the lndapandent Auditor's Report of even date on the Financial Stlltament, of Mis KAIZEN 
AGRO INFRAIJUILD LIMITED, 

Report en the Internal Fln~nclal Controls under Cunne (t) of S1b-1ectlon 3 of Se<tfon f-43 of the Companies Act, 
2013 ("the Acr) 

We have audited the Internal financial controls over ffnancfal ~porting of Mis KAIZEN AGRO INFRABUILD llMfTED 
{"the Company") as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audtt of the financial ruitements of the Company fer 
the year ended on that date. 

Mana,ement•s Respons1bfltty for Internal Flnanclal Control1 

The c,ompany's management Is responsible for establishing and malntalnlna internal financial control based on "the 
internal e<introl ctver financial reportlna criteria estabUshe<I by the Company consldel'lng the ~sential compcnent.s 
of internal a,ntrol stated In the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting IS'lued 
by the lnrtttute of Chartered Accountants of lndla". 

These responsibilities Include the de51gn, Implementation and maintenana! of adequate Internal financial controls 
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and ef/1<:lent conduct of Its business, including adherence 
to e<impany•s policies, the s.sfe11uardlng of Its-ts, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the acc11racy 
and completeness of the accounting re<:ords, and the timely prepantfon of rellabl.e financial Information, as 
requfred under the Companies kt, 201 l, 

Auditors' Re,pontlblllty 

Our r~ponsiblllty Is to express an opinion on the Company'$ Internal financial controls aver financial reportina based 
on our audit. We conducted our audit In =rdance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
Ovet' Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, Issued by ICAI and deemed to be 
prescribed under se«fon 1.o\3(10) of the Comp.antes Act, 2013, to the ext.!nt applicable to an audit of Internal 
financial control$, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both ls.sued by the lnsttll.lte of 
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guldana! Nate require that we e1imply w1th ethical 
n!.'<jUlrements and plan and perfonn the audit to obtain reasonable aswrance about whether adequate Internal 
financial controls over ffnancfal reportlna was established and maintained and if such controls operated elfectivety 
In au material respects. 

Our audit Involves performin11 procedures to obtain audit evidence abcut the adequacy of the internal tfnanclal 
controls system aver financial reporting and their operating effectlvene$5. Our audit of Internal financial controls 
over financial reporting Included obtalnlni an undemanding of Internal financial controls over financial reportin1, 
essessina the risk that a maWrfal weakness exists, and testing and evaluatln11 the d~f!"I and operatfnii effecttveneu 
of Internal control based on the assessed risk. The l)f1)Ge<lures selected depend on the auditor's judament, Including 
the asseument of the mks of matenal mlsstatfflleflt of the flnancfal statements, v.tll!ther due to fraud er error. 

We believe that the audit t'Vldence we have obtained is sufftcfent and appropriate to pro\/ide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the Company's Internal financial controls system over financial reportina. 

Mear\'ln:, of Internal Flnanclal Control, CM!r Ffnenclal Reporting 

A company's Internal ffnBnClal control OWi' flnillltial reporting Is a process deslaned to pnivlde reasonable ass,,rance 
regardlna the rellab«lty of financial reportin:, and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes In 
&«.Ordance w1th generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal ffnancfal control OYe< financial 
reporting Includes those policies and procedure$ that (1) pertain to the malntenanu of records that, In reasonable 
detail, accurately and fairly reflect tht' transactions and dispositions of the asiets of the company; (2} pro\'ide 
reasonable as111.1rance that trarnactlons are recorded as neces.sary to permit preparatfcn of financial statffl!ents In 
ace1irdance with generally accepted accounting pnnclples, and that receipts and eicpendltures of the company are 
being made only in acxordance w1th authorizations af management and dlnictors of the e<impany; and (31 provtde 
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reasonable aS1:Urance regarding prevention or time(y detectfon of unauthoraed acquisition, use, or disposition of 
the company's assets that alUld have a material e1fect on the financial statements. 

lnhet'ent Um1Ultfons of ln~rnal Ffnanclal Controls ovar Ffntnclal Reportfr,a 

Because of the Inherent limitations of fntemal financial controls over financial repol'tlnt, includina the possibility 
of altlusfon or Improper management override of controls, material misstatements dUl' to ~r or fraud may occur 
and not be detected. Also, projections of any e\111luatfon of the lntGf'llal financial controls over financial reportf1111 
to future periods are subject to the risk that the Internal financial control over financial reportlni may become 
inadequate becaust' of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the polldes or procedures may 
deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, In all matenal respects, an adequate Internal financial controls system over 
flnancial reportln& and !11.!Ch fntEl'nal financial conttots ov« financial reporting were operating effectively as at 
March 31, 2025, based on , "the fntemal cxmtrot over flnanc:lal rE!)ortlns criteria 4!rtabltshed by the Company 
conslderlr,g the essential components of Internal control stated In the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting Issued by the Institute of Chartered A«ountants of lndfa". 

for M. K Kothari 8: Asso(fai.s 
Charter<!d Accounlants 
Firm Regfttratlon No. 323929E 

MKICot.hu1 
Partner 
Membership Ne>, 059513 

UDIN: 2505951381,\JISll126 

Place: Kolkata 
Daw; 21"' May 2025 
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Kaizer. l4fO lhf'r-.lld Um!wcl 
~ lnblmotlon,t C.,,ll'•, UA Olowrfntll\M Ro.Id, 6th Flaw, Room 6A, Kolk.ata: 700071 

CIH • 1An19WB2006PLC107433 

l.lawlot ShNt u at 31rt M.wo>, 1025 

NonCUrntnt­
l'r<lperty Pw>t & Equipment 

FlnMClalAnetl 
• lnw11tments 
• 1.o1m a Adv11nCes 

OUU!fAsWtl> 

Tot.Ill Hon Cumint Ann 

Cumtnt­
·lnvent«leo 

Ff!Wlcill Alsetl 
·lnvatmenu 
• Trade R~eMlblu 
• Ca.sh & Caih Equivalents 
• 1.oe,u a Mvancei. 

Other Aseets 

Tot.al CUm,nt­

~1 AsMts 

c.iuitv a LW,ntu.s 

1hanthokftn. fwid 

~ Sllare <:.apttel 
Other £qU1ty 

Tot&! Shar•lloldlln ,und 

Im Olnlnt Lllbllttln 
Defemd Tax 1.1.lbUlty 

0.U'l'llnt Lllbifltltt 
F1n1ncW Lh1lrilllles 
• T111do P.ayalllaa 

a. Total outstandt>g ~ of micro and small mtell)l11e1; 
b. ToW out>t.-.dlnB dues of credltl>n Olher tnan micro and 
small mtel'l)fflet 

• Oltler Anancial Llablftle& 

Short Term PnMslon.s 

Total CUl'l'tftt Llliblltln 

Twol Equ11y a Llal>llllln 

·11oto,a fonnfns put ot th• flnanclll mt­
., mm I of our l'llpOrt "1tlcl>I d 

for MK Ko1.ha1 a-· 
Chlrtltntd Accountants 
FRN: OU3929E 

MI( Ko1harl 
P111Mr 
""""'""h" No.· 059513 
Kalle.la, /My 28, 2025 
UDIH • J505'5flBM11S1f1U 

( (11)/fllt:1} 

Noh ND, As at 31rt Mardi 2025 As at l1tt Milch 2024 

J 

4 
5 

6 

4 
7 

' ' 
6 

9 
fO 

11 

13 

14 

3·20 

94 

5.05 

3,221.13 
3,614.06 

118.l& 

6,958.53 

117.93 

2,731.62. 
91.01 

1,810.72 

104.27 

4,15'.0 

11,f14.1S 

S,141A9 
6,391.79 

11,533.28 

0.07 

200,30 

66.77 

13.73 

2ao.a1 

11,114,15 

Anlwr Hada 
/\\lll!lgln1 Dnctor 
DIN· 10t63731 

Nlklle~l 
c~ Secretary 

M. No: 36115 

6.75 

s.000:00 
601.97 

109.08 

5,717.80 

124,50 

2,359.55 
101.70 
160.39 

3,132,27 

24.47 

5,906.89 

11,624.6' 

~,141,49 
6,352.87 

11,.C9.C.J5 

0.14 

,22.11 

4.63 

3.-46 

1:J0.10 

11,62 ... 69 

,awan lCr. JhLl'\lhLlflW'III 

Wnot.itfme Df111<:tor 
DIN• 101)4'6'$ 

PooJa Af,trwlli 
CFO 

OIH • 011875010 
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Katzan Aaro lnfr•bulld Limited L.at 
Chall•rJae lnt•rnational Centre, 33A Chowren(lhee Road, 6th Floor Room 6A, KD!lulta: 700071 ~ 

CIN • L472.19W82006PLC1074i3 Ke ... a .. ,. 
INll'ilUt.llllV•'°'O (,,IMl""IU) 

Statam•nt of Profit and Loss filr the year anded Match 31, 2025 
( If In tac, ) 

Pvtlcullra Mote ND. As .at 31tt .March 2025 As llt 31st March 2024 

R-ue from Operations 15 1,967.64 ),250.119 
Othel-fnccme 16 97.69 17.74 

Tour lnC1)me 2,065.'3 3,268.63 

E:icpenMs: 

C.ost or Good Sold 17 1,8"8.65 ), 122.50 
Eml)lO)ft Benefit Elq)«lses 18 51.!\1 43.66 
Oeprecfatlon !k Amorttutf on [)(pen!e$ 3 2.07 1.57 
Finance Cott 19 1.30 3.73 
Other El(penM!S 20 109,21 83.09 

Total~ 2,012.75 3,254.55 

Proflt I (loss) Hfor• axceptlo,wl Items and we 52,59 f.4.08 

Eia:llptla nll ltitmt: 

Profit/ (loss) befo,.. I.IX S2.59 14,0B 

Tax Elq>ens.: 
Cinent Tax 13.7' 3.46 
Defet"Ted Tax ""·'" 0.20 

Elcpenses for Earlier Year 0.23 

Profit/ (lob) aft« we 38.92 10.19 

Other Compnihantlvlt Income/ (loss) 

A, (f) llems that wtll not be reclallsll'led subt.equtntly 
w profit u,d tou: 

(11) Income tax on~ Ullt wfll not be recll$$tfled 
SUI: I IIQIIMltfv to Pf"llflt Ind Ion 

a. (t) ll•m tMt wNl be reclusflled su~tly to 
pn,ffi; and bsll: 

(ti) Income tax on ft•ms that wfll be reclassltlcld 
subu,1quently to profit and lo~ 

Total olhar comprehanslv• Income/ (IOU) for Ille year 

Total c:omp'.ttensf~ Income I (loss) for the ya1r 34.92 10.19 

Eamlnp per ahare 
·Balfe 0.08 0,02 
•Diluted o.oe 0.02 

Motes formfna part of lh• flnlnclal stab111utntt 3-10 
In tAlmls of our raport auached 

For MK Kothari a .bsocllttt Ankwlftda P-~ Kr. JltunJhunwala 
Ot1rtered ~!lb Mane.at,. Director Whclellme Dtrector 
FRN : 0323929E DIN· 1016!731 DIM· 10049668 

MKKothlrt 
Ptrtner Hfktt.l lllt•rta Poojl Aprwal 
Membeni. No. • 059513 c:.ompany s«rewy CFO 
Kollul.la, May 28, 1025 .M. No: 36115 DIM· 06875(>10 
UDIM • 250595t38MJISll126 
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Katzen 4P> lnfl'llbulld Llmltad -
C:halti!r}H lntematlonal Centna, 33" OIOwletlflf- ~d, 6th Floor ~ 6A, Kolkala: 700071 ~ 

Cllt • L-47219WB2006PLC107433 K•S- 89N1i 
CUh Flow Stllternant for lh& yur erlded 31st Mardi 2025 

Putlcutan 

Otsh Flow from Opefatfns ActMlftt 
Net profit befort.' tax as pef' statement of pn:ritt e. lo$S 

Adju,tments: 
A<!d: Depreciation exper!$e$ 

Ei<!)fflses for Earlier Year 
Ope111t1n1 Profit IHlfare Worklr11 Olj,ltal ch•nt" 

Changes In Wllrldns Capltll 
Decre&Se / (Increase) 1n Inventories 
Decrease I (Inc-} fn Rece!Val.lla 
lncrea,e I (!)ea ease) In Trade payble 
Increase I (DecrMSe) fn Pr<Msfons 
De<:-/ (lncl'Eil$e) fn Other Cment Assets 
lncre'ISI!' / (De<:reeie) fn Other Current Uabfltt1e, 

C.h Genenited From Operations 
Less: Tax paid 

Mitt C:uh us.cl fn Openitfn, ActMtftt 

ca1h Flow tram IIWfltfn& A.ctMlles 
Proceeds fn>m sate/(Pttthue) of IIM!Slments 
Procftds from Sale/(PurchllK') of Flxe<I assets 
(lrtenMse)/Decuse In Short Tenn Loans and advance 

Nat ln<r.ase / Deere.He from lnvfflllll A.ctMtles 

Ou.fl Flow froln Flr.ancln:a Adtvttfer. 
Share Cap1tlll lncrease/(decruse} 
lncrffSe (!lt<:rellSt') fn Loans 
Premium on Sllare capital lncreasat(Deaease) 

Met lnc:rease / Dae.-.... from Ffnancfne Act:Mtfet 

Net lncn!ase In Cash and cash Equfvalenls (A+ B + C ) 
cash and Cash Equivalents at the ~nmns of the year 
Cash and Cash E(IUIY11lents at the End of the veer 

~nenls of Cash a CMII Equlvetents: 

Cash • fn • Hand 
8al'lk Balance with Current Account 

ttot.s formlnl part of tr.. flnancfal 11.11:en .. ,1s 

In tenm of our report at:t.ldle<I 

For MK Kolhari a Assoc1U41S 
CliertAlred Aocollntants 
F1IM : 03239:%9£ 

MK Kothari 
Partnal" 
Membenhlp Ho.· 059513 
Kolic.t., May 28, 2025 
UDIM • 2.50595138MIISl8126 

96 

.As. M 31st M.an:h 202.5 

52.59 

2.01 

54.66 

10.57 
·2,614.46 

116.93 
12.40 

·13.22 
0.24 

·2,487.56 
·13.73 

4,058.43 
-0.37 

·1,684.24 

2,373.81 

3.52 

l,52 

-'9.31 
160,39 

91.07 

6.47 
84.60 

91.07 

Ankurlfada 
Manafl~ D1re<:t0I' 
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Katzen Atro lnfnbulld Lfmtted 
Chatterjee International Centre, 33A Chowrlnghee Road, 6th Roor Room 6A, KoU<ata: 700071 

CIN • L47219W82006PLC107433 

\lote5: Fonnlna Part of the Flnandal Statement 
1 Corporate lnformatfon 

Katzen /liro lnfrabllild Limited (formerty Anubhav Infrastructure Umlted} {the Company} ls a Public Limited 
Company domiciled In lndla and Incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Ac.t. Its shares are listed 
on one stock exch11n,e In India. The Company Is In the business of pl'O\'lding land development, constru:tion 
$ervlces and other related services for c:Ml a structural construction and Infrastructure s«tor projects. Toe 
registered office of the Company Is located at Chatterjee International Centre, 33A Chowrfnghee Road, 6th 
Roor Room 6A, Kolkllta: 700071. 

The standalone financial statements were approved and authotfsed for ls sue In accordance with the n!SOlutlon 
of the Company's Board of Directors on 28th May 2025. 

2, 1 Basis tA Pfilparatfon 
• The standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March, 2025 have been Pfepared 

iri accordance wfth lnd!an Accountins Standards ("Ind AS"} notified under the Companies (lnd!an Acccuntlll!l 
Standards) I\Jles, 2015 {as amended from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule 
Ill to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind .AS a,mpllant Schedule Ill), as applicable to the flnancial statements.The 
preparatlori of financial statements require judaements, estimates and as~mptlons to be made that affect 
the reported amount of asset!. and liabilities fnclud!ne contingent ltabllftfes on Ule date of the financial 
statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during t.he report!~ perfod. Difference 
between actual results and estimates are recoeniz:ed ln the period prospectively in which the results are 
known/ materfaltzed. 

These flnancial statement$ have been prepared on a historical a,st basts, except for 
• Certain financial assets and lfabllltfes (lncludfns derivative ffmnc!al instruments} measured at fair 
value /amortized cmt. 
• Defined benefit plans· plan assets mffSUfed at fair value. 
• Certain blolO!Jfcal assets (Including unpludted green leaves) which are measured at fair vatue le~ 
cost to seU. (refer accounting policy regardlna financial Instruments). 

The financial statements are presented In INR and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs (INR 
00,000), except when otherwise Indicated. 

The Company has prepared the financial statements on the basil. that lt will a,ntfnue to operate as a BOlnll 
concem. 

2.2 Matertal.Accountina PoUcie5 

• Current and NoB-Cunrent classtflc:atlori 

The Company segregates assets and Uabflitfes into current and non-curretTt cat~ortes for presentatlori in the 
balance sheet after consfdef'!ng !ts normal operating cycle and other criteria set out In Ind AS 1, "Presentation 
of Financial Statements". For this purpose, current assets and liabilities Include the current portion of non· 
current assets and liabilities respectively. 
The op«ating cycle Is the ttme between tile acquisition of assets for proc~ng and their realization In cash 

and cash equlvaleflts. The Company has ldentffled pertod up to twelve months as Its operating cycie. 

Foret1ri currencies 
Func:ttonal arid pre5entatlon C\lrreney 

Thlt financial statements are J)l'l!ie!rted In INR, which ls the Compeny's runc.tlonal currency. Foreign currency 
transactk>ns are Initially recorded at functional currency spot rates at the date the tra11nction first qualffles 
for recognition. 
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• Property, Plant and Equfpmeflt 

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost of acqulsltfon, less accumulated clel)l'ectation and 
acC,\lmulated tmpainnent, ff any. Cost compriSt:$ purchase pria.- and directly attributable cost of brtngtng the 
asset to its working condition for the intended use. When significant parts of plant and eQUfpmem. are required 
to be replaced at Intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful !Ives. 
Ukewfse, when a major Inspection is perfonned, Its cost ts recognised In the carrytr111 amount of the plant and 
equipment as a replacffllf!nt if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs 
are recognised fn the Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred. The present value of the expected cost for the 
decommlsslonfna of an asset after Its use IS Included in the cnst of the respective asset ff the re<)()gnltlon 
criteria for a provision are met. Mater1al items such as spare pans, stand·by equipment and service equipment 
a"'1 classified as PPE when they meet 1he definition of PPE as spedfled 1ri Ind AS 16 - Property, Plant and 
Equipment. 

An Item of Property, Plant and Equipment and any significant part Initially recognised Is clereCOifllsed upon 
disposal or when no future eoonomic benefits are expected from !ts use or disposal. Gains or losses arising 
from clerecognttlon of the asset are mearured as the difference between the net dlsposat proceeds and the 
carrytne amount of the asset and are recoenlzed fn the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset ts 
def'ecognlzed. 

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment other than land ts provided on the Strafsht·Llne Method to 
allocate their cost, net of their residual values on the basis of useful lives prescribed In the Schedule II of the 
Companies Act, 2013. 

• Inventories 

lnventoriei. are value<! at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Raw materials, Stores & Spare parts, 
Finished Goods and il"aded Goods stated at the lower of cost and estimated net reallsablevalut>. Cost comprises 
expenditure Incurred in the normal course of business in br111!!fng such Inventories to their present location 
and comlltlcn and Includes appropriate ov«heads (In case of Ffnii.hed Goods). By·prockJcts, whose cost Is not 
identfffable, are valued at estimated net realisable value. Cast Is cletefmlned en weighted aver.ige basis. 
However, materials 11nd other Items held for~ in the production of Inventories are not written down below 
cost If the finished products In which they will be Incorporated are expected to be sold are at or above cost. 
Net reaUmble value ts the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, (m e$tlmated costs of 
completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale. 

Cr..h and Cash Equtvalents 

Cash and cash equivalent comprise cash at banks and on hand and short•tenn cleposfts with an original mawr1ty 
of three months or less, which are subject to an IMfgniflcant risk of tharllJes fn value. 

• ll'ade Recefvablts 
Trade recelYables are re<:Oil'lr.zed Initially at the transaction price as they do not contain significant flnanc1ne 

comJ)Ollents. The Company holds the trade receivables with the objective of collectfns the contractual cash 
flows and thffilfore measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the effective Interest method, less 
loss allowance. 

• Impairment of non•ffnanctal assets 

Th& Companyauei.ses at e~ch reporting date whether there ls an lndlcat1on that an asset mav be Impaired. If any lndica11on 
exists, ttle Company e511m.rtes the asset's rea>venble amount. All a:sset's recoverable amount ls the higher of an a!.Set's or 
<:ash-ii!neralins units' (CGU) net seill~ price and It$ v.ilue In 11$8, The recoverable amovnt Is determined for an lndMd1.1al 
ai.set, unless the a!.Set doe.snot generate cash Inflows that are largely Independent of th OR' from other assets er groups of 
asset!. Where the carrying amount of an asi.et or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset Is 
oonsldered impaired and Is written down to Its ,-er.ible amount 

In asse1slns v.ilue In use, the estimated future cash flows are disccunted to their present value u1lng a p~taK dlllCllunt 
rate th.It reflects current marlcet USe$5ments of the t1me value of money and the 11sks specific to the asset. In determining 
net selllns price, recent market nn.sact'lons are taken Into account, If av.ilfable. If no such transactions can be ldenlffled, 
an approprlarevahratlon model Is used. 98 ZfJTHANM.IAI.REPOR'l".ZO:U ?0?5 



The Company base$ ill. lmpahment calculalfon on detalled budsets and fore cart calculatfOl'ls which are prepared sep.,initety 
for each of the Company's c.ish-generatlng units to wt,Jch the lndMdwl as.sets are allocated. lmpalnnent lo.sses of 
Qll1tfnulng operation~, lndudins Impairment on irwentQr!e.s, are re<:cgniSl!d in the Statement of Profit and Lon. 

• Revenue from contl'llds with custom« 

Revenue from contracls with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to 
Ule customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expe<:ts to bf! entitled in 
excflange for those goods or services. The Company has Qenerally concluded that ft Is the principal In Its 
revenU1!' arransements, because it typically controls the aoods or services before transferring them to the 
customer. Revenue Is measured at the amount of transact!on prfce, net of returns, di$COllflls, volume 11!bates, 
outaofng sales taxes lncludlnsi ioods and service tax. The Company 1'1!C1)8nfses revenue when the amount of 
revenue can be reliably measured, it Is probable lhat future economic benefits Will flow to the Company 
reeardle$$ of when the payment Is beins made. The specific recognition criteria descr1bed below must also be 
met before revenue Is recognised. 
Saw of Goods 

Revenue from sale of aooct Is re<:OiJ\'iz:ed when the Company transfers the control of aoods to the customer as 
per the terms of contract. The Company considers whether there are other promises In the contract that are 
separate pef'formanoe obligations to which a portion of the transaction pr1ce needs to be allocated. In 
determining the transaction price, the Company considers the effects of variable consideration, the existence 
of significant financing componeflt, non-cash considerations and consideration payable to the customer (If 
any). 

• Interest Income 

Interest Income Is recosntsed on a time proportion basis taking Into account the amount outstanding and the 
applicable Interest rate. Interest income from debt Instruments Is ~lsed ustne the effectfve Interest rate 
method. 

• TIIXlltlori 

Tax expense I$ the lli9f'ei8te amount Included In the determlratlon of profit or 105$ for the period In respect 
of current tax and deferred tax. Current tax: Current tax is the amount of Income taxes payable In respect of 
taxable profit for a period. Taxable profit differs from 'profit before taX' as reported In the Statement of Profit 
and Los$ because of items of Income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and Items that 
are never taxable or dlilductlble unclerthe Income Tax Act, 1961. Current tax is measured usln11 tax rates that 
have been enacted by the end of ref)Orting period for tlte amounts expected to be recovered from or paid to 
the taxation authorities.Deferred tax ilS recognised on temporary differences between the canyfng amo1,11ts of 
assets and liabilities In the financial Statements and tile corre5f)Ondlflll tax bases used In the computation of 
taxable profit under Income tax Act, 1961. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are generally l"eCDtnlsed fOI' all 
deductible and taxable temporary differences respectively. Howevet; In case of temporary dlffe!'fflces that 
arise from Initial recognition of assets or liabilities fn a transaction (othei" than business combination) that 
affect neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit or does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible 
temporary differences, deferred tax assets or liabilities are not recognised. Also, (()ll' temporary differences ff 
any that may arise from initial recognition of IJ()O(twlll, deferred tax llabllltfes are not recosnlsed. DeftrTt!d 
tax assets are recognised to the extent It Is probable that t.aK&bte profits will be a\lllllable against which those 
deductible temporary difference can be utilized. The canylf!i amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at 
the end of each reportlna pel1ocl and reduced to the extent that it Is no longer probable that Stlfflclent taxable 
profits wlU be available to allow the benefits of part or all of such deferred tax assets to be utilized. Deferred 
tax il5sets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that have been enacted or sub$tanttvely enacted by 
the balance sheet date and are expected to apply to taxable Income In the yeat"$ In which those temporary 
differences are expected to be recovered or settled.Presentation of current and deferred tax: Current and 
deferred tax are recOillfsed as Income or an expense In the Statement of Proflt and LD:ss, except deferred tax 
relating to Items recognised outside profit or loss Is recognised outside profit or l1m (either fn other 
comprehensive Income or In equity). 
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• Seament fteportfnt 

The Company operates in a single business seiiment and In a s!ns(e ieovaphical area. Accordingly, there are 
no 5ej)arate reportable segments as defined by Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) !08 on Operating Segments. 

• Earnlnts per Share 

Basic Eamlnas per Share ls calculated 11/ dividing the net profft or toss for the period attrtbutable to equity 
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding durtng the pertod. 

The weighted avefage number of equity shares ol.ltStandlng during the period Is adjusted for events such as 
bonus issue, bonus elment In a rights ISS1Je, share split, and reverse share split (consollcllltfon of shares) that 
have changed the ml'Tlbel" of equity shares outstandlns, without a corresponding change in resources. 

FOf the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or 10\S for the period attributable to 
equity sl'tareholclefs and the weighted average number of shares ootstandlrli durlna the period ls adjusted for 
the effects of ell dilutive potential equity shares. 

• Provision, Contlnaent Ltabllltfer. and Contfnsent Assets 
A p!'ovlsfon ls recognized when an enterprise has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past 
event; it ls probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obllsatlon and a reliable estimate cen be made of the amount of the obllaatlon. Provisions are measured at 
the present value of management's best estimate of the expendtwre required to settle the present obligation 
at the end of the reporting period. The d1scount rate used to determine the present value Is a pre-tax rate 
that reflects curTent market al.'.iessmenu of the time value of money and the risk specff'lr: to the liability. The 
expecne relating to a p!'Ol'fslon ls presented in the statement of profit and loss.A a,ntlngent liability Is a 
j)OSSlble obligation that arllieS from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non· 
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obllptlon 
that Is not recognized because It fs not probable that an outflow of resoun::es will be required to settle the 
oblli!ltion. The Company does not recosnlze a contingent liability but discloses Its existence In the financial 
statements. 

Contingent as.sets usually arise from unp\amed or other une.,cpected events that give rise to the possibility of 
an inflow of economic benefits. Contingent Assets are not recognized though are 
disclosed, where an inflow of economic: beneflU is probable. 

Provisions, contingent liabilities and continient assets are reviewed at each reporting dete. 

Ffnandal Instruments 

A financial Instrument Is any contract that gives rise to a financial wet of one entity and a financial lfabfllty 
or eqUlty Instrument of another entity. 

Ffne.ncfal Assets 

Financial assets are recognl2:ed when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
fnstrument.Classlflcatlon:The Company <:la55ffles Its ff11ancial assets into the follow1nll cat*rles based on the 
buslne!.S mode{ for managing the asset and the contractual calh Aow characterlstics:Measured at Amortised 
Cost:Flnanc:fal assets held to collect contractual ca.sh flows, where those cash flows represec,t solely payments 
.of principal and lntetest, are measured at amortised cost.Measured at Fair value through Other Comprehensive 
Income (FVOCl):Flnanclal assets held both to collect contractual cash flows and fOf' sale, wtlere the cash flows 
are solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVOCI.Measured at Fair \/alue through A'ofit or 
Loss (FVTPL):All other financial assets are measured at MPL, includtnll those held for trading and those whose 
contractual cash flows are not solely payments of prlnctpal and Interest.Initial Measurement:AII financial assets 
are Initially recognized at fair value plus, for assets not at FVTPL, directly attnbutable transa<:tlon 
costs.Subsequent Mea.surement:At amortised cost or FVOCI, using the effective interest rate (EJR) method.At 
MPI.., at fair value, with gains Of losses recognized In profit Of' los1..lmpairment:The Company assesses, at 
each reporting elate, whether a financial asset or group of flnanclal assets is Impaired using the expected credit 
loss (ECL) model, wh1ch Involves measurlll!I Impairment based on hfstortcal, current, and fore<2st 
lnformatlon.Derecognltfon:A financial aswt ls den:cognized upon expiry of contractual rights, or when 
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred. 
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Financial Heblllttes 

F1nancfal liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the ccntractual provision~ of the 
lnstrument.Classific:atlon:F!nandal llabflltles are classified as elther:At amortised cost:Most tfnanclal 
liabilities, Including borrowings and trade payables, are meaS1Jred at amortised cost using the EIR method.At 
fair value throueh protlt or loss {MPL):Financial liabilities held fOf trading, or whet'e the Company has 
desfenated them as at FVTPI.. to eliminate an acccuntfng mismatch, are measured at fair value wilh gains or 
losses recognized In profit Of loss.Initial Measuremem:All tlnancial liabilitim. are Initially recognized at fair 
value less (for liabilities not at MPI..) transaction costs that are directly attributable to the f~e.Subsequent 
Measurement:Measured at amortised cnst using EIR, unless ctasslffed as at MPI..Oerecognftlon:A financial 
lfabfllty is derec09ntzed when the obUgatlon under ti-.e contn,,c;t I$ <llscharaed, cancelled, or expires. 

Fair Value measurement 

The Company measures financial lristrumentt., such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date. 
Fair value ts the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a l!abllU:y in an orderly 
transaction between marl<et participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement fs based on 
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 

• In the principal market fOf the asset or liability, or 
• In the absence of a principal market, In the most advantageous mar11et for the asset or llabflft.y 

A fair valU& measurement of a non-financial asset takes into aa:aunt a market participant's ability to 
generate economic benefits by U$lng the asset In Its hlaJ!est and best use or by selling ft to another mar11et 
participant that would use the ar.set In Its highest and best us&. 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value ls measured or disclosed in the financial statements are 
cat.eeorised within the fair value hierarchy, descr1be<I as follows, based on the lowest levet fnput that is 
sfinlticant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 

• Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prlcf!S ln active markets for fdentlc:al assets or liabilities 
• Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level Input that Is significant to the fair value 

measurement Is dlrectty or 
Indirectly olnervable 
• Level 3 - Valuation techniques fOf which the lowest level Input that Is significant to the fair value 

measurl!ment fs unobservable 

• Exctj:lttoAal Items 

An ordinary item of income or ellpel'\$e which by Its size, nature, occurrence or Incidence requires a dlscl~re 
In order to Improve understanding of the performance of 11\t! Company Is traated as an exceptional item In the 
Statement of Profit and Loss accouAt. 

• Event$ aftet" reportlnt date 
Where events occun1ng aft« tile balance sheet date provf<le evidence of conditions that extrted at the end 
of the reportlrig period, the impact of such e.ients fs adjusted within the Financial Statements. Otherwise, 
events after the balance sheet <late of material Sizt! or nature are only dlsc:tosed. 

• Recent accounting pronouncemenu 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards lllder 
Companies (Indian Aa:ountfns Standards) Rules as Issued from time to time. During the year ended March 31, 
202!i, MCA has notified Ind AS 117 • Insurance COl!tracu and amendment$ to Ind As 116 • Leases, relating to 
sale and lease back tranli8.ctfons, applicable from April 1, 2024. The Company has assessed that there ls no 
slanlflcant Impact on its financial statements. On May 9, 2025, MCA notifies the amendments to Ind AS 21 • 
Effects of Changes ln Forefln Eicdlange Rates. These amend menu aim to provide clearer gufdance on assessing 
currency exchangeabllfty and e5tfmatlr19 excharfe rates when currencies are not readily exchangeable. The 
amendments are effective tor annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 202!i. 
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f;j 
Ke0..11A(fN> 

fNll'llllt.A,.l,,IU,C> \.lo,tl'l"CI) 

Klll~n Al/10 lnf111b\llld Lfmiled 
c~ lntemalloMI c.ntre, 33A 01awrenahff Road, 6th Floor Room 6A, Kolbta: 700071 

CIN • U7219W82006PlC10743J 

( If fn I/JC.) 

1S ~ Frcm Operations kJ at 31st March 2025 Mat 31111 Mlln:fl 2.024 

Sale af Prooutts 1,412.79 2,615.91 
Other operatfna - • 554.85 574.96 

1,967.64 3,250.69 

• Other operatll!i reve~es Include sate of unquoted sllare$ and comm1$$1on r~elved. 

16 01Mr Income At. at 31sl March 2025 As at 31st Mardl 2024 

Interest lnc<lme 97.68 15.07 
Other non-apel'i!ltfnt Income 0.01 2.67 

97.69 17,74 

17 Cost of Goods Sold .As at 31st March 2025 A1. at 31:lt Merc:h 2024 

Cost of niw matitrfat consumtd 
Raw m111A1rilll consumed 
Inventory at the t,eaimlna of tht' 1,'Nr . 
Add: Purd111se d.lrf"11 the year . 
lA!s:s: lnvffltory at the end of the year . 

Cost of r,w, material mnsumed . . 

Purch- of ttock·ln·tnule . 
PUrch!IM& 1,838.08 3,246.57 

Total (8) 1,838,0ll 3,246.57 

Cllfflttt tn fnvetilorfff of finished pds, wart fn pros,.ss and stock-In 
lrede 

lrwantortes at die N91MIJl8 of t!i. )'ffr: 
Stock•fn-trad& 128.50 4.44 

128.50 4.44 
ln1t<tntorfas at the end of Ule year: 
Stock•fn·trede 117.93 128.50 

117.93 128.50 

(lnc,.._)/dec!'ftR In flffl!ntories of flntshad goods, wortt,.fn1)toSN" 
and lllock-fn-trade (C) 10.S7 ·124.06 
Total (A+B.C) 1,IMB,65 3,122.50 
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~ 
Kcailll<'HI A• N 

u•-""'•u•Lo Lu.,.tT•O 

18 Emt)loyee llet1eftt Expa- As at 31s.t Mardi 2025 As at 3 fst Mardi 202.f 

Salli~ a waaes 50.30 42.o, 
Staff welfan! expenses 1.21 1.6; 

51.51 43.d! 

19 Flnlll!Qt Cost As at 31st Mardi 2025 As at 31st Marcil 2024 

lntl!l'eit t:xJ)eru, 1.30 l.7 

1.30 !.7. 

20 Other Exper.set All It 31st .Mardi 2025 As at 31st Mardi 2024 

Au<lltf~ 0.80 1.21 
Bank Ch IIJlleS 0.01 o.oc 
Boardlna & l.odafns Expel'lses 4.86 3.71 
~e & Comm1sSfon 18.42 2.35 
DI recto n. s1 ttf n II f ff 1.11 1.48 
D!scount allowed 15.92 2.8: 
Donation a Sul>Salption . 0.2: 
EDP Expenses 0.56 1.lC 
General Ei<penses 1.13 1.81 
Lesa! a Professional Fus 23.27 31.:U 
Malntenanl:1' a Repairs O.+I 0.46 
Miscellaneous~ 4.42 . 
Offk~ Expen- 0.27 0.38 
Powennd fuel . 0.71 0.43 
Prtnttna a Statlona,y 1.20 2.21 
Regts.tratloo fees . 3.21 

Rent, Ra~ & Taxes 12.62 7.!K 
Sales Promotion (fncl. AdYerttsement) 11.87 5.65 
Stock =hange f~ Md Alatad e>cl)enst".I 3.71 9.& 
Transportation eo<pe1,ses 2.51 1.81 
Travetl!ng Expenses 5.36 5.41 

109.21 83,09 
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26 Other stltutory Information 

• 

• 

• 

Th& Company cloes not have any 8enatn1 property, where any proceedll18 has been initiated or pending against the Company 
for hOldlns any Ben~ml property under the Benaml Tran98Ctlons (Prohibition} A<:t, 1968 and rules mad!, t~nder. 

Tht> Company does not llaVt' any transaction With companll!S struck off under section 248 of t!'le Comp.inf es Act, 2013 or 
sectlo11 560 of the Companies Act, 1956. 

The Company have not traded or Invested fn Crypto currency or Virtual Cun-ency durln!I the ffnandal year. 

The Company have not aCM111Ged or loaned or Inverted funds to any other person(s} or entlty(ln), lncludlnll foreign entities 
(lntermedlarll's) with the understandfng that tht' Intermediary ShaU: 

11) directly or lndlrec11y ll'nd or Invest rn other persons or e,,tlttes Identified In any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of tht' 
company (Ultimate Benef'lclarle$) or 
b) pnMde any g1.111~ntl'l', security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneflclarle$ 

The Company have not rffi!lved any fund from any person(s) or entlty(fu), Including fore Ian entitles (Fundln9 Party} with the 
undemandlne (whether l'l'COrded In wr!tfllll or otherw'i!ae) that the Company shall: 

a} dlrectty or lndlrectty lEfld or Invest In otht'r persons or entitles ldentfffed In any manner whal:!IOl!W!r by or on behalf of the 
Fundf"!I Party (Ultimate Beneficlarll'S) or 
b} prOY!de any guarantee, security or the like on bt'half of the Ultimate Beneficiaries, 

The Company have not any sud\ tninactfon which ts not recorded In tilt' books of accounts that has been S11rrendered or 
dfscl05ed as Income during tht' year In the tax lmetsments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 {such as, search or survey or any 
other relevant prov!slons of the Income Tax Act, 1961 

• The Company Is not a Core lnYeStment Company as defined In the refjUlations made by~ Bank or India. 

There are no e\'l'nts or tnlnsactlons after the rl'portlng period which 1, required to be disclosed undef Ind J.S 10. 

During tht> }'l'ar, the Company has madt' fnve'5lments In unquoted e<jUfty shart'$ of private limited companies. These 

27 lnYl'Stments have been measutl'd et c:ost In accordance with Ind AS 109, since the fair value of the'Je unq\lOtsd equity 
Instruments 1, not readily aVlltlllbl& and there ts no active marlc.et for such shares. The Company has detennlned, after 
consfdertng au naflable lnfolT!latfon, that c:ost represents the best estlmatl' of fair V11lue at the reporting datl'. 

28 Tht' Company has used accountlns $Qfoort> fOt" maintaining Its books of account which l\aS a ft>at.llre of recordfn9 audit t.rafl 
{edit 109) ractuty. The audit trail fatfllty wu uncler the process of Implementation Q.lrlns the year. 

As per our r4'j)Ol't on eYen elate. 

F'or MK Kothv1 a Associates 

a,.~ Accolaltant! 

FRN : 0323929! 

M KKothorl 
P11'1ner 
~mbenhlp No •• 059.513 

Kol.kata, May la, 202$ 
UDIN • 2!059513BMIISl8126 
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For Ka!Dn Aero lnfrabuf'ld Lfmlted 

AnkurHada 
Managing Director 
DIN • 10163731 

Htkttll 1Yter1a 
Company Secretary 

M, No: 36115 

·an Kumar Jhll\lhlln 
Wholetlme Df~to 

DIN • 10<M966a 

Pao.!• Aprwal 
CFO 

DIM• 06875010 
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KAIZEN AGRO INFRABUILD LIMrTED 
{Formerly: Anubhav Infrastructure Limited) 

REGISTERED ADDRESS: "Chatterjee International Centre, 33A, 

Chowrlnghee Road, 6th Floor, Room No. 6A, Russel Street Kolkata- 700 071'', 
CIN No.: L47219WB2006PLC107433, Contact No. : 82320 13440 

EMAIL ID: inf'O@kalzenlnfra.com 
WEBSITE: www.kalzeninfra.com 

ATTENDANCE SLIP 
1\1/enlfetll Annuel General Mel!tlng-September 20, 202S at •o;amond Plaza", 5, Gopl Bose Lane, Kolkata· 700 012 

Name and Registered Address of the attending Member: ------- ----- ---­

Name and Registered Address of the attending Pro,cy: ------------ ---- -

Folio No.: ___ _ Client ID No.: _ __ _ DP ID No.: ___ _ 

Number of Shares held; __________ _____ __________ _ 

I herebv record my presence at the Twentieth Annual General Meeting of the Company held on Saturdav, the 
September 20, 2025 at 10:30 A.M. 

Member's Slgnature Proxy's Slgn~re 

~: 

1. Shareholders/ Proxy holder wishing to attend the meeting should bring the Attendance Slip at the meeting 
and hand over at the entrance duly signed. 

2. Shareholders/ Proxy holder wlshing to attend the meeting should bring his/ her copy of the Notice for 
reference at the meeting. 

ELECTRONIC VOTING PARTICULARS 

EVSN User Id PaNWord/PIN 

(Remote E-votlllg Event Number) 

Note: Please read the notes/ instructions printed on the Notice carefully before exercising your vote. 
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Form No. MGT-12 

Pollfng Paper 

[Pursuant to Section 109{5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 21(1)(9)(c) 
of the Companies (Management Administration) Rules, 2014] 

CIN : L47219WB2000PLC107433 

Name of the Company: Kaizen Agro lnfrabuild Limited 
{Formerly : Anubhav Infrastructure limited} 

Registered Office: "Chatterjee fntematlonal Centre, 33A, Chowringhee Road, 6th Floor, Room No. GA, Russel 

Street, Kolkata· 700071w. 

BALLOT PAPER 

SI No. Particulars Details 
1. Name of the first named Shareholders {In block Letters} 

2. Postal address 

3. 
Registered folio No. / Cllent 10 No. ('Applicable to investors 

holding shares in dematerialized form) 

4. Class of Shares 

I herebv exercise mv vote in respect of Ordinary /Special resolution enumerated below by recording my assent or 

dissent to the said resolution In the following manner: 

No. Item No. No. of shares 1 assent to 1he I dl55ent from 
heldhvme resolution tfle resolution 

1. Ordinary Resolution: Adoption of Audited Balance 
Sheet for March 31, 2025. 

2. Ordinary Resolution: Appointment of Director in place 
of Mr. Pawan Kumar Jhunjhunwala (DIN: 10049668) 
who retire by rotation, eligibly offers himself for re-
appointment. 

3. Ordinary Resolution: Appointment of Roshnl Gadia 
(DIN: 06652773) as a Non-Executive Independent 
Director. 

4. Ordinary Resolution: Appointment of Kalpana Tekriwal 
(DIN: 11170688) as a Non-Executive Independent 
Director. 

5. Ordinary Resolutlon: Appointment of Secretarial 
Auditor of the Company 

Place: 
Date: (S1f11ature of the Shareholder) 
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1. Please read the instructions overleaf before exercising your vote through Ballot Form. 

2. If you opt to cast vote bye-voting, there is no need to fill up and sign this Ballot F<>rm • 

.3. Last date for the receipt of Ballot Form by ScMlnlzer Is on Saturday, September 20, 202S (5.00 p.m 1ST) 

INSTRUCTIONS 

I. General lnstructloM: 

1. A Member can opt for only one mode of voting l.e, either through e-voting or by Ballot Form. If a Member casts 

votes by both modes, then voting done through e·voting shall prevail and Ballot Form shall be treated as invalid. 

2. Instructions for voting electronically through e-votlng process has been mentioned in detail in the Notice oft.he 

20th Annual General Meeting of the Company and Instruction for voting through Ballot Form Is mentioned as 
hereunder. 

3. M/s. Hemant Shanna & Associates (Practicing No. 17411), Practicing Company secretaty, has been appointed 

as the Scrutinizer to $CNtinize the E-voting process (remote e-voting) in a fair and transparent manner. 

II. Instruction for voting physlc:ally on Ballot Rlrm 

1. A Member desirins to eKercise vote by Ballot should complete this Ballot Form (no other form or photocopy 
thereof is permitted to be used for the purpose) and send it to the Scrutinizer In the enclosed self-addressed 
envelope. Postage wlll be borne and paid by the Company. However, envelopes containing Ballot Forms, If 
deposited in person or sent at the eNpense of the Member will also be accepted. 

2. The self-addressed envelope bears the address of the Scrutinizer appointed by the Board of Directors of the 
Company. 

3. Assent/Dissent to the proposed resolutions may be recorded by placlng a tick (v) In appropriate column. The 
assent/dissent In any other format shall be considered Invalid. 

4. This Form should be completed and signed by the Member(s) as per specimen slgnature(s) reslstered with the 
Company orwl~h the Depository Participant as the case may be. In case ofjoint shareholding. this Form should 
be completed and signed by the first named Member and in his absence, the ned named Member. 

5. Please note that Ballot Form shall not be signed by pro)('(. 
6. Incomplete, unsigned, lmpropertv and Incorrectly tick marked Ballot Forms wlll be rejected. Members are 

requested to flll In the Ballot Form in indelible Ink and not In any erasable writing mode. The Scrutinizer's 
decision on the valldlty of the Ballot Form shall be final. 

7. Duly completed Ballot Form should reach the Scrutinizer not later than the close of worlclng hours on Saturday, 
September 20, 2025 (5.00 p.m. 1ST). All Ballot Forms received after this date wlll be strictly treated as If reply 
from such Member(s) has not been received. 
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1NJ"'R•WU11,,0 t 0 1M•'NO 

PROXY FORM 
Form No. MGT-11 

[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) 
of the Companies Management and Administration) Rules, 2014) 

CN: L47219WS2006PLC107433 

Name of the Company; Kaizen Agro lnfrabulld Limited 
(Formerly: Anubhav Infrastructure Limited) 

Reglmred Office: "Chatterjee Jntematlonal Centre, 33A, Chowrfnghee Road, 6th Floor, Room No. 6A, Russel 

Street Kolkata- 700071" 

I , Name of the Member(s} : 

Registered Address: 

E-mail Id: 

Folio No./ Client Id : 

OPIO: 

I/We, being the member(s) of .............................. shares of the above named Company, hereby appoint: 

1. Name: 

Address: 

E-mall Id: Signature: or falllng him/her 

2. Name: 

Address: 

E-mail Id: Signature: or fall Ing him/her 

3. Name: 

Address: 

E-mall Id: Signature: or falllng him/her 

as my/our proxv to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 20th Annual General 
Meeting of the Company, to be held on saturday, September 20, 202S at 10:30 a.m. at "Diamond Plaza•, S, Gopl 
Bose Lane, Kolkata· 700 012, and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutlons as are indicated 
below: 
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Resolution No. Resolutions 

Ordina!'.'l: Business : 

1. Adoption of Audited Balance Sheet for March 31, 2025. 

2. Appointment of Director In place of Mr. Pawan Kumar JhunJhunwala who retire by rotation 

and ellglbly offers himself for re-appointment. 

SQeclal Bu1!nm: 

3. Appointment of Mrs. Roshni Gadla (OIN: 06652773), as a Non-Executive Independent Director. 

4. Appointment of Mrs. Kalpana Tekrlwal (DIN: 11170688) as a Non-Executive Independent 

5. Appointment of Secretartal Auditor of the Company 

Signed this ............... day of .................. 2025 
Affix 

Signature of shareholder(s} ............................................................... 
Revenue 
Stamp 

Signature of Proxy holder(s) ............................................................... 

Notes: 

1. This fonn of pro)(\' In order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office 

of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting. 

2. A proxy need not be a member of the Company. 

3. A person can act as a prollY on behalf of members not exceeding 1lfty and holding in the aggregate not more 

than 10% of the total share capita! of the Company carrylns voting rights. A member holding more than 10% 

of the total share capita! of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proKY and such 

person shall not act as a pro)(\' for any other person or shareholder. 

4. Appointing a proxy does not prevent a member from attending the meeting in person If he so wls~e$. 

s. In the case of Joint holders, the signature of any one holder will be sufficient, but names of all the joint 

holders should be stated. 
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ROUTE MAP OF THE VENUE OF AGM 
(Dated: September 20, 2025) 
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